#23-045

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2022 - Edition
ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT
SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Advocate Lutheran General Hospital - CAC Project

Street Address: 1775 Dempster Street

City and Zip Code: Park Ridge, IL 60068

County:  Cook Health Service Area: 7 Health Planning Area: A-07

Applicant(s) [Provide for each applicant (refer to Part 1130.220)]

Exact Legal Name: Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation d/b/a Advocate Lutheran General
Hospital

Street Address: 1775 Dempster Street

City and Zip Code: Park Ridge, IL 60068

Name of Registered Agent: Michael Kerns

Registered Agent Street Address: 2025 Windsor Drive

Registered Agent City and Zip Code: Oak Brook, IL 60523

Name of President: William Santulli

President Street Address: 2025 Windsor Drive

President City and Zip Code: Oak Brook, IL 60523

President Telephone Number: 630-929-8704

Type of Ownership of Applicants

X Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
] For-profit Corporation [] Governmental
L] Limited Liability Company L] Sole Proprietorship L] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and
address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Primary Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Dia Nichols

Title: Hospital President - Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

Hospital Name: Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

Address: 1775 Dempster Street, Park Ridge, IL 60068

Telephone Number: 847-723-8446

E-mail Address: dia.nichols@aah.org

Fax Number: 847-723-2285

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Myndee Gomberg Balkan

Title: Director, Health Facilities Planning

Company Name: Advocate Health

Address:
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Telephone Number: 847-721-0376

E-mail Address: myndee.balkan@aah.org

Fax Number:

Additional Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Roberto Orozco

Title: Director, Central Chicagoland & North lllinois Regions, Design & Construction

Company Name: Advocate Health

Address:

Telephone Number: 773-308-4474

E-mail Address: roberto.orozco@aah.org

Fax Number:
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#23-045

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2022 - Edition

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Advocate Lutheran General Hospital - CAC Project

Street Address: 1775 Dempster Street

City and Zip Code: Park Ridge, IL 60068

County:  Cook Health Service Area: 7 Health Planning Area: A-07

Applicant(s) [Provide for each applicant (refer to Part 1130.220)]

Exact Legal Name: Advocate Aurora Health Inc.

Street Address: 750 W. Virginia

City and Zip Code: Milwaukee, W1 53204

Name of Registered Agent: The Corporation Trust Company

Registered Agent Street Address: Corporation Trust Center 1209 Orange Street

Registered Agent City and Zip Code: Wilmington, DE 19801

Name of President: James Skogsbergh

President Street Address: 2025 Windsor Drive

President City and Zip Code: Oak Brook, IL 60523

President Telephone Number: 630-572-9393

Type of Ownership of Applicants

X Non-profit Corporation L] Partnership
] For-profit Corporation [] Governmental
L] Limited Liability Company L] Sole Proprietorship L] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and
address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Primary Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Dia Nichols

Title: Hospital President - Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

Hospital Name: Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

Address: 1775 Dempster Street, Park Ridge, IL 60068

Telephone Number: 847-723-8446

E-mail Address: dia.nichols@aah.org

Fax Number: 847-723-2285

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Myndee Gomberg Balkan

Title: Director, Health Facilities Planning

Company Name: Advocate Health

Address:

Telephone Number: 847-721-0376

E-mail Address: myndee.balkan@aah.org

Fax Number:
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Additional Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Roberto Orozco

Title: Director, Central Chicagoland & North lllinois Regions, Design & Construction

Company Name: Advocate Health

Address:

Telephone Number: 773-308-4474

E-mail Address: roberto.orozco@aah.org

Fax Number:
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2022 - Edition

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Advocate Lutheran General Hospital - CAC Project

Street Address: 1775 Dempster Street

City and Zip Code: Park Ridge, IL 60068

County:  Cook Health Service Area: 7 Health Planning Area: A-07

Applicant(s) [Provide for each applicant (refer to Part 1130.220)]

Exact Legal Name: Advocate Health Inc.

Street Address: 2025 Windsor Drive

City and Zip Code: Oak Brook, IL 60523

Name of Registered Agent: CT Corporation System

Registered Agent Street Address: 208 S. LaSalle Street, Suite 814

Registered Agent City and Zip Code: Chicago 60604

Name of Co-Chief Executive Officer: James H. Skogsbergh

Co-CEO Street Address: 2025 Windsor Drive

Co-CEO City and Zip Code: Oak Brook, IL 60523

Co-CEO Telephone Number: (630) 572-9393

Type of Ownership of Applicants

X Non-profit Corporation L] Partnership
] For-profit Corporation [] Governmental
L] Limited Liability Company L] Sole Proprietorship L] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and
address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Primary Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Dia Nichols

Title: Hospital President - Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

Hospital Name: Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

Address: 1775 Dempster Street, Park Ridge, IL 60068

Telephone Number: 847-723-8446

E-mail Address: dia.nichols@aah.org

Fax Number: 847-723-2285

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Myndee Gomberg Balkan

Title: Director, Health Facilities Planning

Company Name: Advocate Health

Address:

Telephone Number: 847-721-0376

E-mail Address: myndee.balkan@aah.org

Fax Number:
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Additional Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Roberto Orozco

Title: Director, Central Chicagoland & North lllinois Regions, Design & Construction

Company Name: Advocate Health

Address:

Telephone Number: 773-308-4474

E-mail Address: roberto.orozco@aah.org

Fax Number:
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Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence after permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE EMPLOYED BY
THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960]

Name: Scott Nelson

Title: Vice President, Planning, Design & Construction

Company Name: Advocate Aurora Health, Inc

Address:

Telephone Number:

E-mail Address: scott.nelson@aah.org

Fax Number:

Site Ownership
[Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation

Address of Site Owner: 2025 Windsor Drive, Oak Brook, IL 60523

Street Address or Legal Description of the Site: 1775 Dempster Street, Park Ridge, IL 60068
Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of ownership
are property tax statements, tax assessor’'s documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation

attesting to ownership, an option to lease, a letter of intent to lease, or a lease.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 2, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Operating ldentity/Licensee
[Provide this information for each applicable facility and insert after this page.]

Exact Legal Name: Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation d/b/a Advocate Lutheran General
Hospital

Address: 1775 Dempster Street, Park Ridge, IL 60068

X Non-profit Corporation L] Partnership
] For-profit Corporation [] Governmental
L] Limited Liability Company L] Sole Proprietorship L] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois Certificate of Good Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of
ownership.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 3, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Organizational Relationships

Provide (for each applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any person or
entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is participating in the
development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any financial
contribution.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 4, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2022 - Edition

Flood Plain Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2006-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements,
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www.illinoisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a
readable format. In addition, please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the
requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2006-5 (http://www.hfsrb.illinois.gov). NOTE: A
SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AND 500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN DETERMINATION
FORM has been added at the conclusion of this Application for Permit that must be

completed to deem a project complete.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 5, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources
Preservation Act.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 6, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
[Check those applicable - refer to Part 1110.20 and Part 1120.20(b)]

Part 1110 Classification :
O Substantive

X Non-substantive

LGH CAC Expansion and Modernization Page 8
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2. Narrative Description

In the space below, provide a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in
State Board defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a street
address, include a legal description of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project's classification
as substantive or non-substantive.

Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation d/b/a Advocate Lutheran General Hospital,
Advocate Aurora Health, Inc. and Advocate Health, Inc., the applicants, propose a
modernization project on the Advocate Lutheran General Hospital campus.

This will include two areas of the outpatient Oncology program:

e The expansion of the Center for Advanced Care (CAC) to relocate all outpatient BMT
clinic and infusion services creating an integrated BMT program.

e The modernization of the Medical Oncology service in the CAC to provide appropriately
designed space with contemporary standards and functionality for the clinics and
infusion services.

The CAC is on the Advocate Lutheran General campus and is located at 1700 Luther Lane, Park
Ridge, IL 60068.

The project’s total square footage will be 18,282 of new construction (12,376 of clinical and
5,906 of non-clinical) and 10,029 square feet of modernization (7,524 of clinical and 2,505 of
non-clinical space). The cost of the project cost is $26,823,280 with an anticipated completion
date of March 31, 2026.

The project is classified as a non-substantive project, as it does not establish a new category of
service nor facility as defined in 20 IL CS 3690/3.

LGH CAC Expansion and Modernization Page 9
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Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a
project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the
fair market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated
project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of
health care, complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must be
equal.

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Preplanning Costs

Site Survey and Soil Investigation

Site Preparation

Off Site Work

New Construction Contracts

Modernization Contracts

Contingencies

Architectural/Engineering Fees

Consulting and Other Fees

Movable or Other Equipment (not in construction
contracts)

Bond Issuance Expense (project related)

Net Interest Expense During Construction (project
related)

Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment

Other Costs to Be Capitalized

Acquisition of Building or Other Property (excluding
land)

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS

SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Cash and Securities

Pledges

Gifts and Bequests

Bond Issues (project related)

Mortgages

Leases (fair market value)

Governmental Appropriations

Grants

Other Funds and Sources

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS

NOTE: ITEMIZATION OF EACH LINE ITEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT ATTACHMENT 7, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER
THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.
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Related Project Costs
Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that
will be or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project L] Yes X No
Purchase Price:  $
Fair Market Value: $

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service

L[] Yes X No
If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including operating deficits
through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the target utilization specified in Part
1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit cost is $ NA

Project Status and Completion Schedules

For facilities in which prior permits have been issued please provide the permit numbers.

Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:
[ None or not applicable L1 Preliminary

X Schematics [] Final Working

Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): _ March 31, 2026_

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to financial commitments (refer to Part
1130.140):

[ 1 Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.

[ 1 Financial commitment is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the contingent
“certification of financial commitment” document, highlighting any language related to CON
Contingencies

X Financial Commitment will occur after permit issuance.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 8, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

State Agency Submittals [Section 1130.620(c)]

Are the following submittals up to date as applicable:
X] Cancer Registry
XI APORS
X All formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports been
submitted
DX All reports regarding outstanding permits
Failure to be up to date with these requirements will result in the application for permit being
deemed incomplete.
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Cost Space Requirements

Provide in the following format, the Departmental Gross Square Feet (DGSF) or the Building Gross
Square Feet (BGSF) and cost. The type of gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be
identified. The sum of the department costs MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any
space is being reallocated for a different purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the
departments or area’s portion of the surrounding circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated
space.

Not Reviewable Space [i.e., non-clinical]: means an area for the benefit of the patients, visitors, staff, or employees of a health
care facility and not directly related to the diagnosis, treatment, or rehabilitation of persons receiving services from the health care
facility. "Non-clinical service areas" include, but are not limited to, chapels; gift shops; newsstands; computer systems; tunnels,
walkways, and elevators; telephone systems; projects to comply with life safety codes; educational facilities; student housing;
patient, employee, staff, and visitor dining areas; administration and volunteer offices; modernization of structural components (such
as roof replacement and masonry work); boiler repair or replacement; vehicle maintenance and storage facilities; parking facilities;
mechanical systems for heating, ventilation, and air conditioning; loading docks; and repair or replacement of carpeting, tile, wall
coverings, window coverings or treatments, or furniture. Solely for the purpose of this definition, "non-clinical service area" does not
include health and fitness centers. [20 ILCS 3960/3]

Amount of Proposed Total Gross Square Feet

Gross Square Feet That Is:

New Vacated

Dept. / Area Cost Existing | Proposed Const. Modernized | Asls Space

REVIEWABLE

Medical Surgical

Intensive Care

Diagnostic
Radiology

MRI

Total Clinical

NON-
REVIEWABLE

Administrative

Parking

Gift Shop

Total Non-
clinical

TOTAL

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 9, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2022 - Edition

Complete the following chart, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of
the project and insert the chart after this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization data for
the latest Calendar Year for which data is available. Include observation days in the patient day
Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Inventory will result in the
application being deemed incomplete.

totals for each bed service.

FACILITY NAME: Advocate Lutheran General

Hospital

CITY: Park Ridge, lllinois

REPORTING PERIOD DATES:

From: Jan. 1, 2022,to Dec 31, 2022

Category of Service Authorized Admissions | Patient Days | Bed Proposed
Beds Changes Beds

Medical/Surgical 332*¢ 16,474 103,691

Obstetrics 62 3,509 8,953

Pediatrics 48 3,226 14,061

Intensive Care 74 4,186 19,796

Comprehensive Physical

Rehabilitation 45 772 11,754

Acute/Chronic Mental lliness | 55 1,103 8,743

Neonatal Intensive Care 54 110 15,655

General Long-Term Care

Specialized Long-Term Care

Long Term Acute Care

Other

TOTALS: 670 29,380 182,653

*Includes 19 beds approved by the HFSRB/IDPH to be operational 5/10/23

LGH CAC Expansion and Modernization
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CERTIFICATION

The Application must be signed by the authorized representatives of the applicant entity, Authonized
represantatives ara: .

o Inthe case of 8 corporation, any twa of its officers or members of its Board of Directors,

o i fthe case of a limited liability company, any two of ils managers or mambears (or the sole
manager ar member when two or more managers o members do not exist)

in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general pariner, when two
or mare general partners da not exist)

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or tha sole benaficiary when two or
maore beneficianes do not exist), and

in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietar,

This Application is filed on the behalf of ocate Health an als Corporation_d/b/a
Advocate Lutheran General Hospital® in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the
Mincis Health Facilities Planning Act. The undersigned certifies that he or she has the autharity
to execute and file this Application on behalf of the applicant entity, The undersigned further
certifies that the data and information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and
correct to the best of his or her knowledge and belisf. The undersigned also certifies that the fes
reguired for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon reguest,

Kevin Fiich _

William Saniulli win Fi
PRINTED NAME FRINTED MaME
Prggicent Assisiant Treasurar
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE

: Motarization: Motarizalion:

jbed and swon to before me Subscrined and swamn o befare me
tis J47R day ur% 2025 i 4R oy of ﬁ%LZﬂEL
e §ig__'ta1:_ wre of Motary '

“OFFICIAL SEAL" b . '

Seal MICHAEL E. KERNS MICHARL & RERNS '
" éin?::rtﬂﬂx,ﬂnummls 1 mwmsﬁmnl lignais i
.'r mmlﬂlﬂn Eil'es 052672026 § My Commission Expires 05262026 |
bbby el . PRERET T O the applicant s - - :

OSSO R, ZERE T
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
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CERTIFICATION

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2022 - Edition

The Application must be signed by the authorized representatives of the applicant entity. Authorized
represaentatives ara:

o inthe case of 2 corporation, any hwo of its officars or members of its Board of Directors,

g in the case of a limited liability company, any two of its managera or membera (or the aole
manager or member when two or more managers or members do not exist).

o In the case of a partnership. two of its general pariners (or the sole general partner, when two
or more general pariners do not exist).

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sola beneficiary when two or
maore baneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the propriatos,

This Application is filed on the behalf of Advocate Aurora Health, Inc.” in accordance with the
requirements and procedures of the lilincis Health Facilities Planning Act. The undersigned
certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this Application on behalf of the
applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and information provided herain,
and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or her knowledge and belief.
The undersigned also certifies that the fea required for this application is sent herawith or will ba
paid upon reguast.

'*%"-f Y AL

SIGMATURE SIGMATURE

James H, Skogsbergh William P Santfalli
PRIMTED MAME PRIMTED MAME

President and Chigl Expculive Officar ﬁﬁf qm%g &Eﬂ
PRIMNTED TITLE PRINTED TITL

Motarization: MNotarization:

AU and befare ma Subscr and swar. o bafors me
this dayuf:gz%iﬁ 4 this day of .2:% éﬂgj’

Signature of Nl:ﬂ.i:'ll]' ngnaburu -ufhlutury

e

"OFFICIAL SEAL" Seal “GFFIGIAL SEAL"
HF;I‘!'EHAEL E. KERN3 MI.E‘-I.&ELSEMEE‘{F&NS
My Cnmrrr'rislu-n .t s My mmﬁ?iﬁﬂnlm 05262026

i applicant
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CERTIFICATION

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2022 - Edition

The Application must be signed by the authorized representatives of the applicant entity. Authorized
representatives are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors.

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manager or member when two or more managers or members do not exist).

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners {or the sole general partner, when two
or more general partners do not exist),

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or
more beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor,

This Application is filed on the behalf of Advocate Health, Inc.* in accordance with the
requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act. The undersigned
certifies that he or she has the authority to execute,and file this Application on behalf of the
applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and information provided herein,
and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or her knowledge and belief.
The undersigned also certifies that the fee required for this application is sent herewith or will be

A W

SIGNATURE SIGNATURE
James H. Skogsbergh william P Santul A
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME

i ive Officer ﬁtfﬁxﬁf‘w‘ Med wist? ﬁr_; 101
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
MNotarization; MNotarization:
Sub Subscri

this this /9

and swal before me
day of ,Ei;‘ 2823

AL
Signature of Notary

d and to before me
day of

"QFFICIAL SEAL"
MICHAEL E. KERNS

Motary Public, State Of Illinols
My Cumminlnn Expires 05/26/2026 4

"OFFICIAL SEAL"
MICHAEL E. KERNS
" Hnraw Public, State OF Illnuls

applicant

Commission Mo 286069

) Cornmuislun No. 286069

SECTION Il
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

LGH CAC Expansion and Modernization

BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2022 - Edition

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project

costs.

1110.110(a) — Background of the Applicant

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

1.

A listing of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certification if
applicable.

A listing of all health care facilities currently owned and/or operated in lllinois, by any corporate officers or
directors, LLC members, partners, or owners of at least 5% of the proposed health care facility.

For the following questions, please provide information for each applicant, including corporate officers or
directors, LLC members, partners, and owners of at least 5% of the proposed facility. A health care facility
is considered owned or operated by every person or entity that owns, directly or indirectly, an ownership
interest.

a. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the
applicant, directly or indirectly, during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

b. A certified listing of each applicant, identifying those individuals that have been cited, arrested,
taken into custody, charged with, indicted, convicted, or tried for, or pled guilty to the commission of
any felony or misdemeanor or violation of the law, except for minor parking violations; or the
subject of any juvenile delinquency or youthful offender proceeding. Unless expunged, provide
details about the conviction, and submit any police or court records regarding any matters
disclosed.

c. A certified and detailed listing of each applicant or person charged with fraudulent conduct or any
act involving moral turpitude.

d. A certified listing of each applicant with one or more unsatisfied judgements against him or her.

e. A certified and detailed listing of each applicant who is in default in the performance or discharge of
any duty or obligation imposed by a judgment, decree, order or directive of any court or
governmental agency.

Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation
organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information requirements of
this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest that the information was previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant can submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 11, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-4) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 11.
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Criterion 1110.110(b) & (d)

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1.

Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

Define the planning area or market area, or other relevant area, per the applicant’s definition.

Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed as applicable and appropriate for the

project.

Cite the sources of the documentation.

Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population’s
health status and well-being.

Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded, if any. For facility projects, include
statements of the age and condition of the project site, as well as regulatory citations, if any. For equipment being
replaced, include repair and maintenance records.

NOTE: Information regarding the “Purpose of the Project” will be included in the State Board Staff Report.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 12, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-6) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 12.

ALTERNATIVES

1) Identify ALL the alternatives to the proposed project:

Alternative options must include:

A)

B)

C)

D)

Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost.

Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or
entities to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing
alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes.

Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the project; and

Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected.

2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The
comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality, and financial benéefits in
both the short-term (within one to three years after project completion) and long-term. This may
vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED, THE TOTAL PROJECT
COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS REJECTED MUST BE

PROVIDED.

3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that verifies
improved quality of care, as available.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 13, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.
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SECTION IV. PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.120 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:

SIZE OF PROJECT:
1. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not
excessive. This must be a narrative and it shall include the basis used for determining the space and
the methodology applied.

2. If the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following:

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational
needs, as supported by published data or studies and certified by the facility’s Medical Director.

b. The existing facility’s physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an
architectural design that delineates the constraints or impediments.

c. The project involves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square footage.

d. Additional space is mandated by governmental or certification agency requirements that were not in
existence when Appendix B standards were adopted.

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the
following format with Attachment 14.

SIZE OF PROJECT
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 14, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions, or equipment
for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100.

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the
utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be
provided.

A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15.

UTILIZATION

DEPT./ HISTORICAL | PROJECTED | STATE MEET

SERVICE | UTILIZATION | UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?

(PATIENT DAYS)

(TREATMENTS)
ETC.

YEAR1
YEAR 2

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 15, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE:
Provide the following information:
1. Total gross square footage (GSF) of the proposed shell space.

2. The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF to be allocated to each
department, area, or function.

3. Evidence that the shell space is being constructed due to:
a. Requirements of governmental or certification agencies; or
b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas proposed
to occupy the shell space.

4. Provide:
a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year period for which data is available;
and
b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections of future
utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space will be placed
into operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 16, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

There is no shell space in the proposed project.
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ASSURANCES:
Submit the following:

1. Verification that the applicant will submit to HFSRB a CON application to develop and utilize the
shell space, regardless of the capital thresholds in effect at the time or the categories of service
involved.

2. The estimated date by which the subsequent CON application (to develop and utilize the subject
shell space) will be submitted; and

3. The anticipated date when the shell space will be completed and placed into operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 17, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

N/A
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M. Criterion 1110.270 - Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service

1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize Clinical Service Areas Other than
categories of service must submit the following information:
2. Indicate changes by Service: Indicate # of key room changes by action(s):
# Existing # Proposed
Service Key Rooms | Key Rooms
[]
[]
3. READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required documentation
for the criteria:
Project Type Required Review Criteria
New Services or Facility or Equipment (b) - Need Determination — Establishment
Service Modernization (c)(1) — Deteriorated Facilities
AND/OR

(c)(2) — Necessary Expansion
PLUS

(c)(3)(A) — Utilization — Major Medical Equipment

OR

(c)(3)(B) — Utilization — Service or Facility

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 31, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affirmed
within the latest 18-month period prior to the submittal of the application):

e Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds — Review Criteria
e Section 1120.130 Financial Viability — Review Criteria
e Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility — Review Criteria, subsection (a)

VII. 1120.120 - AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

The applicant shall document those financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated
total project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the
following sources, as applicable [Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources]:

$7.921,398 a) Cash and Securities — statements (e.g., audited financial statements,
letters from financial institutions, board resolutions) as to:

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the
project, including the identification of any security, its
value and availability of such funds; and

2) interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to
be earned on any asset from the date of applicant's
submission through project completion.

b) Pledges - for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges
showing anticipated receipts and discounted value, estimated timetable
of gross receipts and related fundraising expenses, and a discussion of
past fundraising experience.

c) Gifts and Bequests - verification of the dollar amount, identification of
any conditions of use, and the estimated timetable of receipts.

d) Debt - a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the
$18,901.882 debt time, variable or permanent interest rates over the debt time, and
the anticipated repayment schedule) for any interim and for the
permanent financing proposed to fund the project, including:

1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the
required referendum or evidence that the governmental
unit has the authority to issue the bonds and evidence of
the dollar amount of the issue, including any discounting
anticipated.

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the
specified amount and interest rate.

3) For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender
attesting to the expectation of making the loan in the
amount and time indicated, including the anticipated
interest rate and any conditions associated with the
mortgage, such as, but not limited to, adjustable interest
rates, balloon payments, etc.

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms
and conditions, including any purchase options, any
capital improvements to the property and provision of
capital equipment.
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5) For any option to lease, a copy of the option, including
all terms and conditions.

e) Governmental Appropriations — a copy of the appropriation Act or
ordinance accompanied by a statement of funding availability from an official of
the governmental unit. If funds are to be made available from subsequent fiscal
years, a copy of a resolution or other action of the governmental unit attesting to
this intent.

f) Grants — a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in
terms of the amount and time of receipt.

9) All Other Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any
other funds that will be used for the project.

26.823.280 TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 34, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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SECTION VIil. 1120.130 - FINANCIAL VIABILITY

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding, or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

1. “A” Bond rating or better

2. All the project’s capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

3. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

4. The applicant provides a third-party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor.

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information to be provided

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 35, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall
provide viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available
and for the first full fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project
completion. When the applicant's facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the
facility is a member of a health care system that has combined or consolidated financial statements, the
system's viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care system includes one or more hospitals, the
system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the applicable hospital standards.

Historical Projected
3 Years

Enter Historical and/or Projected
Years:

Current Ratio

Net Margin Percentage

Percent Debt to Total Capitalization

Projected Debt Service Coverage

Days Cash on Hand

Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the
calculation and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a
separate table for each co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

Variance

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another
organization, public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt
obligations should the applicant default.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 36, IN NUMERICAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION
FORM.
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SECTION IX. 1120.140 - ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120.

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by
submitting a notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to
one of the following:

1) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with
cash and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds,
received pledge receipts and funded depreciation; or

2) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or
in part by borrowing because:

A) A portion or all the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance
sheet asset accounts to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for
hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and
the existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or
used to retire debt within a 60-day period.

B. Conditions of Debt Financing

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized
statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as
applicable:

1) That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net
cost available.

2) That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost
available but is more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges,
no required mortgage, access to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing
costs and other factors.

3) That the project involves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities
and that the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly
than constructing a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs
Read the criterion and provide the following:
1. ldentify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost

and square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using the
following format (insert after this page).
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COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE

A B

C D E F G H
Department Total
(List below) Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. $ Mod. $ Cost
New Mod. New Circ.* | Mod. Circ.* (AxC) (BxE) (G+H)

Contingency

TOTALS

* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation

D. Projected Operating Costs

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per
equivalent patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no
more than two years following project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of
salaries, benefits and supplies for the service.

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per

equivalent patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years
following project completion.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 37, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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SECTION X. SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes all the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE
PROJECTS AND PROJECTS TO DISCONTINUE HEALTH CARE FACILITIES [20 ILCS 3960/5.4]:

1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, including the
impact on racial and health care disparities in the community, to the extent that it is feasible for an
applicant to have such knowledge.

2. The project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety
net services, if reasonably known to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in each
community, if reasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include all the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care
provided by the applicant. The amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the
reporting requirements for charity care reporting in the lllinois Community Benefits Act. Non-hospital
applicants shall report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate methodology specified by
the Board.

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to Medicaid
patients. Hospital and non-hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner consistent
with the information reported each year to the lllinois Department of Public Health regarding "Inpatients
and Outpatients Served by Payor Source" and "Inpatient and Outpatient Net Revenue by Payor Source”
as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net services, including information
regarding teaching, research, and any other service.

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 37.

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) Year Year Year
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total
Charity (cost in dollars)
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total
MEDICAID
Medicaid (# of patients) Year Year Year
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total
Medicaid (revenue)
Inpatient
Outpatient
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Total ‘

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 38, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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SECTION X. CHARITY CARE INFORMATION

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects [1120.20(c)].

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three
audited fiscal years, the cost of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient
revenue.

2. If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual

facility located in lllinois. If charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis, the applicant
shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity care; the ratio of that charity care to the net
patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of charity care costs; and
the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

3. If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer
source, anticipated charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue
by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care” means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect
to receive payment from the patient or a third-party payer (20 ILCS 3960/3). Charity Care must be
provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 39.

CHARITY CARE

Year Year Year

Net Patient Revenue

Amount of Charity Care (charges)

Cost of Charity Care

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 39, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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SECTION XI -SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AND 500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN DETERMINATION FORM

In accordance with Executive Order 2006-5 (EO 5), the Health Facilities & Services Review Board (HFSRB) must
determine if the site of the CRITICAL FACILITY, as defined in EO 5, is in @ mapped floodplain (Special Flood Hazard
Area) or a 500-year floodplain. All state agencies are required to ensure that before a permit, grant or a development is
planned or promoted, the proposed project meets the requirements of the Executive Order, including compliance with
the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and state floodplain regulation.

1. Applicant:
(Name) (Address)
(City) (State) (ZIP Code) (Telephone Number)
2. Project Location:
(Address) (City) (State)
(County) (Township) (Section)

3. You can create a small map of your site showing the FEMA floodplain mapping using the FEMA Map Service
Center website (https://msc.fema.gov/portal/lhome) by entering the address for the property in the Search bar. If
a map, like that shown on page 2 is shown, select the Go to NFHL Viewer tab above the map. You can print a

=,
copy of the floodplain map by selecting the < icon in the top corner of the page. Select the pin tool icon
and place a pin on your site. Print a FIRMETTE size image.

If there is no digital floodplain map available select the View/Print FIRM icon above the aerial photo. You will
then need to use the Zoom tools provided to locate the property on the map and use the Make a FIRMette tool
to create a pdf of the floodplain map.

IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA: Yes__ No ?

IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN THE 500-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN?

If you are unable to determine if the site is in the mapped floodplain or 500-year floodplain, contact the county or the
local community building or planning department for assistance.
If the determination is being made by a local official, please complete the following:

FIRM Panel Number: Effective Date:
Name of Official: Title:
Business/Agency: Address:
(City) (State) (ZIP Code) (Telephone Number)
Signature: Date:

NOTE: This finding only means that the property in question is or is not in a Special Flood Hazard Area or a 500-year
floodplain as designated on the map noted above. It does not constitute a guarantee that the property will or will not be
flooded or be subject to local drainage problems.

If you need additional help, contact the lllinois Statewide Floodplain Program at 217/782-4428
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The image below is an example of the floodplain mapping required as part of the IDPH swimming facility construction
permit showing that the swimming pool, to undergo a major alteration, is outside the mapped floodplain.
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After paginating the entire completed application indicate, in the chart below, the page numbers for the included

attachments:
INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS
ATTACHMENT
NO. PAGES
1 Applicant Identification including Certificate of Good Standing 34 - 51
2 Site Ownership 52 — 53
3 Persgns wit.h 5 percent or greatgr interest in the licensee must be 5470
identified with the % of ownership.
4 Organizational Relationships (Organizational Chart) Certificate of
Good Standing Etc. -2
5 Flood Plain Requirements 73-75
6 Historic Preservation Act Requirements 76 — 79
7 Project and Sources of Funds Itemization 80 - 81
8 Financial Commitment Document if required 82
9 Cost Space Requirements 83
10 Discontinuation -
11 Background of the Applicant 84 -93
12 Purpose of the Project 94 — 103
13 Alternatives to the Project 104 - 106
14 Size of the Project 107 - 110
15 Project Service Utilization 111-112
16 Unfinished or Shell Space 113
17 Assurances for Unfinished/Shell Space 114
18 Master Design and Related Projects -
Service Specific: -
19 Medical Surgical Pediatrics, Obstetrics, ICU -
20 Comprehensive Physical Rehabilitation -
21 Acute Mental lliness -
22 Open Heart Surgery -
23 Cardiac Catheterization -
24 In-Center Hemodialysis -
25 Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery -
26 Selected Organ Transplantation -
27 Kidney Transplantation -
28 Subacute Care Hospital Model -
29 Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center -
30 Long Term Acute Care Hospital -
31 Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service 115 — 121
32 Freestanding Emergency Center -
33 Birth Center -
Financial and Economic Feasibility:
34 Availability of Funds 122 — 150
35 Financial Waiver 151
36 Financial Viability 151
37 Economic Feasibility 152 — 157
38 Safety Net Impact Statement 158 — 164
39 Charity Care Information 165 — 166
40 Flood Plain Information 167
APPENDIX 168+
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Type of Ownership of Applicants

(<] Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
] For-profit Corporation ] Governmental
] Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship ] Other

Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good standing.
Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and address
of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Certificates of Good Standing for the applicants are provided as Attachment #1

Provided for Attachment #1:
Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation
IL Certificate of Good Standing
Advocate Aurora Health, Inc.
IL Certificate of Good Standing
DE Certificate of Good Standing
Authorization for Advocate Aurora Health, Inc. to conduct business in IL
Advocate Health, Inc.
IL Certificate of Good Standing
DE Certificate of Good Standing
Authorization for Advocate Health, Inc. to conduct business in IL
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#23-045

File Number 1004-695-5

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Alexi Giannoulias, Secretary of State of the State of 1llinois, do
hereby certify that I am the keeper of the records of the

Department of Business Services. I certify that

ADVOCATE HEALTH AND HOSPITALS CORPORATION, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON SEPTEMBER 12, 1906, APPEARS
TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 3RD

dayof MARCH A.D. 2023

iy T =
A
Authenticaton @ 2306203384 verifiable untl 031032024 4 E . gi {
Aithenticate st hips S www Bsos oy
SECRETARY OF STATE
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Delaware

The First State

I, JEFFREY W. BULLOCK, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY "ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC." IS DULY
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE AND IS IN GOOD
STANDING AND HAS A LEGAL CORPORATE EXISTENCE S50 FAR AS THE RECORDS
OF THIS OFFICE SHOW, AS OF THE SIXTH DAY OF MARCH, A.D. 2Z023.

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE AFORESAID CORPORATION
IS AN EXEMPT CORPORATION.

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE ANNUAL REPORTS HAVE
BEEN FILED TO DATE.

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE SAID "ADVOCATE AURORA
HEALTH, INC." WAS INCORPORATED ON THE FOURTH DAY OF DECEMBER, A.D.

2017.

ey WO Bulelh, Sritetery of Blate

6645600 8300C Authentication: 202841531
SR# 20230875743 . o Date: 03-06-23

You rmay werify this certificate online at corp. delaware. gov/autivwer. shiml
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File Number 7155-851-7

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Alexi Giannoulias, Secretary of State of the State of 1llinois, do
hereby certify that I am the keeper of the records of the

Department of Business Services. I certify that

ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC., INCORPORATED IN DELAWARE AND LICENSED
TO CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN THIS STATE ON APRIL 03, 2018, APPEARS TO HAVE
COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS A FOREIGN
CORPORATION IN GOOD STANDING AND AUTHORIZED TO CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN THE

STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 3RD

dayof MARCH A.D. 2023

.I"I. 0
=
Authenticaton §: 2306203464 verifiable untl 031032024 4 E . ﬂi {
Authenticate at hipsfwww 508 gov
SECRETARY OF STATE
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

JESSE WHITE » Secretary of State

APRIL 3, 2018 7155-851-7

CT CORPORATION SYSTEM
118 W EDWARDS #200
SPRINGFIELD IL 62704

RE ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC.

DEAR SIR OR MADAM:

ENCLOSED YOU WILL FIND THE AUTHORITY OF THE ABOVE NAMED
CORPORATION TO CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN THIS STATE.

PAYMENT OF THE FILING FEE IS HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGED.

CERTAIN NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATIONS ORGANIZED AS A CHARITABLE
CORPORATION ARE REQUIRED TO REGISTER WITH THE OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY
GENERAL. UPON RECEIPT OF THE ENCLOSED AUTHORITY, YOU MUST CONTACT
THE CHARITABLE TRUST DIVISION, OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL,

100 W. RANDOLPH, 3RD FLOOR, CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60601, TELEPHONE

(312) 814-2595,

SINCERELY,

JESSE WHITE

SECRETARY OF STATE

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS SERVICES
CORPORATION DIVISION

TELEPHONE (217) 782-6961
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

FORM NFP 113,15 (rev. Doc. 2003) FILED

APPLICATION FOR AUTHORITY
TO CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN . APR 0 3 2018

ILLINOIS [Foreign Corparations)
Ganeral Mot For Profil Corparation Act JESSE WHITE

] of Stale
scratary SECRETARY OF STATE

File & -1 155'_%5 "-.1 Fillng Fee: §50  Approved: _ﬁc"‘__

———— Submit In duplicats ——— — Type or Print clearly In Black Ink — —— — Do not write above this line ————
. & Corporale Name: _Advocate Aurora Heshh, inc.

-

b. Assumed Corporale Name (Complele only if the new corporate nama is not available in this state.):

By electing this assumed name, the Corporafion hereby agrees NOT fo use iis corporate name in the transaction of
business in Niinois. Form NFP 104.15 is attached.

2. a. State or Country of Incorporation: Delaware
b. Date of incofporation: December 4, 2017
¢. Period of Duration: Permanent

3. a. Address of Principal Ofice, whersver located: 3075 Highland Plowy.,

Downers Grove, L 60515-1206
b. Address of Principal Office in Ningis: 3075 Highland Plwy.,
Downers Grove, IL_60515-1206

4. Mame and Address of Registered Agent and Registered Office in [Minois:
Reglstered Agent: Earl J. Bames i

Firsl Mome Middin Nama Lai fams

Ragistered : 3075 Highland Suite 60D
Ofice: Nurrhrmr Sireet “Sin 7 (P10, Bax Alor 18 unacoRpianE]

Downers Grove B0515 DuPage County
ity s oF Cods County

5. Stales and Countries in which Corporation is admitted or qualified to conduct atfairs: Wisconsin (application pending)

6. Mames and respective addresses ol Corporation's olficers and dinectors:
Stren Addross City Gl TP

President See attached
Secretary
Direcior
Director
Diractor

If there are additional officers or more than three directors, please attach list.

[Printied by autharity of tha Sisle of Hilnois. Jasuary 20015 - 1 - & 180,15
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#23-045

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

. Purpose(s) for which the Corporation Is organized and proposas to pursue in the conduct of affairs in this State:
For more space, attach additional sheets of this size.

See aftached,

8. This applicaion must be accompanied by an originally certified copy of the Articles of Incorporation and any amend-
ments or mergers, duly authenticated within the last 90 days by the proper officar of the state or country wharain the
corporation ks incorporated.

9. The undersigned Corporation has caused this stalement o be slgned by a duly authorized officer who affirms, under
penalties ol perjury, that the facts stated hereln are true and correct, All signatures must be in BLACK INK.

pated _ Prpyil 1, 3-01€ 2018 _Advocste Aurora Health, Inc.
h Yaar " Exatl Mams of Corparatian

g a7 -
Michael , Secratary @
L%mmmwm

A Corporation that is to funclion as a club, as defined in Section 1-3.24 of the Liquor Control Act of 1934, must insert In is
purpose clause a statement that It will comply with the State and local laws and ondinances relating to alcohellc

liquors.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

#23-045

IS5 -gS1M

ATTACHMENT TO APPLICATION FOR AUTHORITY
TO CONDUCT BUSINESS IN ILLINOIS (FORM NFP 113.15)

ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC.

FOR

Section 6: NAMES AND ADDRESSES OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Officers:

Office/Name

Address

Co-CEO - James H. Skogsbergh

cfo Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.
3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60513

Co-CEO - Nick W. Turkal, M.D.

oo Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.
3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515

Treasurer — Dominic Makis

oo Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.
3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515

Secretary — Michael Lappin

co Aurora Advocate Health, Ine.
3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515

Chair — Joanna Disch

co Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515

Chair Elect = Michele Baker
Richardson

cfo Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.
3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, [L 60515
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ILLINOIS I-_IEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition
1SS 3o\l
Dircctors:
Name Address

Michelc Baker Richardson ¢fo Aurora Advocate Health, Inc,

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
John F. Timmer cfo Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Lynn Y. Crump-Caine /o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, 1L 60515
K. Richard Jakle c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Mark M. Harris ¢/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
David B, Anderson c/o Aurora Advocatc Health, Inc,

3075 Hightand Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 605135
James H. Skogsbergh c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Joanne Disch c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc. :

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Jokn W, Danicls, Jr. c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Joanne B. Bauer ¢/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 6§00, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Charles Harvey c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inec.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Rick Weiss oo Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Thomas Bolger cfo Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Wick W. Turkal c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc,

3075 Highland Pkwy Suitc 600, Downers Grove, IL 605135

4835-2086-4054.2
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

#23-045

558511

Section 7: PURPOSE(S) FOR WHICH THE CORPORATION 1S ORGANIZED AND PROPOSES TO PURSUE IN
THE CONDUCT OF AFFAIRS IN THIS STATE:

The Corporation is organized and shall be operated exclusively for charitable, scientific,
religious and educational purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Intermal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (or the corresponding provisions of any future United States
Internal Revenue Law) (hercinafter the “Code™); and limited as further provided in its Certificate
of Incorporation. Specifically, the Corporation is organized and shall be operated exclusively for
the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of its supported
organizations, as listed below (the “Supported Organizations™). The Corporation is organized
and operated as a Type 11T functionally integrated supporting organization as defined in section
50%(a)(3) of the Code and Treas. Reg. Scction 1.509(a)-4(i). The Corporation is organized for
the purposc of serving as the parent organization of the Supported Organizations and shall
exercise direction over the policies, programs and activities of the Supported Organizations. The
Corporation shall engage in activitics relating to the purposes described above, and invest in,
reccive, hold, use, and dispose of all property, real or personal, as may be necessary or desirable
to carry into effect such purposes. The Corporation is formed as a result of the affiliation of
Advocate Health Care Network, an Illinois nonprofit corporation (Advecate™) and Aurora
Health Care, Inc., a Wisconsin nonstock corporation (“Aurora™), in accordance with the terms
and conditions of that certain Affiliation Agreement between Advocate and Aurora dated
December 4, 2017 (the “Affiliation Agreement™).

The Corporation’s Supported Organizations, which are described in Section 50%(a)(1) or
Scction 509(a)(2) of the Code, are as follows:

* Advocate Health and Hospitals + Aurora Health Care Central, Inc.
Corporation
+ Aurora Psychiatric Hospital, Inc.
» EHS Home Health Care Services, Inc.
* Aurora Medical Center of Washington

# Advocate Charitable Foundation County, Ine,
* Advocate North Side Health Network + Aurora Health Care Nurrlh,‘lnc.
* Meridian Hospice West Allis Mcmorial Hospital, Tne.

4B35-2800-4084.2

Advocate Condell Medical Center
Advocate Sherman Hospital
Sherman West Court

Visiting Mursc Association of
‘Wisconsin, Inc.

Aurora UW Academic Medical Group

LGH CAC Expansion and Modernization

Aurora Family Service, Inc.

" Aurora Medical Center of Oshkosh,

Inc.
Aurora Medical Group, Inc.
Kradwell School, Inc.

Aurora Advanced Healthcare, Inc.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition
\S5-8517
¢ Aurora Health Care Metro, Ine. *  AMG Illinois, Lid.
i
» Aurora Health Care Southern Lakes, & Aurora Medical Center Grafton
Ine.
L]
4
4835208840842
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

Delaware

The First State

I, JEFFREY W. BULLOCK, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, IN} HEREBY CERTIFY "ADVQCATE HEALTH, INC." IS DULY
INCORFPORATED UNDER THE LARS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE AND IS IN GOOD
STANDING AND HAS A LEGAL CORFORATE EXISTENCE 50 FAR AS THE RECORDS
OF THIS OFFICE SHOW, AS OF THE TWENTY-THIRD DAY OF MARCH, A.D.
2023,

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE AFORESATD CORPORATION
IS AN EXEMPT CORPORATTION.

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE ANNUAL REFPORTS HAVE
BEEN FILED TO DATE.

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE SAID "ADVOCATE HEALTH,

INC." WAS INCORPORATED ON THE NINTH DAY OF MAY, A.D. 2022.

N

Jlﬂrwﬂ [T 'h-:rmvl!lrll ]

6784938 E300C
SR# 20231117363

You may verify this certificate online at corp.defaware. povy/authver. shoml

Authentication: 202938197
Date: 03-23-23
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

File Number 7376-313-4

G b

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Alexi Giannoulias, Secretary of State of the State of 1llinois, do
hereby certify that I am the keeper of the records of the

Department of Business Services. I certify that

ADVOCATE HEALTH, INC., INCORPORATED IN DELAWARE AND LICENSED TO
CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN THIS STATE ON JUNE 28, 2022, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT
OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS A FOREIGN CORPORATION IN GOOD
STANDING AND AUTHORIZED TO CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Tmﬁmuny Whereoﬁ I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 3RD

dayof MARCH A.D. 2023

A
Authenticaton @ 2306203416 verifiable untl 031032024 4 E . gi {

Authenticate at hifpsdwww Bsos. gov
SECRETARY OF STATE
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE
JESSE WHITE-Secretary of State

T7376-313-4
JUNE 28, 2022

C T CORPORATION SYSTEM
208 30 LASALLE ST, SUITE 814
CHICAGD, IL &0604-1101

RE ADVOCATE HEALTH, INC.

DEAR SIR OR MADAM:

ENCLOSED YOU WILL FIND THE AUTHORITY OF THE ABOVE HAMED
CORPORATION TO CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN THIS STATE.

PAYMENT OF THE FILING FEE IS5 HEREEY ACKNOWLEDGED.

CERTAIN WOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATIONS ORGANIZED AS A CHARITABLE
CORPORATION ARE REQUIRED TO REGISTER WITH THE OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY
GENERAL. UPOM RECEIPT OF THE ENCLOSED AUTHORITY, YOU MUST CONTACT
THE CHARITRELE TRUST DIVISION, OFFICE OF THE ATTORMEY GENERAL,

100 W. RANDOLPH, 3RD FLOOR, CHICAGO, ILLINOIS e0&0l, TELEPHOME

(312) 814-25%5.

SINCERELY,

JESSE WHITE

SECRETARY OF STATE

DEPARTMENT OF BUSIMESS SERVICES
COREFORATION DIVISION

TELEPHONE (217) 782-6961
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

FoRM NFP 113.15 jrev. Dec. 2003)
APPLICATION FOR AUTHORITY
TO CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN

ILLINDIS [Fi Caorporati E
Genaral NEJlmF':‘rgll*‘mﬁt ua.rp-nmtr mii':ln Act F E E D
Secretary of State
Dwparment of Business Services JUN 2 8 2022
Sorinntots 1 soisa JESSE WH

i ITE
2077821604
www,lls0s. 00V SECRETARY OF ESTATE

Rermit paymant in B lorm of & cashiar's
check, cortified check, money arder o an
llinois atormey's o CPA's check payable
1o Secretary ol State.

P b (PN Y Filing Fee: $50  Approved: _ﬁf-_,

=== = Submit in duplicate —— - = Type ar Prini clearly In block Ink — —— — Do not write above this line ————
1. a. Corporate Mame:; Advocaie Health, Inc.

b. Assumed Carpurme- Mame {'Gnmplalg only if tha new corporate name is no! available in this state ):

By electing this assumed name, the Corporation hereby agrees NOT to use its corporate name In the transaction of
business in lllinois, Form NFP 104,15 is aftached.

2. a. State or Country of Incorporation: Delaware

b. Date of Incorporation: May 9, 2022
. Pood of Duration: D—E{" ﬂi?_,’r"-«JLi
3. 8. Address of Principal Office, wharquar located: 1000 Blzﬂhﬂ Boulevard, Charlgtte, NC 28203

b. Address of Principal Office in lllingss: 3075 Highland Parkway, Suite 800, Downers Grove, L 60515

4. Name and Address of Registered Agent and Registered Office in llinois:
Registered Agent: CT Garporatian System

First Mama Micdla Nama Lagt Nama
Registered Office; 208 5. LaSalle Streel 814
Huembar Street Suila # (P, Bax alne |6 UNaccepianie)
Chicago G004 Cook
City - ZIF Code T County

5. States and Countries in which Corparation is admitted or qualified to conduct affairs: Delaware

8. Mames and respective addresses of Corporation's officers and direciors:

Eireal Addreaz Ciy Ceals  JIP

Prasidant Please see altached list
Secrelary

Diractor

Direcior

Diractor

H there are additional offlcers or more than three directors, please attach list.

Printad by autharty of the Siate of Ilinols. Jaruary 2008 - 1 - C 060015
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

7. Purpose(s) for which the Corporation is organized and proposes to pursue in the conduct of afiairs in this State:
For more space, attach additional sheeta of this slze.
Please see allached purpose.

8. This application must be agcompanied by an originally certified copy of the Articles of Incorporation and any amend-
ments or mergers, duly authenticatad within the last 80 days by the proper officer of the state or country wherein the
corporation is incorporated.

9. The undersigned Corporation has caused this statemant 1o be signed bty a duly autharized gfticer who affirms, under
penaliies of pesjury, that the facts stated herein are true and correct. All signatures must be in BLACK INK.

Dated June ar , 2022 Adwocate Health, Inc. L
Gacutigsed by. Mgrth Day Yoar Exact Nama of Cargoration
Miclarl il

=TT R i thorizod Offcar's Signaturg
Michael Graba, Treasurar
Wama and Tida {ypa or print)

A Corporation that is lo funclion as a elub, as defined in Section 1-3.24 of the Liguor Control Act of 1934, must insed in ils

purposa clause a siatermant that it will comply with the State and local laws and ordinances relating to alcoholic
liquors.
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NAME
Eugene Woods

James Skogsbergh

Michael Grebe

Brett Denlon

LGH CAC Expansion and Modernization

#23-045

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

T3 -2 B4

ADVOCATE HEALTH, INC,

OFFICER AND DIRECTOR LIST

TITLE
Co-Chiel Execulive OiMcer

Co-Chiel’ Executive O[Ticer

Treasurer

Scorelary

ADDRESS
1000 Blythe Boulevard
Charlotie, NC 28203

3075 Highland Parkway, Suite 600
Downers Grove, 1L 60313

750 Wesl Virginia Street
Milwaukee, W1 33204

1000 Blythe Boulevard
Charlote, MC 28203
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

T30 - 3v3 4

PURPOSE OF ADVOCATE HEALTH, INC, (THE “CORPORATION™)

The Corporation is a nonprolil corporation and is organized and shall be operated exclusively for
charitable purposes within the meaning of Section 500(c)i(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as now in elfect or as may herealier be amended (the “Code”), including the making ol
distributions as permitted under Section 501{cH3) of the Code. In Furtherance thereof, the
Corporation shall operate exclusively lor the benelil of, perform the funclions of, carry oul the
purposes of, and support The Charlotte-Mecklenburg Hospital Authorily; Morth Carolina Baplist
Hospilal, Wake Forest University Health Sciences; AHSNF, Inc; AH Georgia, Inc., Navicent
Health, Inc.; Floyd Healthcare Management, Inc.; Atrium Health Foundation; Advocate Health
and Hospitals Corporation; EHS Home Health Services, Inc.; Advocale Chartable Foundation;
Advocate North Side Health Network; Meridian Hospice, Advocale Condell Medical Center;
Advocale Sherman Hospital; Visiting Nurse Association of Wisconsin, Inc.; Auwrora UW
Academic Medical Group, Inc.; Aurora Health Care Metro, Inc.; Aurora Health Care Southern
Lakes, Inc.; Aurora Health Care Central, Ine.; Awrora Psychiatric Hospital, Inc,; Awroma
Medical Center of Washington County, Inc.; Aurora Health Care Morth, Inc.; West Allis
Memorial Hospital, Inc.; Aurara Family Service, Inc.; Aurora Medical Center of Oshkosh, Ing,;
Aurora Medical Group, Inc;, Aurcra Advanced Healthcare, Inc.; AMG Minois, Tid; Aurora
Medical Cenmer Gralion, LLC; Awrora Medical Center Bay Area, Ing,; and Kradwell School,
Inc., each of which are exempt From federal income laxation under Section 501(a) of the Code as
an organizalion described in Section 501{c}3) ol the Code and classified as other than a private
foundation under Section 509315 or Section 3092} of the Code or a political subdivision
as defined in 26 CFR § 1.103-1. The Corporation may solicit, raise, receive, hold, invest and
expend funds for the advancement and furtherance of such purposes as permitted by law,
and may engage in any and all activities in furtherance of, related to, or incidental 1o these
purposes, which may  lawfully be camied on by a8 corporation formed under the
General Corporation Law ol Delawarg (“"DGCL™), except as restricted in the Certificale of
Incorporation or in the Bylaws ol the Corporation,
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

Site Ownership

[Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation

Address of Site Owner: 2025 Windsor Drive, Oak Brook, IL 60523

Street Address or Legal Description of the Site: 1775 Dempster Street, Park Ridge, IL 60068

Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of ownership
are property tax statements, tax assessor’'s documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation
attesting to ownership, an option to lease, a letter of intent to lease, or a lease.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 2, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

The proposed site is at the Advocate Lutheran General Hospital’s Center for Advanced Care located at
1700 Luther Lane, Park Ridge, IL 60068. Please see Attachment #2 Exhibit 1.

LGH CAC Expansion and Modernization Page 52 Attachment 2



#23-045

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

=}k Advocate Health Care-

Mow part of vis ADVOCATEHEALTH

3075 Highland Parkway T {630} S72-9393
Suile GO0 F (630) 990-4752
Dérwenviers Grove, IL BOSLS wivocateheslth, corm

July 19, 2023

hir, John kKniery

Administraior

Iinopis Health Faci fties and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2nd Floor
Springfield, llinais 62761

Re: Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation d/b/a Lutheran
General Hospital - CAC Expansion

Dear Mr. Kniery:

This attestation letter is submitted to indicate that Advocate Health and Hospitals
Corporation d/bfa Advocate Lutheran General Hospital owns the site of the hospital located
al 1775 Dempster Street, Park Ridge, Illinois 60068,

We trust this attestation complies with the State Agency Proof of ownership
requirements indicated in the Permit application — June 2022 edition,

Respectfully,
7% ?: L
William Santulli

President
Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation

Subscribed and sworn to me
Thisl day ufaz?’#_ 2023

AL 8
HIGHAEL E. KDEIFI?HII\I&
Hatary Public, State
n::ommlsﬂn-n. E‘I.plrl!s w:mu:a
Commission No. 2860659

SIZN2v] VIWR2I 52 AM
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

Operating ldentity/Licensee
[Provide this information for each applicable facility and insert after this page.]

Exact Legal Name: Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation d/b/a Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

Address: 1775 Dempster Street, Park Ridge, IL 60068

X Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
] For-profit Corporation ] Governmental
L] Limited Liability Company L] Sole Proprietorship L] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois Certificate of Good Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of
ownership.

Certificates of Good Standing for the applicants are provided as

Attachment #3
Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation
IL Certificate of Good Standing
Advocate Aurora Health, Inc.
IL Certificate of Good Standing
DE Certificate of Good Standing
Authorization for Advocate Aurora Health, Inc. to conduct business in IL
Advocate Health, Inc.
IL Certificate of Good Standing
DE Certificate of Good Standing
Authorization for Advocate Health, Inc. to conduct business in IL
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#23-045

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

File Number 1004-695-5

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Alexi Giannoulias, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that I am the keeper of the records of the

Department of Business Services. I certify that

ADVOCATE HEALTH AND HOSPITALS CORPORATION, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER. THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON SEPTEMBER 12, 1906, APPEARS
TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPOBRATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF [LLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 3RD

dayof MARCH A.D. 2023

".'I- N
e
Authenticaton @ 2306203384 verifiable until 031032024 1 ﬁ U gi {

Authenticate at Fitpsshww Bs0s. gov
SECRETARY OF STATE
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

Delaware

The First State

I, JEFFREY W. BULLOCK, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY "ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC." IS DULY
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWNARE AND IS IN GOOD
STANDING AND HAS A LEGAL CORPORATE EXISTENCE S50 FAR AS THE RECORDS
OF THIS OFFICE SHOW, AS OF THE SIXTH DAY OF MARCH, A.D. 2Z023.

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE AFORESAID CORPORATION
IS AN EXEMPT CORPORATION.

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE ANNUAL REPORTS HAVE
BEEN FILED TO DATE.

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE SAID "ADVOCATE AURORA
HEALTH, INC." WAS INCORPORATED ON THE FOURTH DAY OF DECEMEBER, A.D.

2017.

W‘i
Qﬂﬂhqw Bulielh, Beiietary of Blats )
6645600 B300C Authentication: 202841931
SRE 20230875743 Ty Date: 03-06-23

You rmay verify this certificate online at corp.delaware. gov/autivwer. shiml
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#23-045

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

JESSE WHITE » Secretary of State

APRIL 3, 2018 7155-851-7

CT CORPORATION SYSTEM
118 W EDWARDS #200
SPRINGFIELD IL 62704

RE ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC.

DEAR SIR OR MADAM:

ENCLOSED YOU WILL FIND THE AUTHORITY OF THE ABOVE NAMED
CORPORATION TO CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN THIS STATE.

PAYMENT OF THE FILING FEE IS HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGED.

CERTAIN NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATIONS ORGANIZED AS A CHARITABLE
CORPORATION ARE REQUIRED TO REGISTER WITH THE OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY
GENERAL. UPON RECEIPT OF THE ENCLOSED AUTHORITY, YOU MUST CONTACT
THE CHARITABLE TRUST DIVISION, OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL,

100 W. RANDOLPH, 3RD FLOOR, CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60601, TELEPHONE

(312) 814-2595.

SINCERELY,

JESSE WHITE

SECRETARY OF STATE

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS SERVICES
CORPORATION DIVISION

TELEPHONE (217) 782-6961
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#23-045

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

FORM NFP 113,15 (rev. Doc. 2003) FI‘LED

APPLICATION FOR AUTHORITY
TO CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN . APR 0 3 2018

ILLINOIS [Foreign Corparations)
General Not For Profit Corporation Act JESSE WHITE

] of Stale
scratary SECRETARY OF STATE

File & -1 155'_%5 "-.1 Fillng Fee: §50  Approved: _ﬁc"‘__

e Gt In duplicate ——— = Type or Print clearly In black Ink ———— Do not write above this ilng ———=—
. & Corporale Name: _Advecate Aurgra Heslth, Inc.

-

b. Assumed Corporale Name (Complele only if the new corporate nama is not available in this state.):

By electing this assumed name, the Corporafion hereby agrees NOT fo use iis corporate name in the transaction of
business in llinois. Form NFP 104.15 is attached.

2. a. State or Country of Incorporation: Delaware
b. Date of incofporation: December 4, 2017
¢. Period of Duration; Permanent

3. a. Address of Principal Ofice, whersver located: 3075 Highland Plowy.,

Downers Grove, L 60515-1206
b. Address of Principal Office in Ningis: 3075 Highland Plwy.,
Downers Grove, IL_60515-1206

4. Mame and Address of Registered Agent and Registered Oflice in [linois:

Reglsterad Earl J. Bames il
Agent: Firel Mome Middip Nama Lasi Hame

Ragistered : 3075 Highland Suite 60D
Ofice: Nurrhrmr Sireet “Sin 7 (720, Bax Alor 18 unacospianE]

Downers Grove B0515 DuPage County
ity s oF Cods County

5. Stales and Countries in which Corporation is admitted or qualified to conduct atfairs: Wisconsin (application pending)

6. Mames and respective addresses ol Corporation’s officers and dinectors:
Stren Addross City Gl TP

President See attached
Secretary
Direclor
Director
Direcior

If there are additional officers or more than three directors, please attach list.

[Printied by autharity of tha Sisle of Hilnois. Jasuary 20015 - 1 - & 180,15
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#23-045

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

. Purpose(s) for which the Corporation Is organized and proposas to pursue in the conduct of affairs in this State:
For more space, attach additional sheets of this size.

See aftached,

8. This applicaion must be accompanied by an originally certified copy of the Articles of Incorporation and any amend-
ments or mergers, duly authenticated within the last 90 days by the proper officar of the state or country wharain the
corporation s incorporated.

9. The undersigned Corporation has caused this stalement to be slgned by a duly authorized officer who affirms, under
penalties ol pedury, that the facis stated hereln are true and correct. All signatures mus! be in BLACK INK.

pated _Fpyil 1, 3-DIE 2018 Advocate Aurora Heallh, Inc.
h

Yaar " Exatl Mams of Corparatian

g a7 -
Michael , Secratary @
Lqr;ﬂummmurm

A Corporation that is to funclion as a club, as defined in Section 1-3.24 of the Liquor Control Act of 1934, must insert In is
purpose clause a statement that It will comply with the State and local laws and ordinances relating to alcohollc

liquors.
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#23-045

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

I\SS -5

ATTACHMENT TO APPLICATION FOR AUTHORITY
TO CONDUCT BUSINESS IN ILLINOIS (FORM NFP 113.15)
FOR
ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC.

Section 6: NAMES AND ADDRESSES OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
Officers:
Office/Name Address

Co-CEOQ - James H. Skogsbergh | /o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.
_ _ 3075 Highland Pkewy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Co-CEOQ - Mick W. Turkal, M.D. | oo Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.
3075 Highland Plwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515

Treasurer — Dominic Makis oo Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Secretary — Michael Lappin c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Ine.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Chair — Joanna Disch c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Plowy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515 _|
Chair Elect = Michele Baker cfo Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.
Richardson 3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, [L 60515

A835-2688-4064.2
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

#23-045

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

1SS s\
Dircetors:
Name Address
Michele Baker Richardson ¢/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.
3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
John F. Timmer c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515

Lynn Y. Crump-Caine

cfo Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.
3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, 1L 60515

K. Richard Jakle c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.
3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Mark M. Harris ¢fo Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515

David B. Anderson

oo Aurora Advocate Health, Inc,
3075 Hightand Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 605135

James H. Skogsbergh

c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515

Joanne Disch

¢o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.
3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515

John W. Danicls, Jr.

¢/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.
3075 Highland Plwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515

Joanne B. Bauer

c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.
3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515

Charles Harvey c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Rick Weiss ¢/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 6§00, Downers Grove, IL 60515
Thomas Bolger cfo Aurora Advocate Health, Inc.

3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515

Mick W. Turkal

c/o Aurora Advocate Health, Inc,
3075 Highland Pkwy Suite 600, Downers Grove, IL 60515

4835-2888-4054.2
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#23-045

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

TIS5-5511

Section 7: PUrRPOSE(S) FOR WHICH THE CORPORATION 1S ORGANIZED AND PROPOSES TO PURSUE IN
THE CONDUCT OF AFFAIRS IN THIS STATE:

The Corporation is organized and shall be operated exclusively for charitable, scientific,
religious and educational purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenuc Code of 1986, as amended (or the corresponding provisions of any future United States
Internal Revenue Law) (hercinafter the “Code™); and limited as further provided in its Certificate
of Incorporation. Specifically, the Corporation is organized and shall be operated exclusively for
the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of its supported
organizations, as listed below (the “Supported Organizations”). The Corporation is organized
and operated as a Type III functionally integrated supporting organization as defined in section
509(a)(3) of the Code and Treas. Reg. Scction 1.509(a)-4(i). The Corporation is organized for
the purposc of serving as the parent organization of the Supported Organizations and shall
excrcise direction over the policies, programs and activities of the Supported Organizations. The
Corporation shall engage in activilics rclating to the purposes described above, and invest in,
receive, hold, use, and dispose of all property, real or personal, as may be necessary or desirable
to carry into effect such purposes. The Corporation is formed as a result of the affiliation of
Advocate Health Care Network, an lllinois nonprofit corporation (“Advocate™) and Aurora
Health Carg, Inc., a Wisconsin nonstock corporation (“Auroera™), in accordance with the terms
and conditions of that certain Affiliation Agreement between Advocate and Aurora dated
December 4, 2017 (the “ Affiliation Agreement™),

The Corporation’s Supported Organizations, which are described in Section 50%(a)(1) or
Scction 509(a)(2) of the Code, are as follows:

= Advocate Health and Hospitals = Aurora Health Care Central, Inc.
Corporation
» Aurora Psychiatric Hospital, Inc.
» EHS Homec Health Care Services, Inc.
*» Aurora Medical Center of Washington

# Advocate Charitable Foundation County, Inc,

« Advocate North Side Health Network « Aurora Health Care North, Inc.

» Mendian Hospice = Waest Allis Mcmorial Hospital, Tnc.

« Advocate Condell Medical Center e Aurora Family Service, Inc.

« Advocate Sherman Hospital . ;ﬂmmm Medical Center of Oshkosh,
nc.

#  Sherman West Court
+  Augrora Medical Group, Inc.
= Visiting Nursc Association of
Wisconsin, Inc. » Kradwell School, Inc.

e  Aurora UW Academic Medical Group +  Aurora Advanced Healthcare, Inc.

4B35-20800-4084.2
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#23-045

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition
\S5-8511
# Aurora Health Care Metro, Ine. *  AMG lllinois, Lid.
I
» Aurora Health Care Southern Lakes, »  Aurora Medical Center Grafton
Inc.
L]
4
4825-2088-4084.2
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#23-045

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

Delaware

The First State

I, JEFFREY W. BULLOCK, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, IN} HEREBY CERTIFY "ADVQCATE HEALTH, INC." IS DULY
INCORFPORATED UNDER THE LARS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE AND IS IN GOOD
STANDING AND HAS A LEGAL CORFORATE EXISTENCE 50 FAR AS THE RECORDS
OF THIS OFFICE SHOW, AS OF THE TWENTY-THIRD DAY OF MARCH, A.D.
2023,

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE AFORESATD CORPORATION
IS AN EXEMPT CORPORATION.

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE ANNUAL REFORTS HAVE
BEEN FILED T DATE.

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE SAID "ADVOCATE HEALTH,

INC." WAS INCORPORATED ON THE NINTH DAY OF MAY, A.D. 2022.

N

Jlﬂrwﬂ Duilack, 'h-:rmvl!lrll ]

6784938 E300C
SR# 20231117363

You may verify this certificate online at corp.delaware. povy/authver. shtml

Authentication: 202938157
Date: 03-23-23
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#23-045

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

File Number 7376-313-4

G b

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Alexi Giannoulias, Secretary of State of the State of 1llinois, do
hereby certify that I am the keeper of the records of the

Department of Business Services. I certify that

ADVOCATE HEALTH, INC., INCORPORATED IN DELAWARE AND LICENSED TO
CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN THIS STATE ON JUNE 28, 2022, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT
OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS A FOREIGN CORPORATION IN GOOD
STANDING AND AUTHORIZED TO CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Tmﬁmuny Whereoﬁ I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 3RD

dayof MARCH A.D. 2023

A
Authenticaton @ 2306203416 verifiable untl 031032024 4 E . gi {

Authenticate at hifpsdwww Bsos. gov
SECRETARY OF STATE
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#23-045

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE
JESSE WHITE-Secretary of State

7376-313-4
JUNE 28, 2022

C T CORPORATION SYSTEM
208 30 LASALLE 3T, SUITE 814
CHICAGD, IL &0604-1101

RE ADVOCATE HEALTH, INC.

DEAR SIR OR MADAM:

ENCLOSED YOU WILL FIND THE AUTHORITY OF THE ABOVE HAMED
CORPORATION TO CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN THIS STATE.

PAYMENT OF THE FILING FEE IS HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGED.

CERTAIN WOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATIONS ORGANIZED AS A CHARITABLE
CORPORATION ARE REQUIRED TO REGISTER WITH THE OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY
GENERAL. UPOW RECEIPT OF THE ENCLOSED AUTHORITY, YOU MUST CONTACT
THE CHARITRELE TRUST DIVISION, OFFICE OF THE ATTORMEY GENERAL,

100 W. RANDOLFH, 3RD FLOOR, CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60601, TELEPHONE

(312) 814-25%5.

SINCERELY,

JESSE WHITE

SECRETARY OF STATE

DEPARTMENT OF BUSIMESS SERVICES
COREFORATION DIVISION

TELEPHONE (217) 782-6961
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#23-045

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

FoRM NFP 113.15 jrev. Dec. 2003)
APPLICATION FOR AUTHORITY
TO CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN

ILLINDIS (Foreign Corporsti
Genaral NEJIHI::‘rgII*‘mﬁt atrpu?:i':ln Act F ! L E D
Secretary of State
Depanment of Business Services JUN 2 8 2022
7 ITE
207 Th2 64
www.ilsos,gov SECRETARY OF STATE

Rermit paymant in the lorm of & cashiar's

check, carfified check, money order or an

IIlmm allorney’s ur CFA's check payable
Secrelary ol Stat

P b (PN Y Filing Fee: $50  Approved: _1?2“-_,

== = = Submit In duplicates ———— Type of Print clearly In black Ink — ——— Do not write above 1his e ————
1. a. Corporate Name:; Advocaie Health, Inc.

b. Assumed Cnrpurme- Mame {'Gm'rplall; only if tha new corporate name is no! available in this state. ):

By electing this assumed name, the Corporation hereby agrees NOT to use its corporate name In the transaction of
buginess in lllinols. Form NFP 104,15 s attached.

2. a. State or Counlry of Incorporation: Delaware

b. Date of Incorporation: May 9, 2022
. Parod of Duration: D—Ef" ﬂi?_,’r"-«JLi
3. 8. Address of Principal Office, wharquar located: 1000 EIHM Boulevard, Charlgtte, NC 28203

b. Address of Principal Oftice in lllingss: 3075 Highland Parkway, Suite 800, Downers Grove, L 60515

4. Name and Address of Registered Agent and Registered Office in llinois:
Registered Agent: CT Carporatian System

First Hama Migdla Nama Lagl Nama
Registered Office; 208 5. LaSalle Streel 814
Mumbar Slrgel Suile # (P.0. Box alone |8 unaccepiabla)
Chicago G004 Caok
City - ZIF Coxde T Caunly

5. States and Countries in which Corparation is admitted or qualified to conduct affairs: Delaware

8. Mames and respective addresses of Corporation's officers and direciors:

Eireal Address Ciy Cats  JIP

Prasidant Please see altached list
Secrelary

Diractor

Director

Diractor

H there are additional offlcers or more than three directors, please attach list.

Printad by autharty of the Siate of Ilinols. taruary 2018 - 1 - C 060015
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#23-045

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

7. Purpose(s) for which the Corpgration is organized and proposes to pursue in the canduct of affairs in this State:
For more space, attach additional sheets of thia slze.
Please see allached purpose.

8. This application must be accompanied by an originally certified copy of the Articles of Incorporation and any amend-
ments or mergers, duly authenticatad within the last 80 days by the proper officer of the state or country wherein the
carporation is incorporated.

9. The undersigned Corporation has caused this statemant 1o be signed bty a duly autharized gfticer who affirms, under
penaliies of pesjury, that the facts stated herein are true and correct. All signatures must be in BLACK INK.

Dated June ar , 2022 Adwocate Health, Inc. L
ED'_*"WMF Month Dy Yoar Exact Name of Carporation

&,
=TT A i thorizod Offcar's Signaturg
Michael Graba, Treasurar

Wama and Tida {ypa or print)

A Corporation that is lo funclion as a elub, as defined in Section 1-3.24 of the Liguor Control Act of 1934, must insed in ils

purposa clause a siatermant that it will comply with the State and local laws and ordinances relating to alcoholic
liquors.

LGH CAC Expansion and Modernization Page 68 Attachment 3



ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

NAME
Eugene Woods

James Skogsbergh

Michael Grebe

Brett Denlon

#23-045

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

T3 M- 234

ADVOCATE HEALTH, INC,

OFFICER AND DIRECTOR LIST

TITLE
Co-Chiel Execulive OHTicer

Co-Chiel’ Executive O[Ticer

Treasurer

Sccrelary

LGH CAC Expansion and Modernization Page 69

ADDRESS
1000 Blythe Boulevard
Charloite, NC 28203

3075 Highland Parkway, Suite 600
Downers Grove, 1L 60313

750 Wesl Virginia Streel
Milwaukee, W1 33204

1000 Blythe Boulevard
Charlote, MC 28203
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

T30 - 3\v3 4

PURPOSE OF ADVOCATE HEALTH, INC. (THE “CORPORATION™)

The Corporation is a nonprofil corporation and is organized and shall be operated exclusively for
charitable purposes within the meaning of Section 500(c)i(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as now in effect or as may herealter be amended (the “Caode™), including the making off
distributions as permitted under Section 501{c)H3) of the Code In Furtherance thereaf, the
Corporation shall operate exclusively for the benelit of, perform the funclions of, earry oul the
purposes of, and support The Charlotte-Mecklenburg Hospital Authorily; North Carolina Baplist
Hospital, Wake Forest University Health Sciences; AHSNF, Inc; AH Georgia, Inc.; Navicem
Health, Inc.; Floyd Healtheare Management, Inc.; Atrium Health Foundation; Advocale Health
and Hospitals Corporation; EHS Home Health Services, Inc.; Advocale Charitable Foundation;
Advocate North Side Health Network; Meridian Hospice, Advocale Condell Medical Center;
Advocate Sherman Hospital; Visiting Nurse Association of Wisconsin, Inc.; Aurora UW
Academic Medical Group, Inc.; Aurora Health Care Metro, [nc.; Aurora Health Care Southern
Lakes, Inc.; Aurara Health Care Central, Inc., Awraora Pgychiatric Mospital, Inc, Aurom
Medical Center of Washington County, Inc.; Aurora Health Care Morth, Inc; West Allis
Memorial Hospital, Inc; Aurore Family Service, Inc; Awrora Medical Center of Oshkosh, Inc.;
Aurora Medical Growp, Inc.; Aurorz Advanced Healthcare, Inc.: AMG Wlinois, Lid.; Aurora
Medical Center Grallon, LLC; Aurora Medical Center Bay Area, Ing,; and Kradwell School,
Inc., each of which are exempt from federal income Llaxation under Section 501{a) of the Code as
an organizalion described in Section S01{e}3) of the Code and classified as other than a private
foundation under Section 509(a) 1) or Section 30Ma)2) of the Code or a political subdivision
as defined in 26 CFR § 1.103-1. The Corporation may solicit, raise, receive, hold, invest and
expend funds for the advancement and furtherance of such purposes as permitted by law,
and may engage in any and all activities in furtherance of, related 1o, or incidental w these
purposes,  which may lawfully be camied on by a corporation formed wnder the
General Corporation Law ol Delawarg (*DGCL™), except as restricied in the Certificale of
Incorporation ar in the Bylaws ol the Corporation,
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#23-045

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

Organizational Relationships

Provide (for each applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any
person or entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is
participating in the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount
and type of any financial contribution.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 4, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF
THE APPLICATION FORM.

See Attachment #4, Exhibit 1.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

Advocate Aurora
Health, Inc.

Advocate Health and
Hospitals Corporation

Advosale Lutheran General Hospila

*Mote because Advocate Health, Inc. has certain governance, managemeant and cperation oversight
of Advocate Aurgra Health, Inc. through a Joint Operating Agreement structure, it is alzo included as
a co-applicant. Advocate Aurora Health, Inc. and Atrium Health, Inc. are the Corporate Members of
Advocate Health, Inc.

Advocate Aurora

Health, Inc. Atrium Health, Inc.

Advocate Health, Inc.

[ -t e

100 Craviarang Linbicc Otfvidwies Nolid
Juna 1, 3033
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#23-045

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

Flood Plain Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2006-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements,
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www.illinoisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a readable
format. In addition, please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the requirements of
lllinois Executive Order #2006-5 (http://www.hfsrb.illinois.qov).

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 5, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

By their signatures on the Certification, the applicants certify that the site for the proposed project
is not in a flood plain, as identified by the most recent FEMA flood plain hazard map for this area.
This project is not in a special flood hazard area, and therefore complies with Illinois Executive
Order #2006-5. Please see Attachment 5, Exhibit 1 and 2.
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N

Advocate Lutheran
General Hospital
1775 Dempster St.
Park Ridge, IL 60068
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Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources Preservation
Act.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 6, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

A letter was sent to the Illinois Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) on October 3, 2023,
requesting a determination letter for this project. The IDNR, Historic Preservation Division is in the
process of replying to that request.

The Historic Preservation Letter is provided as Attachment 6 Exhibit 1.
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-E-Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

1776 Dempater Strect || Pork Ridge, IL GD0EE || T 847.722.2010 || advasatchonlth. aom

October 3, 2023

Carol Wallace, Deputy State Historic Preservation Officer
llinois State Historic Preservation Office

lllimois Department of Matural Resources

One Old State Capital Plaza

Springfield, IL 62701

RE: Mational Historic Preservation Act

Dear Ms. Wallaca,

Per the Certificate of Need, the guidance is to provide documentation regarding compliance
with the reguirements of the Historic Resources Preservation Act. ldentified as Attachment & to
the CON application form; below is the following information provided with supporting
documentation:

1. The project’s county, street address, and municipality.

1700 Luther Lane
Park Ridge, Illinois 60068, Cook County

2. Complete description of your project, including any proposed ground-disturbing activity.

The project includes two areas of the Oncology program:
* The expansion of the Center for Advanced Care [CAC) to relocate BMT services
creating an integrated BMT program.
* The modernization of the Medical Oncology service providing the appropriately
designed space with contemporary standards and functionality for the infusion
SErvices.

3. The names of state and for federal agencies and entities that are providing funding,
licenses, permits, or approvals for your project
a. Ilinols Department of Public Health Licensing Code 0004796
b. Illinois Department of Public Health, Div. of Life Safety of Public Health
£. City of Park Ridge, lllinois
Building permit
4. The name, emall address, phone, and mailing address of the project contact:

Roberto Orozeo, Director

roberto.crozco@aah.org

B47.723.8520

& Fallle-lamid Disallls sysbemn sarelogg hdlviduats, farnailies aod ool E
Recholant of the Magmst award for exceifence in nursing sarvices by the Amencan Norses Credendiaing Cantar
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% Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

1775 Dompster Strect || Pork Ridge, IL 80068 || T 847.723.2210 || advecatchealth.com

1775 Dempster Street, Park Ridege lllinois G006E

5. Previously assigned SHPO log numbers associated with your project (if any):
IHPA Log #009022421 - see Attachment A

6. Total acreage involved in the project?

The total acreage Is 2.2 acres.

7. Year of construction for each structure on the project site
The Center for Advance Care was renovated/expanded in October of 2006.

8. Description of any prior non-agricultural ground disturbance in the project area
Mot applicable, the area of expansion is a parking lot.

9.  Any known historical information, architectural significance, significance to community,
or association with a significant individual for any cultural resources within the project
area.

Mot applicable, no known historical significance.
Maps & images to include with your submission:
1. A map showing your project's location

See Attachment B

2. For projects that propose ground disturbance, please provide both a USGS 7.5-minute
topographic map and recent aerial imagery with the project limits clearly outlined

See Attachment C

3. Mewly taken, color, digital images of the existing site and of all structures within.
See Attachment D

4. Representative interior photos of any structures over 40 years of age

Ses Attachment E

5. High-resolution digital scans of relevant historic photographs and previous architectural

& Tallle-lsasind Dsalll system servlog dividuats, fansiles oo ol

Recholant of the Magne! award for exceflence In nursing services by the Amencan Nurses Credentiahng Canter
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+ Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

1775 Dempater Strect || Pork Ridge, IL 0068 || T 847.723.2010 || acdvesatchealth.asm

plans (if applicable/available)

Mot available

If you have any questions, please contact me at roberto.orozco@aah. org.

Sincerely,

Rabewto Crazce

Roberto Orozco
Advocate Aurora Health, Director, Planning, Design and Construction

A Tallrlasud el sysbem sereing ndividuats, Fansilivs and conmmnsnilss

Rechalent of the Magne! award for excelfencs N aursing services by the Amenican Nuvsas Credentiaing Canter
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Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a
project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the fair
market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated project
cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of health care,
complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must be equal.

PROJECT COSTS AND SOURCES OF FUNDS
USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NON-CLINICAL TOTAL

Preplanning Costs $ 148,279 $ 130,325 $ 278,604
Site Survey and Soil Investigation $ 59,520 $ 188,480 $ 248,000
Site Preparation $ 78,159 $ 546,404 $ 624,563
Off Site Work $ 420,000 $ 718,254 $ 1,138,254
New Construction Contracts $ 5,003,798 $ 7,546,766 $ 12,550,564
Modernization Contracts $ 2,045,249 $ 995,618 $ 3,040,867
Contingencies $ 702,273 $ 1,162,970 $ 1,865,243
Architectural/Engineering Fees $ 590,074 $ 730,000 $ 1,320,074
Consulting and Other Fees $ 824,600 $ 475,000 $ 1,299,600
Movable or Other Equipment (not in $ 890,001 $ 535,691 $ 1,425,692
construction contracts)

Bond Issuance Expense (project related) $ 157,971 $ 75,386 $ 233,357
Net Interest Expense During $ 860,485 $ 410,636 $ 1,271,121
Construction (project related)

Fair Market Value, Leased Space,

Equipment

Other Costs To Be Capitalized $ 939,241 $ 588,100 $ 1,527,341
Acquisition of Building or Other

Property (excluding land)

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $ 12,719,650 $ 14,103,630 $ 26,823,280

SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Cash and Securities $ 7,921,398
Pledges

Gifts and Bequests

Bond Issues (project related) $ 18,901,882
Mortgages

Leases (fair market value)

Governmental Appropriations

Grants

Other Funds and Sources

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $ 26,823,280

NOTE: ITEMIZATION OF EACH LINE ITEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT ATTACHMENT 7, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER
THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.
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Itemization of Costs

Center for Advanced Care South Exp.

Pre-Planning $278,604
Site and Facility Planning 48,604
Programming thru Conceptual Planning 230,000

Site survey (investigation, titles, traffic) $248,000

Site Preparation $624,563
Site - earthwork, stormwater detention, utilities, paving 444,500
Earthwork, drainage, stone, foundation prep 180,063

Off-Site Work $1,138,254
Grading & Concrete 440,634
AT&T Line Adjustments 195,200
Gas (Metering thru construction) 176,750
Misc. Street Upgrades 325,670

New Construction $12,550,564

Modernization Contracts $3,040,867

Contingencies $1,865,243

Architect/Eng. Fees $1,320,074

Consulting and Other Fees $1,299,600
Reimbursable & Other fees 523,000
Zoning Consultants 25,000
MEP /Envelope, LEED Commissioning 90,000
Sustainability 62,000
Miscellaneous 599,600

Movable / Equipment $1,425,692
Exam Room Equipment 295,849
Recovery Equipment 230,500
Infusion equipment 300,545
Cancer Examination Equipment 240,956
Misc. Equipment 357,842

Bond Issuance / Finance Expense $233,357

Net Interest $1,271,121

Other Costs to be Capitalized $1,527,341
FF&E 255,550
Security Systems and Head End Equipment 154,000
Site Signage 98,500
Data Infrastructure, wireless, telecom 420,291
Miscellaneous costs 324,000
Costs CON, City of Park Ridge, MWRD 275,000

TOTAL $26,823,280
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Project Status and Completion Schedules

For facilities in which prior permits have been issued please provide the permit numbers.

Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:
[] None or not applicable [ ] Preliminary
X Schematics [ ] Final Working

Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): March 31, 2026

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to financial commitments (refer to Part
1130.140):

[ ] Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.
[] Financial commitment is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the
contingent “certification of financial commitment” document, highlighting any language
related to CON Contingencies

X Financial Commitment will occur after permit issuance.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 8, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

The following CON/COE applications have received permits from the HFSRB and are in process of
development. These projects are expected to be completed on time and within budget without
any changes in scope.

Advocate Christ Medical Center #14-057
Advocate Condell Medical Center #20-004
Advocate lllinois Masonic Medical Center #22-009
Advocate South Suburban Hospital #22-028
Advocate Christ Medical Center #E-051-22
Advocate Outpatient Center — South Elgin #22-050
Advocate Outpatient Center — Chicago Webster #23-002
Advocate Outpatient Center — Lakemoor #23-010
Advocate Christ Medical Center #23-021
Advocate ASTC — Chicago Webster #23-007

Advocate Outpatient Center Hoffman Estates  #23-028
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Cost Space Requirements

Provide in the following format, the Departmental Gross Square Feet (DGSF) or the Building Gross Square
Feet (BGSF) and cost. The type of gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be identified. The sum
of the department costs MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any space is being
reallocated for a different purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the department’s or area’s portion
of the surrounding circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated space.

Department Gross Square Amount of Proposed Total Department Gross
Feet Square Feet That Is:
Dept. / Area Total Costs Existing Proposed C%N New Modernized | AslIs Vacated
onst. Space
CLINICAL
Oncology Infusion S 4,113,821 7,890 | 7,524 0 7,524 0 0
(Modernization)
BMT Infusion (includes $ 5,499,150 2,861 | 7,843 7,843 0 0| 2861
Apbheresis)
Exam Rooms $ 3,100,680 1,847 4,533 4,533 0 0 1,847
Total Clinical | $§ 12,719,650 12,598 19,900 12,376 7,524 0 4,708
NON-CLINICAL Non-
Reviewable
Administrative $ 1,362,543 1,905 1,111 200 911 0 400
Office Space $ 1,692,881 755 1,483 220 1,263 0 220
Reception/Waiting $ 4,557,830 1,520 3,396 3,065 331 0 797
Pharmacy $ 2,243,391 0 932 932 0 0 0
Mechanical/Electrical, IT $ 4,246,985 0 1,489 1,489 0 0 0
Total Non-Clinical | $§ 14,103,630 4,180 8,411 5,906 2,505 0 1,417
Total | $§ 26,823,280 16,778 | 28,311 18,282 10,029 0 6,125

The proposed use of the vacated space is outlined below.

Current Dept. / Area Uses: Gross Square Feet

BMT Infusion Medical Off. Ctr. - Re-rent 2,861

BMT Exam Rooms Center for Advanced Care — Re-rent 1,847

Administrative Medical Off. Ctr. - Re-rent 400

Office Space Medical Off. Ctr. - Re-rent 220

Reception Waiting Medical Off. Ctr. - Re-rent 797
TOTAL 6,125

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 9, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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SECTION Illl. BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS
This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project costs.
1110.110(a) — Background of the Applicant

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

1. Alisting of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certification if
applicable.

2. A listing of all health care facilities currently owned and/or operated in lllinois, by any corporate officers or
directors, LLC members, partners, or owners of at least 5% of the proposed health care facility.

3. For the following questions, please provide information for each applicant, including corporate officers or
directors, LLC members, partners, and owners of at least 5% of the proposed facility. A health care facility
is considered owned or operated by every person or entity that owns, directly or indirectly, an ownership
interest.

a. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the
applicant, directly or indirectly, during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

b. A certified listing of each applicant, identifying those individuals that have been cited, arrested,
taken into custody, charged with, indicted, convicted, or tried for, or pled guilty to the commission of
any felony or misdemeanor or violation of the law, except for minor parking violations; or the
subject of any juvenile delinquency or youthful offender proceeding. Unless expunged, provide
details about the conviction, and submit any police or court records regarding any matters
disclosed.

c. A certified and detailed listing of each applicant or person charged with fraudulent conduct or any
act involving moral turpitude.

d. A certified listing of each applicant with one or more unsatisfied judgements against him or her.

e. A certified and detailed listing of each applicant who is in default in the performance or discharge of
any duty or obligation imposed by a judgment, decree, order or directive of any court or
governmental agency.

4. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation
organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

5. If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information requirements of
this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest that the information was previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant can submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 11, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-4) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 11.
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1. For the following questions, please a listing of all health care facilities owned or operated
by the applicant, including licensing, and certification if applicable.

Attachment 11, Exhibit 1, is the listing of all lllinois licensed health care facilities owned by
the applicants. Exhibit 2 is the current state hospital license for Advocate Lutheran General
Hospital. Beyond those listed in Exhibit 1, there are no other Illinois hospitals owned by
Advocate Aurora Health, Inc. in lllinois. The most recent DNV accreditation certificate for the
Hospital is included as Attachment 11, Exhibit 3.

2. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated
by the applicant, directly or indirectly, during the three years prior to the filing of the
application.

By the signatures on the Certification pages of this application, the applicants attest there
has been no “adverse action” (as that term is defined in Section 1130.140 of the lllinois
Health Facilities and Services Review Board (HFSRB) rules) against any lllinois health care
facility owned and/or operated by the applicants, during the three-year period immediately
prior to the filing of this application.

3. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary.

The applicants hereby authorize the HFSRB and the Illinois Department of Public Health to
access information that may be required in order to verify any documentation or
information submitted in response to the requirements of this subsection, or to obtain any
documentation or information which the HFSRB or lllinois Department of Public Health find
pertinent to this subsection.

4. If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for
permit, the documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill
the information requirements of this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest
that the information was previously provided, cite the project number of the prior
application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the information that has
been previously provided. The applicant is able to submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data

All licensure and accreditation information required with this Attachment 11 is attached and
the applicants are not relying on a previously filed application.

5. Alisting of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing,
and certification if applicable.
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lllinois Hospitals owned and operated by the applicants.

Facility Location License No. | DNV Accreditation No.
Advocate Christ Medical
e 4440 West 95th St Oak Lawn, IL 60453 315 PRJC-435588-2012-MSL-USA
Advocate Condell Medical 801 South Milwaukee Ave Libertyville, IL 5579 PRIC-497361-2013- AST-USA
Center 60048
ﬁ‘i‘s’gictztle Good Samaritan 3815 Highland Ave Downers Grove, IL 60515 3384 PRJC-369029-2012-MSL-USA
ﬁ‘i‘s’gictztle Good Shepherd 450 West Highway 22 Barrington, IL 60010 3475 PRJC-369027-2012-MSL-USA
Advocate Illinois Masonic . .

: 836 West Wellington Ave Chicago, IL 60657 5165 PRIC-529782-2015-AST-USA
Medical Center
ﬁ‘i‘s’gictztle Lutheran General 1775 Dempster St Park Ridge, IL 60068 479 PRJC-369033-2012-MSL-USA
Advocate Sherman Hospital 1425 North Randall Rd Elgin, IL 60123 5884 PRJC-496379-2013-MSL-USA
ﬁ‘i‘s’gictztle South Suburban 17800 South Kedzie Ave Hazel Crest, IL 60429 4697 PRJC-409982-2012-MSL-USA
Advocate Trinity Hospital 2320 East 93rd Street Chicago, IL 60617 4176 PRJC-408213-2012-MSL-USA

Additionally, AHHC has ownership interest of 50% or more in the following licensed health care facilities

Joint Commission Accreditation

Facility Location License No. | No/ Accreditation Association for
Ambulatory Health Care, Inc.
D Ambulatory S
reyer Ambuiatory surgery 1220 N. Highland Ave, Aurora, IL 7001779 | AAAHC

Center

LGH CAC Expansion and Modernization
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DNV

HEALTHCARE CERTIFICATE

Cenficaie no. infal cerification date: Wabdt
TOD0 T804 3-8 5 C-C MES-LIEA 31 May, 3012 31 May, 3021 = 31 May, 2024

This is to certify that the management system of

Advocate Lutheran General Hospital
1775 Dempster Street, Park Ridge, IL, 60068-1143, USA

has been found to comply with the requirements of the:

NIAHO® Hospital Accreditation Program

Pursuant to the authority granted to DNV Healthcare USA Inc. by the U.5.
Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Services, this organization is deemed in compliance with the Medicare Conditions of
Participation for Hospitals (42 C.F.R. §482).

ﬁ.. =21
Place and date: . hﬁ-&gl;:-:':-‘\-u— Far the issuing office:
Miford, OH, 21 July, 2021 1 — DNV Healthcare USA Inc.
] 400 Techne Center Drive, Suite 100,
E\_ ¥ Milford, OH, 45150, USA
pital

Patrick Horine
Management Representative

Lack of Tulflenent of conditions as sef cut in the Certification Agresment may render this Certificate insalid.
ACCREDITED UMIT: DRV Haslthcaia USA I, 400 Techs Canlar Drive, Suile 900, Miled, OH, 45150, USA - TEL +1 513847233, wwa diwhmalhcans.com
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lllinois Department of HF 126636

LICENSE, PERMIT, CERTIFICATION, REGISTRATION

The parson, fifrm oF corporation whose name appaars on this certificate has complied with the provisions of
the Yinpis statdes andfor fses and reguistions and is hereby suthorized 1o engage in the activity Bs

indicated below.
Sameer Vohra, MD,JD,MA et
Director S
EXPIRATION DATE =) CATEGORY LD NUMISER
12/31/2023 [ ‘ 0004796

General Hospital

Effective: 01/01/2023

Lutheran General Hospital - Advocate
1775 Dempster Street
Park Ridge, IL 60068

facsufﬁsimmmahachgm

Bt R
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DISPLAY THIS PART IN A
CONSPICUOUS PLACE

Exp. Date 12/31/2023
Lic Number 0004796

Date Printed 10/28/2022

Lutheran General Hospital - Advocate

1775 Dempster Street
Park Ridge, IL 60068

FEE RECEIPT NO.
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File Number 1004-695-5

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Alexi Giannoulias, Secretary of State of the State of Illinots, do
hereby certify that I am the keeper of the records of the

Department of Business Services. I certify that

ADVOCATE HEALTH AND HOSPITALS CORPORATION, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON SEPTEMBER 12, 1906, APPEARS
TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE. AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 3RD

dayof MARCH A.D. 2023

'|.-|' ' B
A
Authenticaton @ 2306203384 verifiable urtil 030372024 4 ﬁ . gi {

Authenticate at hitpss w3508 fov
SECRETARY OF STATE
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Delaware

The First State

I, JEFFREY W. BULLOCK, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELANARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY "ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC." IS DULY
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELANARE AND IS IN GOOD
STANDING AND HAS A LEGAL CORPORATE EXISTENCE 50 FAR AS THE RECORDS
OF THIS OFFICE SHOW, AS OF THE SIXTH DAY OF MARCH, A.D. 2Z023.

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE AFORESAID CORPORATION
IS AN EXEMPT CORPORATION.

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE ANNUAL REPORTS HAVE
BEEN FILED TO DATE.

AND I DO HERERY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE SATD "ADVOCATE AURORA
HEALTH, INC." WAS INCORPORATED ON THE FOURTH DAY OF DECEMEER, A.D.

2017.

SIS

6645600 B300C
SR# 20230875743

You rmay wverify this certificate online at corp. delaware govfautiver. shiml
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File Number 7155-851-7

i

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Alexi Giannoulias, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that I am the keeper of the records of the

Department of Business Services. I certify that

ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC., INCORPORATED IN DELAWARE AND LICENSED
TO CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN THIS STATE ON APRIL 03, 2018, APPEARS TO HAVE
COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE. 1S A FOREIGN
CORPORATION IN GOOD STANDING AND AUTHORIZED TO CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN THE
STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 3RD

dayof MARCH AD. 2023

R
Authenticaton @ 2306203464 verifiable until 0300372024 4 & . ﬂi {

Authenticate at Fipsswww Bs0s qov
SECRETARY OF STATE
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Delaware

The First State

I, JEFFREY W. BULLOCK, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, DI HEREBY CERTIFY "ADVOCATE HEALTH, INC." IS5 DULY
INCORFORATED UNDER THE LAWRS OF THE STATE OF DEIAWARE AND IS IN GOOD
STANDING AND) HAS A LEGAL CORPORATE EXISTENCE 50 FAR AS THE RECORDS
OF THIS OFFICE SHOW, AS OF THE TWENTY-THIRD DAY OF MARCH, A.D.
2023,

AND I DO HERERY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE AFORESATD CORFPORATION
IS AN EXEMPT CORPORATION.

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE ANNUAL HEEFPORTS HAVE
BEEN FILED T{ DATE.

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE SATID "ADVOCATE HEALTH,

INC.™ WAS INCORFORATED ON THE NINTH DAY OF MAY, A.D. 2022.

N

Jl|r|'1-_|"| [T 'Hm'flﬂ!lllll ]

6784938 E300C
SR# 20231117363

You may verify this certificate online at corp.defaware. goyauthver_shiml

Authentication: 202938157
Date: 03-23-23
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File Number 7376-313-4

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Alexi Giannoulias, Secretary of State of the State of Illinots, do
hereby certify that I am the keeper of the records of the

Department of Business Services. I certify that

ADVOCATE HEALTH, INC., INCORPORATED IN DELAWARE AND LICENSED TO
CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN THIS STATE ON JUNE 28, 2022, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT
OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS A FOREIGN CORPORATION IN GOOD
STANDING AND AUTHORIZED TO CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 3RD

dayof MARCH A.D. 2023

'|.-|' ' B
A
Authenticaton . 2306203416 verifiable urtil 030372024 4 ﬁ . gi {

Authenticate at hitps w3508 fov
SECRETARY OF STATE
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SECTION Il - BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project costs.
Criterion 1110.110 — Background, Purpose of the Project, and Alternatives

1110.110(b) — Purpose of Project

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant’s definition.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable and appropriate for the
project.

4. Cite the sources of the documentation.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population’s
health status and well-being.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded if any. For facility projects, include
statements of age and condition and regulatory citations if any. For equipment being replaced, include repair and
maintenance records.

NOTE: Information regarding the “Purpose of the Project” will be included in the State Board Report.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-12, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-6) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 12.

1. Document that the Project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-
being of the market area population to be served.

Advocate Lutheran General Hospital is proposing a modernization project to continue to provide
comprehensive Oncology care to the patients in the service area. In 2018, a Master Facility Plan was
developed that addressed the future of the ambulatory care services for the key destination
services at the hospital and identified space and programming deficiencies.

For the Oncology services, the plan identified a campus plan for current and long-term facility needs
to continue to provide access for the Medical Oncology clinic and infusion service and create a full
service BMT (Bone Marrow Transplant) focused center at Advocate Lutheran General Hospital.

This project is designed to meet the growing need of innovative cancer care as well as the projected
demand for these cutting-edge treatments in a coordinated, fully integrated location with increased
space and resources.

The project includes two areas of the Oncology program:
e The expansion of the Center for Advanced Care (CAC) to relocate BMT services creating an
integrated BMT program.
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e The modernization of the Medical Oncology service providing the appropriately designed
space with contemporary standards and functionality for the infusion services.

CAC Expansion — Outpatient BMT Center and Infusion Service

The Bone Marrow Transplant and Cellular Therapy Program at Advocate Lutheran General Hospital
provides advanced treatment options and access to cutting edge clinical services and research trials
to serve the needs of transplant and cellular therapy patients.

Advocate Lutheran General Hospital has been performing autologous HSC transplants since 1991.
HLA matched-related allogeneic transplants began in 1994 and unrelated stem cell transplants in
June of 2015.

The program is recognized as a Cellular Therapy Center at the same level as other nationally
recognized centers. This includes recognition from the Foundation for the Accreditation of Cellular
Therapy (FACT). The LGH BMT program is recognized by the Commission on Cancer in the academic
category and is only one of the 10% of BMT programs that are community based; offering a BMT
program in the service area to provide access that does not require travel to an academic medical
center.

The program has been accredited with National Marrow Donor Program (NMDP) and has been an
approved collection center since 2003. It is an authorized treatment center for CAR T cellular
therapies since 2019 and is the only CAR T cell program in the Northwest suburbs.

The CAC expansion will provide updated and contemporary space to relocate the current BMT
services that are located in three separate areas of the hospital campus. The components will
include the BMT clinic, examination and procedure rooms, apheresis rooms, pharmacy, staff space
and infusion bays.

The design will provide appropriately sized rooms and configuration to create a comprehensive
outpatient care model, expanded clinic rooms, greater staff efficiency and a cohesive patient
experience to support the collaborative, integrated program.

CAC Modernization - Medical Oncology and Infusion Service

This project includes modernization of the current Medical Oncology service located on the
second floor of the existing CAC building on the hospital campus. The modernization will
occur within the existing footprint and be redesigned and updated to achieve appropriate
rooms sizes and room/service configuration. The design will provide additional Medical
Oncology infusion bays for cancer patients space needed as the Oncology clinics and
programs grow.

The expanded space will accommodate the required number of rooms to support current and
projected volume and designed to meet current best practices and Advocate Aurora Health room
standards.
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Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant’s definition.

Advocate Lutheran General Hospital is a major provider of health care to the residents of Suburban
Cook County and surrounding areas. The hospital was founded in 1897. It is located in the IHFSRB
Planning Area A-07 as shown in Attachment 12, Exhibit 1.

The Hospital’s service area includes 56 zip codes that comprise 70% of the hospitals IP and OP
surgical cases. In addition, 31% of the hospitals’ patients live in North and West suburban areas.
84% of the hospital’s inpatient and 88% of the outpatient oncology patients reside in the service
area. Attachment 12 Exhibit 2 provides a map of the hospital’s service area.

With a population of 1,401,173, the service area is a diverse community with 21% of its residents of
Hispanic ethnicity and a racial distribution of 58% White, 14% Asian, 7% Black and other.

The median age of residents in the service area is 42 years old. Older adults (65 and older) represent
nearly 21 percent of the service area population. This geography has a larger number (21%) of
adults 65 and older compared with 18% for the entire United States.

The demographic population information for the Lutheran General Hospital is provided in the table
below. Although the total population in the service area is expected to be flat, the 65+ population is
projected to grow by 9%, expecting an increase of over 25,000 additional older residents.

Advocate Lutheran General Total Service Area Demographics

A

ch(:up 2023 Population | 2028 Population | 2023 % of Total | Population Change
0-17 281,647 274,816 20.1% -2.4%
18-44 468,010 452,402 33.4% -3.3%
45-64 363,508 343,409 25.9% -5.5%

65+ 288,008 313,577 20.6% 8.9%
TOTAL 1,401,173 1,384,204 100.0% -1.2%

Source: Charitis 2023 (Near North PSC)

The population for the entire Planning Area A-07, similar to the Advocate Lutheran General Hospital
service area, shows the 65+ population is the age group projected to grow over the next five years.

e |t is notable that there are increases in some of the ethnic populations. The Hospital has a
strong pattern of providing care to the Hispanic population with multilingual staff in many
areas.

e As the multicultural aspects of the community change, the Hospital is committed to meet
the social and medical needs of the population.

The hospital has continued to adapt to the changing health care needs and provide the continuum
of health care services to families that live in the hospital’s defined service area.
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2. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable and
appropriate for the project. [See 1110.230(b) for examples of documentation.] add
deficiencies of the existing unit

The project addresses the need to create contemporary space to accommodate all components of
the Medical Oncology infusion service and BMT programs.

The proposed plan will modernize the Medical Oncology infusion space to provide updated room
sizes, corridor width, and staff space in an appropriate configuration to support the current Medical
Oncology services.

The Outpatient Medical Oncology infusion program was developed in a space previously designed
for other hospital services. The existing room sizes and configuration is limiting the throughput and
access for the infusion services. The room sizes are too small to accommodate the patient
treatment and the corridors are often too narrow for patients in wheelchairs or with others
providing assistance.

The newly designed space will address the room size and corridor deficiencies and provide the
adjacencies needed for provider collaboration. There will be increased clinical visibility for infusion
patients and increased privacy for patients.

The BMT program will relocate all services to a contemporary integrative space that will be
designed with the number of rooms needed for each component in a configuration designed based
on the needs of the patient. The room sizes will be brought up to current standards and the number
of rooms will increase based on current and projected volume. The clinic and infusion rooms will be
private rooms with bathrooms needed for the privacy and infection control required for BMT
patients with compromised immunity.

The design will provide increased staff visibility of patients with increased staff space and to support
all of the services.

The co-location of all services will support the coordination of patient care and improve critical
collaboration between their team of providers. Current BMT services are located in three areas on
the hospital campus and are a distance from the parking areas and from each other, as shown in the
campus map provided as Attachment 12, Exhibit 4. Patients need to be transported from building to
building and this is often a hardship for patients that are undergoing this treatment.

3. Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation.

e Clinical, administrative, and financial data from Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation
and Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

e Advocate Lutheran General Hospital Strategic Master Facility Plan

e |llinois Department of Public Health Hospital Licensing Code

e |llinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board (HFSRB) Administrative Rules

e |HA COMPdata

e AIA/FGI Guidelines for Design and Construction of Health Care Facilities

e lllinois Administrative Code, Title 77, Chapter |, Subchapter b, Part 250, Section 250.2440
General Hospital Standards

e Esriand the US Census Bureau demographic reports
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e HFSRB Hospital Profiles

e HFSRB Inventories and Data

e Health care literature regarding current Oncology trends

e City of Park Ridge Building Code, International Building Codes, National Electrical Code, State
of lllinois Plumbing Code, Accessibility Code and State Hospital Licensing Standards

e Sg2 Inpatient Surgical Forecast; Sg2 Impact of Change Inpatient Procedure Expert Analysis

4. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the
population’s health status and well-being.

The primary purpose of the Project is to continue to provide the highest level of Oncology services
to the patients in the LGH service area.

The Oncology Destination Program at LGH includes a comprehensive service ranging from Inpatient
Medical and Surgical Oncology to Outpatient clinical services and support.

Medical Oncology Infusion Service include:

e Chemotherapy
e Immunotherapy and other infusion services
e Clinical Research Trials

BMT Procedures include:

e Autologous procedures - chemotherapy, immunotherapy and other infusion services and
clinical research trials

e Allogeneic procedures — matched related, haploidentical, matched unrelated, umbilical cord

e Cell Therapy —donor lymphocyte infusion

e CAR-T Cell Therapy

e Clinical Research Trials

The expanded CAC will be designed for flexibility to support the growth of Oncology and infusion
services in the future. This space will be able to support future clinics such as lipid and iron clinics
and procedural services such as vascular access services.

The Oncology services at Advocate Lutheran General Hospital including the Medical Oncology
infusion treatments have grown by 33%. Sg2 forecasts an increase in this service area for
outpatient oncology of 4% over the next five years and chemotherapy in hospital or outpatient
settings of 8%.

The BMT service is projected to continue over the next ten years. Sg2, a national Consulting Firm,
forecasts that over the next 10 years, BMT services will increase by over 12%. This is in part due to
the increasing incidence in the older population and these patients may not good candidates for
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other interventions. Additionally, BMT is being used for a wider variety of diseases to include
Autoimmune and genetic disorders beyond just blood-based cancers.

The improvements in the physical facility will include create a comprehensive, coordinated space to
accommodate all of the services that are part of the Medical Oncology and BMT programs. The
rooms will be right sized and configured to meet the Advocate and current industry standards.

This project like other hospital initiatives, supports the underlying goal of Advocate Aurora’s
diversity, equity, and inclusion strategy; anchored by the purpose to help people live well and fueled
by a commitment to transform our workplace and our communities. This is due to the belief that a
diverse workforce and strong community partnerships allow Advocate to deliver equitable care for
all. Advocate Aurora is working to close gaps, foster a thriving inclusive environment and ensure
outcomes that are consistent and fair.

5. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate
to achieving the stated goals as appropriate.

The principal goal for this project is to invest in and develop a modern and updated infrastructure,
to allow Advocate Lutheran General to continue to provide the highest level of Oncology care to
residents in the community. The phasing of this project was well thought out to provide the safest,
high-quality care and minimized disruption to patients and clinicians. The construction phasing plan
was developed to keep the services operational within each phase of the modernization process.
Throughout this project, Advocate Lutheran General is committed to spending 35% of construction
cost with diversity, equity, and inclusion focused companies.

Phase 1
e The CAC South expansion will be constructed.

Phase 2

e The Medical Oncology infusion will temporarily move to the CAC South expansion
e The Medical Oncology infusion space will be modernized.
Phase 3

e The Medical Oncology infusion service will move back to the original modernized location.
e The BMT clinic and infusion services will move into the new CAC South Expansion space.

The entire project is expected to be completed and operational by March 31, 2026.
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G) Planning Area A-7: Cook County Townships of Maine, Elk Grove, Schaumburg, Palatine
and Wheeling.
|
Palatine Wheeling Northfield

Schaumburg Elk Grove | Maine

DuPage County

Attachment 12, Exhibit 1
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Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

Disclaimer: This map depicts service area information based on inpatient admissions by zip code. Its use in this report should not be understood as a
representation concerning a relevant geographic area of competition or concerning the actual extent of competition between or among providers in

any given zip code or area.
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Advocate Lutheran General Hospital — Oncology Service Line

At Lutheran General, we are committed to bringing academic level care to our patients and families
in a personalized, community setting. We offer a myriad of comprehensive cancer services from
diagnosis thru treatment thru survivorship.

The following services are offered on our campus:

e Dedicated BMT Program

» Inpatient Oncology and BMT Unit
Apheresis Center
Cell Processing Lab
BMT Program Coordination office
Outpatient Infusion Center
Ambulatory Surgery Center
Russell Research Institute
» Carol St. Apartments/Lodging

YVVV VYV

e Interventional Pulmonology

e Advanced surgical services, including robotics; our lung cancer surgery program, which was
ranked #40 by U.S. News and World Report

e Cardio-Oncology

e Gynecologic Oncology

e Survivorship Center: includes social work, nutrition services and other support programming to
promote health and wellness

e Rehabilitation services

e Palliative Care

The following services are offered in the Center for Advanced care dedicated to bringing specialty

services to our community in one convenient location on our campus:

e Caldwell Breast Center: includes advanced breast imaging, breast surgery clinic and
multidisciplinary breast clinic

e Advanced diagnostic imaging

e Outpatient laboratory services

e Fertility Services

e Genetic Counseling

e Medical Oncology: includes chemotherapy, targeted therapy infusions

e BMT Clinic

e Radiation Oncology: includes SRS/SBRT, brachytherapy

e Neuro-Oncology

e Nurse Navigators
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SECTION Ill - BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project costs.

Criterion 1110.230 — Background, Purpose of the Project, and Alternatives
READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

ALTERNATIVES
1) Identify ALL of the alternatives to the proposed project:
Alternative options must include:
A)  Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;
B)  Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or entities to meet all
or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing alternative settings to meet all or a
portion of the project's intended purposes;
C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of the population
proposed to be served by the project; and
D) Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected.
2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The comparison
shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality and financial benefits in both the short term
(within one to three years after project completion) and long term. This may vary by project or
situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED THE TOTAL PROJECT COST AND THE
REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS REJECTED MUST BE PROVIDED.
3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that verifies
improved quality of care, as available.

As part of the overall Advocate Lutheran General Hospital Master Planning process, it was
determined that there was a critical need for expansion and modernization to address space
programming for the Medical Oncology and BMT services on the hospital’s campus.

Several alternatives as outlined below were evaluated based on the recommendations of the
Architects and the Hospital’s administration.

The project includes two areas of the Oncology program:
e The expansion of the Center for Advanced Care (CAC) to relocate BMT services creating an
integrated BMT program.
e The modernization of the Medical Oncology service providing the appropriately designed
space with contemporary standards and functionality for the infusion services.

Alternative One — Maintain services in current locations

The option to continue to offer the outpatient Medical Oncology and BMT services in their existing
locations was not a reasonable option. This would not address the infrastructure or space
deficiencies of the current units. This option was rejected as it would not provide for the BMT
services to be in one location that would allow for clinical collaboration and the needed co-location
of services for patient care. Additional spaces on the hospital campus would need to be located, at
the expense of other Clinical programs.

Cost: No construction cost
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Alternative Two - Propose a Project of lesser scope and cost

This option would involve choosing to either modern and expand only the outpatient Medical
Oncology infusion service at the current CAC or only expanding the CAC to develop the BMT
program. This would not address the imperative needs identified to modernize and expand both.
The project would either improve the room sizes and configuration of the OP Medical Oncology
infusion service or provide the coordination and increased capacity and access for the BMT services.
It would be a challenge to prioritize one over the other and would be significantly costlier to
complete these projects separately and extend the timeframe for completion. It would be more
disruptive to the patients and staff to complete these as two separate projects.

Cost: $6,750,000 OP Medical Oncology only
$25,484,952 OP BMT — CAC expansion only

Alternative Three - Propose a Project of greater scope and cost.

The option to build a free-standing larger addition to accommodate all inpatient and outpatient
Oncology services was considered. The current hospital building does not have the space within the
hospital to accommodate all outpatient services adjacent to the inpatient services.

The hospital campus does not have the space needed to build an appropriately sized building for all
inpatient and outpatient services and doing so would relocate key clinical services such as imaging
needed on the campus. Building a multi-use facility instead of ambulatory only building would
require compliance and regulatory requirements adding to the cost. The cost to build this type of
building would be significantly higher than this project cost.

Although this could address the clinical program and space facility infrastructure issues, as good
financial stewards, it was determined that the CAC could be expanded to support these services and
would provide the appropriate space needed for these clinical services.

Cost: $120,000,000

Alternative Four - Develop alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended
purposes.

Unlike other Outpatient services, these Oncology services are outpatient hospital services that
should be located on the campus.

Maintaining the current outpatient Medical Oncology services in the CAC location on the campus is
best for patients and clinicians. It would not be desirable to relocate some to another location.
Other services such as radiation oncology and surgeon offices are located on campus as well, which
offers patients access to the major specialties involved in cancer care.

For the BMT outpatient program, all services need to be on campus for patients during their
treatment. Patients can be seen at other sites for consultation, but once they are in the transplant
continuum, they need to be on campus to receive all of the services. Allogeneic patients are very
tired and immunocompromised, and it is not recommended to having them travel to and exposed
to multiple environments.

Cost: $ 45,000,000
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Alternative Five - Utilize other health care resources to serve the population proposed to be
served by the Project.

The option to refer Oncology patients to another hospital in the service area was not feasible. The
physicians seeing these patients are principally located near and on staff at Advocate Lutheran
General Hospital. They are providing tertiary level Oncology services for patients that live in this
community and have a long-established pattern of coming to this hospital for their comprehensive
care. Patients benefiting from all of their services staying in one health system to optimize
continuity of care and care coordination.

Lutheran General is the only hospital in the northwest suburbs offering BMT, car-T Cell and
apheresis services and patients would need to travel out of the area for services. The other hospitals
in the area do not have the capabilities to provide BMT services at their location.

Cost: No construction cost but would experience a significant loss of patients and lack of
continuity of care.

Alternative Six - Modernize the Medical Oncology service in the CAC and Expand the CAC to
relocate the BMT services.

This option was selected as it will allow the organization to provide the appropriately designed
space with contemporary standards and functionality for the Medical Oncology infusion services.
The project will include expansion of the Center for Advanced Care (CAC) to relocate all BMT
services creating an integrated BMT program.

This will replace outdated infrastructure and create space that is designed for the current programs
with space to accommodate the projected growth of patients and programming. The project will
continue the investment in the Oncology Institute to provide the critical services and access for
Advocate Lutheran General Hospital’s patients and the community into the future.

Project Cost: $26,823,280
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SECTION IV. PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.120 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:

SIZE OF PROJECT:
3. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not excessive.
This must be a narrative and it shall include the basis used for determining the space and the
methodology applied.

4. If the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following:

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational
needs, as supported by published data or studies and certified by the facility’s Medical Director.

b. The existing facility’s physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an architectural
design that delineates the constraints or impediments.

c. The project involves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square footage.

d. Additional space is mandated by governmental or certification agency requirements that were not in
existence when Appendix B standards were adopted.

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the
following format with Attachment 14.

SIZE OF PROJECT
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE STANDARD | DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD?

The gross square footage identified in this application for the proposed project is 26,822 gsf and
includes 20,832 gsf of clinical and 5,990 gsf of non-clinical space. The gross square footage was
developed based on AAH guidelines for oncology clinics and provider offices and is appropriated
sized and consistent with the standards identified in Appendix B of 77 Illinois Admin. Code Section
1110.

Clinical Components

The proposed project includes relocation, expansion, and modernization for two areas of the
Outpatient Cancer Services at Advocate Lutheran General Hospital. The clinical components include
the services for the Outpatient Medical Oncology infusion service and the new BMT location:

e Medical Oncology infusion

e BMT clinic exam and office procedure rooms

e Apheresis service

e BMT infusion and Non-BMT infusion for Oncology and non-Oncology

LGH CAC Expansion and Modernization Page 107 Attachment 14




#23-045

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

Outpatient Medical Oncology Service

Medical Oncology infusion

The infusion service for Medical Oncology patients is co-located with the clinic and will
provide 33 bays for Medical Oncology patients. (an increase from 30 current bays). Infusion
services include chemotherapy, immunotherapy, targeted therapies, injections, and other
infusions This modernization will be designed for privacy, increased clinical visibility and for
infection control.

These rooms will be designed with the Advocate Aurora standard infusion room to include
appropriately designed patient zone, provider zone and family zone.

Outpatient BMT and Infusion Service

BMT clinic exam and office procedure rooms

The proposed project includes a total of 13 exam/procedure/consult clinic rooms for BMT patients.
This space will be used for clinic visits and examination with physicians and other providers.

Clinic rooms will be designed for flexibility and to accommodate procedures such as bone biopsies
performed by the providers.

Apheresis service

This procedure is for healthy donors for patients who receive allogeneic transplants. The rooms are
designed for this special type of procedure where blood is collected, part of the blood such as
platelets or white blood cells is taken out, and the rest of the blood is returned to the donor.

There are 3 apheresis rooms in the proposed project are designed to support the current and
proposed patients requiring this service.

BMT infusion and Non-BMT infusion for Oncology and non-Oncology

The infusion service in the expanded CAC location will include 21 bays for BMT infusion patients as
well as non-BMT infusion for Oncology and non-Oncology patients. Infusion services include
intravenous and catheter-based infusion for chemotherapy, targeted therapies, immunotherapy,
fluids, blood transfusions and antibiotics. The non-Oncology patients are those receiving an infusion
or blood transfusion for Rheumatology, Gastroenterology, and other diseases.

The infusion space will expand the number of bays to support the current and projected
patients and designed for privacy, increased clinical visibility and for infection control.
These rooms will be designed with the Advocate Aurora standard infusion room to include
appropriately designed patient zone, provider zone and family zone.

The co-location of infusion with the clinic space allows BMT patients to receive all care
without having to travel through the hospital or return on a separate day.

This newly constructed expansion is being developed to include the required number of spaces and
appropriately sized rooms to accommodate patients and providers. The number of clinic and
infusion rooms was based on Industry standards used by the Design and Construction and architect
team. The guidelines used are determined based on the time patients are in the rooms for each
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type of service and scheduling efficiencies. Current and projected volume was modeled to provide
the appropriate number of rooms to continue to provide access to these services.

The proposed square footage for the clinical spaces is outlined in the chart below.
There are no State Guidelines for square footage for these type of clinic rooms or infusion bays.

SIZE OF PROJECT

DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET

DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?
Outpatient Medical Oncology | 7,524 NA Yes
Infusion
Outpatient BMT Infusion 7,843 NA Yes
(includes apheresis- 280 dgsf)
Outpatient BMT 4,533 NA Yes
Exam/Consult Rooms
TOTAL 20,832

Non-Clinical Components

The Non-clinical components of the project total 8,411 DGSF of space.

This includes physician offices, research team offices, patient education rooms, staff support space,
storage, public waiting, registration, circulation, building support, lobby.

The staff and support space will provide additional space needed to support these clinics. The
adjacency to the clinic and infusion space will allow providers to be available for patients and
remain in this location. The registration area will be designed for privacy to schedule appointments
and discuss insurance information for preauthorization, scheduling appointments and pharmacy.
Space will be included for patient education and additional programming to establish a BMT
survivorship clinic is included in the program for patients past the 100 days post-transplant. This will
be a monthly clinic led by an APC and continue at regular intervals for long term follow up care.

The CAC expansion will also include an outpatient pharmacy dedicated to support these infusion
services and the patients receiving care in this hospital-based program. The pharmacy will include
storage and staff preparation space for the preparation of specialty medication for BMT and non-
BMT infusions. The pharmacy will be constructed to follow USP/ISO 797/800 rules of
pharmaceuticals which requires enhanced mechanical and electrical services rules (including
emergency power). The environment will require the clean room rules related to donning and
doffing with airlock technology.

There are no State Guidelines for the non-clinical components of the project.
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Non-Clinical Department/Areas

PROPOSED DGSF (in project)

Administrative

1,111

Office Space 1,483
Reception/Waiting/circulation/building support 3,396
BMT Pharmacy 932

Mechanical/Electrical, IT 1,489
TOTAL 8,411

LGH CAC Expansion and Modernization

Page 110

Attachment 14



#23-045

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions or equipment
for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100.

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the
utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be
provided.

A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15.

UTILIZATION
DEPT./ HISTORICAL | PROJECTED | STATE MEET
SERVICE | UTILIZATION | UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
(PATIENT DAYS)
(TREATMENTS)
ETC.

YEAR1
YEAR 2

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 15, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

The proposed Project includes two hospital outpatient services within the CAC Expansion Project.

The utilization for each clinical service has been projected to 2026 and 2027, the first and second
year the project is scheduled to be completed.

The proposed project includes relocation, expansion, and modernization for two areas of the
Outpatient Cancer Services at Advocate Lutheran General Hospital. The clinical components include
the services for the Outpatient Medical Oncology service and the new BMT location:

e Medical Oncology infusion

e BMT clinic exam and office procedure rooms

e Apheresis service

e BMT infusion and Non-BMT infusion for Oncology and non-Oncology

Outpatient Medical Oncology Service

Over the last 5 years, the Outpatient Medical Oncology infusion volumes have increased year over
year. Based on the projected growth in the service area, and the continued growth of these hospital
services, the utilization Is projected to increase by 5% due to continued increase in survival with
palliative immunotherapy treatments and continuing rise in cancer incidence overall. The
modernization of this area will be designed to increase the number of rooms in this service to
increase access for the Medical Oncology patients.

The historical and projected utilization for the Medical Oncology Clinic infusion services is outlined
in Attachment 31.
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Based on the increasing need for the BMT services and these infusions, utilization is projected to
increase by 3% year over year. The development of this expanded area will include an increased
number of rooms to support the patients in these programs.

The historical and projected utilization for the BMT Clinic exam rooms, Apheresis and infusion
services are outlined in Attachment 31.

HISTORICAL
UTILIZATION STATE MEET
DEPT./SERVICE (PATIENT DAYS) PROJECTED UTILIZATION STANDARD | STANDARD?
(TREATMENTS) ETC.
2022 Year 1- 2026 Year 2- 2027

Outp'atlent Medical Oncology 13,230 17,608 19,369 NA Ves
Infusion
Outpatient BMT Exam/Consult 5,919 7431 7653 NA Yes
Rooms
Outpatient apheresis 190 208 214 NA Yes
Outpatient BMT Infusion 7,160 7,824 8,059 NA Yes

Although, there are no industry standards for utilization of outpatient Oncology hospital clinics or
infusion, the architect facility planning team with hospital leaders developed room ratios based on
current patient volume, the time for each procedure or service and the number of days that the
rooms would be utilized. The clinical services will be designed to be co-located with the other
required services that are part of the care of these patients.

There are no state standards for utilization for the clinical services in the project.
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UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE:
Provide the following information:
1. Total gross square footage (GSF) of the proposed shell space.

2. The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF to be allocated to each
department, area, or function.

3. Evidence that the shell space is being constructed due to:
a. Requirements of governmental or certification agencies; or
b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas proposed
to occupy the shell space.

4. Provide:
a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year period for which data is available;
and
b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections of future
utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space will be placed
into operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 16, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Not Applicable — no shell space.
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ASSURANCES:
Submit the following:

1. Verification that the applicant will submit to HFSRB a CON application to develop and utilize the

shell space, regardless of the capital thresholds in effect at the time or the categories of service
involved.

2. The estimated date by which the subsequent CON application (to develop and utilize the subject
shell space) will be submitted; and

3. The anticipated date when the shell space will be completed and placed into operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 17, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Not Applicable — no shell space.
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Criterion 1110.270 - Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service

1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize Clinical Service Areas Other than
categories of service must submit the following information:

2. Indicate changes by Service: Indicate # of key room changes by action(s):
# Existing Key Rooms # Proposed Key Rooms
Service
CAC Modernization
L] 30 33
OP Medical Oncology Infusion
CAC Expansion
[] 8 13
OP BMT Exam/Consult Rooms
L] 12 21
OP Infusion — in CAC Expansion
OP apheresis 2 3
3. READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required documentation
for the criteria:
Project Type Required Review Criteria
New Services or Facility or Equipment (b) — Need Determination — Establishment
Service Modernization (c)(1) - Deteriorated Facilities
AND/OR

(c)(2) — Necessary Expansion
PLUS

(c)(3)(A) — Utilization — Major Medical Equipment

OR

(c)(3)(B) — Utilization — Service or Facility

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 31, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Outpatient Medical Oncology Service — CAC Modernization

c) Service Modernization
The applicant shall document that the proposed Project meets the following:
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1) — Deteriorated Facilities

The proposed project will address infusion capacity issues in the current location.

The Outpatient Medical Oncology service was developed in an existing space designed for another
clinical service. This project will modernize the infusion space within this footprint to be designed to
meet the needs of current and future Medical Oncology infusion services.

The additional and modernized infusion bays will be designed to improve patients’ privacy and
satisfaction. The modernization of this area will right size the rooms to current standards and
improve the layout of the rooms to be designed for the growing need for Medical Oncology services
in the Lutheran General community.
This will include:
Modernizing the current floor plan of 10 exam rooms to chemotherapy bays that will allow
utilization of these rooms in a more efficient manner.

e Increasing the number of chemotherapy bays

e Increasing the room sizes to accommodate disabled patients

e Improving patient viability

e Improving and separating patient and staff flows

e Improving and increasing nursing work areas

e Redesign for supply drop off and clean supply storage

2) - Necessary Expansion

The Cancer Center at Advocate Lutheran General Hospital, established in 1990, currently provides
Outpatient Medical Oncology services in the Center for Advanced Care (CAC) on the hospital
campus. The Outpatient Medical Oncology Program provides an integrative care model that include
medical oncology clinics and infusion space for these patients. This model provides a
multidisciplinary team to deliver integrated care to patients.

Significant growth in the Medical Oncology outpatient clinic and infusion visits at Advocate Lutheran
General Hospital has occurred over the last 5 years.

There are currently 30 infusion bays for the Medical Oncology Center. This project will provide the
number of infusion bays needed, increasing to 33. There are on average of 55-60 patients each day
receiving infusion services. In addition to Chemotherapy, the number of patients receiving
immunotherapies as part of their ongoing treatment has grown as the number of immunotherapies
has increased and expanded uses to improve quality of life.

Infusions take on average 5 % hours and each chair can accommodate 1-2 patients per day. The
additional 3 infusion bays will improve access for the current and future patients.

Efficient care coordination between our clinic and infusion services are vital to the efficient delivery
of care. Patients often see their provider in clinic and then receive treatment in our infusion center,
which is in an adjacent space.

Sg2 forecasts an increase for Cancer services of 13% in cancer related infusion over the next five
years. With cancer cases expected to continue to rise, an expansion of the cancer center is
necessary to continue to serve patients with outstanding clinical care in a contemporary setting.
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The Outpatient Medical Oncology Infusion volume is provided below. Over the last three years,
infusion visits have increased by 29%.
Based on projections outlined, utilization is estimated to continue to increase over the next five
years. The projected year over year growth outlined is due to continued increase in survival with
palliative immunotherapy treatments and the continuing rise in cancer incidence overall.

% Change
*
2019 2020 2021 2022 2019-2022
OP Medical Oncology Infusion
Medical Oncology Infusions 10,272 9,243 12,095 13,230 28.8%
% Change
2023 2024 2025 2026 2023-2026
OP Medical Oncology Infusion
Medical Oncology Infusions 14,553 16,008 17,608 19,369 33.1%

In order to accommodate the increasing demand for infusion services in the Medical Oncology
Service, it was determined that an additional 3 infusion stations will be needed, increasing the

number to 33 total stations.

There are no utilization standards for Outpatient Medical Oncology Infusion.
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Outpatient BMT and Infusion Service — CAC Expansion
c) Service Modernization
The applicant shall document that the proposed Project meets the following:

2) - Necessary Expansion

The Outpatient BMT Cancer Services at Advocate Lutheran General Hospital, established in 1991,
are currently provided in several locations on the hospital campus. This patient care is fragmented
requiring patients to transport themselves (or be transported) between buildings for clinic and
infusion services.

The Bone Marrow Transplant and Cellular Therapy Program at Advocate Lutheran General Hospital
provides advanced treatment options and access to cutting edge clinical services and research trials
to serve the needs of transplant and cellular therapy patients.

The Outpatient BMT Program is an integrative care model that includes clinics, apheresis, and
infusion services for these patients. This model is designed to include a multidisciplinary team to
deliver integrated care to patients and provide patients with all services at one location without
having to travel through multiple buildings and floors at the hospital. Support services of financial
navigation, social work, and nurse navigation will be included. All of these services are vital to
contributing to positive clinical outcomes for our patients.

The newly constructed space will be designed with appropriately sized rooms and the configuration
to allow for efficient or collaborative care. The modernization of this area will right size the rooms to
current standards and improve the layout of clinical rooms to be designed to better align with the
needs of bone marrow transplant patients. The patient rooms will be private rooms with adjacent
bathrooms to support the privacy and infection control required for this patient population.

The BMT program will include the clinical staff space needed to support patient care and be
designed to enhance collaborative care. The providers often need to see patients prior to treatment
and staff need to travel between two building on the hospital campus. This causes delays for
patients and added time on campus creating increased anxiety and fatigue for patients. To allow
patients to have all services at one location without having to travel through multiple buildings and
floors at the hospital will increase patient satisfaction and safety.

There will be a dedicated compounding pharmacy in this area for the infusion patients. This will
ensure that the medication is available without delay and no longer requires clinicians to travel to
the hospital Pharmacy and lab to obtain medications and deliver labs. Patients will have access to a
BMT pharmacy expert who can supplement the education that they receive from providers and
nurses regarding their treatment regimen.

Private registration and consultation space will be part of the design, as sensitive information is
shared during the registration and discharge process. The modernization will promote privacy for
our patients during those interactions.

The outpatient BMT clinic visits and the outpatient infusions at Advocate Lutheran General Hospital
has grown over the last 5 years due to the increased need for services in Advocate’s network and in
the northwest suburbs. This program has been able to provide services closer to home for patients
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who do not live close to Chicago. This is especially important for some transplant patients, who
need to stay close to the medical center for 100 days after their transplant to ensure care is
proximal should they experience complications within that critical period.

Sg2 forecasts an increase of 10% in BMT services over the next five years. With cancer cases
expected to continue to rise, BMT services are an essential component of the cancer care services.

The current clinic is located in a separate building from the infusion center. This fragmented
physical footprint is challenging for our patients and clinical care teams to navigate. For our
patients who may be physically challenged due to their disease, this presents another barrier for
them to overcome.

Additionally, the current infusion center has a challenging physical layout. The rooms do not meet
current Advocate standards, making it difficult to navigate mobility devices such as walkers for
patients, and again presenting another barrier for our patients to overcome. Furthermore, the
infusion center also accommodates non-BMT patients, and is at capacity, which causes additional
waiting time.

3)(B) -Utilization — Service or Facility

The Outpatient BMT clinic and Infusion volume is provided below. Based on the forecasted
projections outlined, utilization is estimated to increase in the service area.

The number of patients in the BMT clinic is projected to increase as the number of transplant
patients at Advocate Lutheran General Hospital will increase over the next five years.

The clinic growth is based on 2021 volume as 2022 experienced staffing challenges. The BMT
program now has a full complement of physician and APC staff and additional team members have
been added to increase access to the program. The projected utilization is based on the historic
volume and projected growth for these services over the next five years.

Patients that have completed their BMT treatment will transition to their primary Oncology
physicians for follow up care. Additional programming will be developed in this space to establish a
BMT survivorship clinic in the program for patients past the 100 days post-transplant. This will be a
monthly clinic led by an APC and continue at regular intervals for long term follow up care.
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2020* 2021 2022 % Change 2020-2022

BMT Oncology Clinic
BMT clinic visits/procedures 6,599 6,800 5,919* 3.0%*
Apheresis visits 154 180 190 23.4%
Outpatient Infusion
Infusion treatments 7,155 7,564* 7,160 0.1%

e Data prior to 2020 is unavailable due to Epic IT conversion

e  BMT clinic volume is projected based on 2021 patients

e 2021 infusions include monoclonal antibody infusions for COVID

2023 2024 2025 2026

BMT Oncology Clinic
BMT clinic visits/procedures 7,004 7,214 7,431 7,653
Apheresis visits 196 202 208 214
BMT Infusion
Infusion treatments 7,375 7,596 7,824 8,059

As the volume of infusion services and bone marrow transplant clinics increase, the projected
utilization outlines the need to increase the number of clinic rooms to 13 (including 9 examination
rooms, 2 procedure rooms and 2 consultation rooms) to continue to support patients in the service

area.

In order to accommodate the increasing demand for infusion services at the BMT Service, it was

determined that 21 infusion stations will be needed: increasing the number from 12 stations.
Apheresis treatments are 5 days/week and can last between 4-8 hours for the treatment. These
treatments are repeated daily for a few days.

Industry standards were used by the Design and Construction and architect team to develop the
appropriate number of rooms. The guidelines used are related to available time in the chair and
scheduling efficiencies.

The BMT clinic was based on operating 8 hours per day; 5 days a week. With the average exam time
at 90 minutes, the rooms can provide for 5 exams per day per room at the highest end efficiency.

Attachment 31
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Based on current volume, applying a 55-65% utilization rate used by Cancer centers with these
types of services, it was determined that 9 exam rooms, 2 education/consult and 2 procedure
rooms would be needed for the BMT clinic services to support current and projected patients.

The Infusion services will operate 5 days per week for 9.5 hours each day and 2 days each week for
4 hours to accommodate the patient volume. The average BMT infusion is 4.5+ hours and non-BMT
patients are longer with 5.5+ hour infusion time. Based on the infusion time and the current and
projected volume, it was determined that 10 private infusion bays for BMT infusion and 10 open
bay spaces for non-BMT infusion patients would be needed.

The apheresis service is designed to have separate rooms to provide infection control and privacy
for these patients. This service will also operate 8 hours per day; 5 days per week with patient visit
lasting 4- 8 hours per treatment. Based on the current and projected patient volume 3 bays was
determined to be needed to provide timely access for patients needing this service.

There are no utilization standards for Outpatient BMT Clinics and Infusion.
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The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for funding
or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from Fitch's or
Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affirmed within the latest
18-month period prior to the submittal of the application):

e Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds — Review Criteria
e Section 1120.130 Financial Viability — Review Criteria

e Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility — Review Criteria, subsection (a)

VII. 1120.120 - AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

The applicant shall document those financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable [Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources]:

$ 7,921,398 | a) Cash and Securities — statements (e.g., audited financial statements, letters from financial
institutions, board resolutions) as to:

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project, including
the identification of any security, its value and availability of such funds;
and

2) interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to be earned on
any asset from the date of applicant's submission through project
completion.

b) Pledges - for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges showing
anticipated receipts and discounted value, estimated timetable of gross receipts and
related fundraising expenses, and a discussion of past fundraising experience.

c) Gifts and Bequests — verification of the dollar amount, identification of any conditions of
use, and the estimated timetable of receipts.

d) Debt — a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt time,
18,901,882 variable or permanent interest rates over the debt time, and the anticipated repayment
schedule) for any interim and for the permanent financing proposed to fund the project,
including:
1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required

referendum or evidence that the governmental unit has the authority to
issue the bonds and evidence of the dollar amount of the issue,
including any discounting anticipated.

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the specified
amount and interest rate.

3) For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting to the
expectation of making the loan in the amount and time indicated,
including the anticipated interest rate and any conditions associated
with the mortgage, such as, but not limited to, adjustable interest rates,
balloon payments, etc.

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and
conditions, including any purchase options, any capital improvements
to the property and provision of capital equipment.

5) For any option to lease, a copy of the option, including all terms and
conditions.
e) Governmental Appropriations — a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance

accompanied by a statement of funding availability from an official of the governmental unit. If
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funds are to be made available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a resolution or other action
of the governmental unit attesting to this intent.

f) Grants - a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms of the
amount and time of receipt.

g) All Other Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any other funds that
will be used for the project.

$26,823,280 | TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 34, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

The criterion is not applicable. Advocate Aurora Health, Inc has a AA long-term bond rating from Fitch and
Standard & Poors. Advocate Aurora Health, Inc has an Aa3 long-term bond rating from Moody’s. See
Attachment 34.
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2522, 1:53 P\ Fitch Affirms Advocata Aurcra Haalth's (IL] IDR at &A% Cutlook Siable
FitchRatings

RATING ACTION COMMENTARY

Fitch Affirms Advocate Aurora
Health's (IL) IDR at 'AA’;
Outlook Stable

Mon 25 Jul, 2022 - 1:47 PM ET

Fitch Ratings - Chicago - 25 Jul 2022: Fitch Ratings has affirmed Advocate Aurora Health's
[AAH) Issuer Default Rating (IDR) at ‘AA. Fitch has also affirmed at 'A4 the outstanding
revenue bonds issued directly by AAH or by the Wisconsin Health and Educational
Facilities Autharity, llinois Finance Authority, and lllinois Health Facilities Authority an
behalf of AAH,

The Rating Qutlook is Stable.

Fitch has also affirmed AAH's Short-Term Rating at 'F1+' on variable rate debt and CP debt
supported by AAH's self-liquidity.
SECURITY

Bonds are unsecured joint and several obligations of the obligated group, which consists of
the vast majority of AAH hospitals, the AAH parent, and the Advocate Health Care
Metwork and AAH physician practices.

ANALYTICAL CONCLUSION

AAH's ‘AL IDR rating reflects the system's very strong financial profile and leading market
position over a broad and diversified service area covering several population centers of
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Hlinois and Wisconsin. While margins were compressed in Q1 fiscal 2022 and will likely
remain below trend in the near term as AA8H contends with macro labor and inflationary
pressures, the system has a track-record operating success and long-term Fitch believes
margins should rebound to metrics consistent with a strong operating risk assessment over
time as Fitch believes the system's fundamental operating platform remains strong.

The 'F1+' Short-Term Rating is based on AAH maintaining a Long-Term Rating of at least
BA- aswell as adequate internal ligquidity and written procedures consistent with Fitch's
criteria.

AAH is in negotiations to affiliate with Atrium Health. Atrium is headguartered in
Charlotte, NC and operates hospitals in Morth Carolina, South Carolina, Georgia, and
Alabama. The proposed affiliation is not factored into the current rating for AAH.

KEY RATING DRIVERS

Revenue Defensibility: ‘bbb’
Largest Health System in Two States; Competition Presentin Key Markets

AAH is the largest health system in both lllinois and Wisconsin, with a broad market reach
and operating in multiple markets covering a contiguous service area stretching from
northeastern lllinois (Chicago area) through Milwaukee to northeastern Wisconsin,
Despite its leading market position, the system operates in many competitive service areas,
notably Chicago (where A8H is the market leader in a crowded market) and Milwaukes, the
population hubs of the combined service area. AAH's largest competitor is Ascension
Health (AA+), which also operates multiple facilities in both the Milwaukee and Chicago
markets. AAH also has one of the largest and most sophisticated physician integration
models in the industry, with broad population health management capabilities, including
employing approximately 3,600 physicians, and covering nearly three million unigue lives.,

AAH operates in varying service area demographic profiles, as expected from a large and
geographically diverse health system. Service area characteristics are generally stable
supporting a midrange assessment. Much of suburban Chicago (e.g., Lake County),
suburban Milwaukee, and other markets such as Brown County, W1 (Green Bay)
demonstrate generally favorable characteristics such as median household income levels
in-line with or better than the national average and low poverty rates. Combined Medicaid
and self-pay remain below 20% of gross revenue (19% in fiscal 2021) and Fitch does not
expect AAH's payor mix to change materially in the near term. lllinois expanded Medicaid
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under the Affordable Care Act (ACA); while Wisconsin did not expand Medicaid under the
ACA, the state did expand eligibility in prior years.

Operating Risk: s’
Track-Record of Strong Operating Results: Macro Trend Compress Margins in Q1 2022

AAH has a track-record of generating strong operating EBITDA margins, averaging 9.1%
hetween fiscals 2017 and 2021 (including B.9% in 2021), Margins were compressed in Q1
fiscal 2022, with a 0.3% operating margin and 5.0% operating EBITDA margin, as the
system faced macro headwinds affecting the entire sector including a surge of omicron
COVID-19 cases in January and February, intense labor pressures, and elevated inflation. It
is notable that while AAH's margins were compressed in Q1, the system was still profitable
for the guarter (which did not include recording CARES Act grants) and many paer health
systems suffered deep operating losses,

Theweaker margins in Q1 2022 portend compressed operating metrics for full-year 2022
as the aforementioned macro pressures persist for the rest of the year and likely into 2023,
Mevertheless, over the long-term, Fitch expects AAH's should rebound to levels consistent

with a strong operating assessment.

Capital spending plans are manageable. AAH's capital budget for 2022 is nearly $1.2 billion.
If AAH spends at that pace, the capital spending ratio would approach 2x, although the
capex is flexible, The highlighted project is the construction of a new patient pavilion at
Advocate lllinois Masonic Medical Center in Chicago. Beyond 2022, the capital spending
ratio is expected to approximate 1x. AAH expects to issue $250 million of new money debt
in2023.

Financial Profile: 'aa'

Strong Capital-Related Ratios Should be Sustained

AAH's financial profile is very strong. Capital-related ratios should remain strong in the
forward-looking scenario analysis, including in a stress case, despite the current macro
pressures.

At FYE 2021, AAH had nearly $3.9 billion of direct debt and unrestricted cash and
investments exceeded $11.6 billion. AAH's defined benefit pension plans remain well
funded, with a funded ratio of 5% at FYE 2021 compared with a projected benefit
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obligation of approximately $2.5 billion (because the pension plans are collectively more
than 80% funded, Fitch does not include the underfunded status in calculating adjusted

debt). Net adjusted debt (adjusted debt minus unrestricted cash and investments) was
favorably negative at nearly -$7.8 billion at FYE 2021.

AAH's capital-related ratios should remain consistently strong, even in the stress case of
Fitch's forward-looking scenario analysis, Cash-to-adjusted debt was 300% at FYE 2021
and net adjusted debt-to-adjusted EBITDW was favorably negative at approximately -3x. In
the stress case of the scenario analysis, net adjusted debt-to-adjusted EBITDA is favorably
negative by year two and cash-to-adjusted debt does not drop below 230% (and exceeds
300% by vear four).

The 'F1+' short-term rating is based on AAH maintaining a long-term rating of at least ‘AA-
AfH maintains sufficient discounted internal liguid resources and has implemented written
procedures to fund amy un-remarketed put on the £1.2 billion of theoretical maximum
potential debt supported by self-liquidity, A8H's self-liquidity supported demand debt is
comprised of its puttable VRDO bonds not supported by standby bond purchase
agreements [SBPAs) as well as the $1 billion maximum authorized under the taxable CP
program [only $50 million was outstanding as of March 31, 2022),

Asymmetric Additional Risk Considerations

There are no asymmetric risk factors identified with AAH's rating.

Maximum annual debt service (MADS) is approximately $227 million, based on smoothing
debt service (actual MADS is just owver $820 million, based on a bullet payment in 2050).
MADS coverage based on fiscal 2021 results was strong at approximately 11x and does not
pose an asymmetric risk, The MTIincludes a minimum historical debt service coverage
covenant of 1.10x AAH had approximately 330 days cash on hand at FYE 2021 {excluding
Medicare advance payment funds and deferred employer FICA tax), and just over 300 days
atunaudited March 31, 2022, and therefore days cash does not pose an asymmetric risk,

RATING SENSITIVITIES

Factors that could, individually or collectively, lead to positive rating action/upgrade:
—-Sustained improvement in operating EBITDA margin consistently above 10%;

--Considerable growth in unrestricted cash levels leading to superlative cash-to-adjusted
deht,
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Factors that could, individually or collectively, lead to negative rating action/downgrade:

—-Unexpectedly prolonged compression in operating margins. such that the operating
EBITDA margin is expected to remain below 7% for a sustained period beyond what Fitch
currently expects, which would lead to an operating risk profile more consistent with a
midrange assessment;

-Weaker balance sheet metrics, leading to thinner capital-related ratios in the long term,

particularly if compounded with an above-mentioned sustained weakening of operating
EBITDA margin;

-=If the proposed affiliation with Atrium leads to considerably tighter operating margins
andfor much weaker balance sheet ratios, AAH's rating could be pressured.

BEST/WORST CASE RATING SCENARIO

International scale credit ratings of Sovereigns, Public Finance and Infrastructure issuers
have a best-case rating upgrade scenario (defined as the 9%th percentile of rating
transitions, measured in a positive direction) of three notches over a three-year rating
horizon; and a worst-case rating downgrade scenario (defined as the 9%9th percentile of
rating transitions, measured in a negative direction) of three notches over three years. The
complete span of best- and worst-case scenario credit ratings for all rating categories
ranges from ‘AAA to'DY. Best- and worst-case scenario credit ratings are based on historical
performance. For more information about the methodology used to determine sector-
specific best- and worst-case scenario credit ratings, visit

https:/fwww fitchratings.com/site/re/ 10111579,

AblH is the result of the April 2018 merger between Advocate Health Care (IL) (Advocate)
and Aurora Health Care (WI1) (Aurora), The system includes 24 acute care hospitals and one
behavioral health hospital (totaling more than 5,100 staffed beds), approximately 3,600
employed physicians, and operates roughly 500 outpatient locations and 100 retail clinics
in contiguous markets stretching from the Chicago metro area north through Milwaukee,
to Marinette, W/ in the north. AAH is the largest healthcare provider in both Hlinois and
Wisconsin, AAH recorded maore than $14 billion in operating revenue in audited fiscal 2021
(Dec. 31 year-end),

In addition to the sources of information identified in Fitch's applicable criteria specified
below, this action was informed by information from Lumesis,
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REFEREMNCES FOR SUBSTANTIALLY MATERIAL SOURCE CITED AS KEY DRIVER OF

RATING

The principal sources of information used in the analysis are described in the Applicable

Criteria.

ESG CONSIDERATIONS

Unless otherwise disclosed in this section, the highest level of ESG credit relevance is a
score of '3% This means ESG issues are credit-neutral or have only a minimal credit impact
on the entity, either due to their nature or the way in which they are being managed by the

entity. For more information on Fitch's ESG Relevance Scores, visit
wwnw. fitchratings.com/esg.
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RATING ACTIONS
ENTITY / DEBT = RATING = PRIOR =
Advocate Aurara Health, ITIDR AR Rating Guticak Stab A4 Rating
Inc. (W) ating Butlook stabie Outlook
Stable
Affirmed

Advocate Aurora 7 AA Rating Outliook Stabl Affirmed Al Rating

Health, Inc. (WI) ating Outiook stable rme Cutlook

/General Revenues/1 Stable

LT

Advocate Health T AA Rating Outlook Stabl Affirmed Af Rating

Care Network (IL) ating Outlock Atable Med Outleck

fGeneral Revenues/1 Stable

LT

Advocate Aurora F1+

T
Health, Inc. (W1 5T Fi1+  Affirmed

/Self-Liquidity/1 5T

VIEW ADDITIONAL RATIMNG DETAILS

FITCH RATINGS AMALYSTS
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Mark Pascaris
Director

Primary Rating Analyst

+1312 3683135
mark.pascaris@ftchratings.com

Fitch Ratings, Inc.

One Morth Wacker Drive Chicago, IL 60806

Kevin Holloran

Senior Director

Secondary Rating Analyst
+1512 8135700
kevin.holloran@ftchratings.com

Eva Thein

Senior Director
Committee Chairperson
+1212 908 0674
evathein@htchratings.com

MEDIA CONTACTS

Sandro Scenga
Mew York
+1 212 %08 0278

sandro.scenga@thefitchgroup.com
Additional information is available on www. hitchratings.com

PARTICIPATION STATUS

The rated entity (and/or its agents) or, In the case of structured finance, one or more of the
transaction parties participated in the rating process except that the following issuer(s), if
any, did not participate in the rating process, or provide additional information, beyvond the
issuer's available public disclosure,

APPLICABLE CRITERIA

LS, Mot-For-Profit Hospitals and Health Systems Rating Criteria (pub. 18 Mov 2020)

(including rating assumption sensitivity)
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Public 5ector, Revenue-Supported Entities Rating Criteria (pub. 01 Sep 2021) (including

rating assumption sensitivity)

APPLICABLE MODELS

Murmbers in parentheses accompanying applicable madel{s) contain hyperlinks to criteria

providing description of model(s).
Portfolio Analysis Model (PAM), v2.0.0(1)

ADDITIOMAL DISCLOSURES
Dodd-Frank Rating Information Disclosure Form
Solicitation Status

Endorsement Policy

ENDORSEMENT STATUS

Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation EU Endorsed, UK Endorsed

DISCLAIMER & DISCLOSURES

All Fitch Ratings (Fitch) credit ratings are subject to certain limitations and disclaimers.
Please read these limitations and disclaimers by following this link:
https:fwwwiftchratings.com/understandingereditratings. In addition, the following
https:fwwwefitchratings.com/rating-definitions-document details Fitch's rating definitions
for each rating scale and rating categories, including definitions relating to default. ESMA
and the FCA are required to publish historical default rates in a central repository in
accordance with Articles 11(2) of Regulation (EC) Mo 1060/200% of the European
Parliament and of the Council of 146 September 2009 and The Credit Rating Agencies
[Amendment ete.] (EU Exit) Regulations 2019 respectively.

Published ratings, criteria, and methodologies are available from this site at all times. Fitch's
code of conduct, confidentiality, conflicts of interest, affiliate firewall, compliance, and
ather relevant policies and procedures are also available from the Code of Conduct section
of this site. Directors and shareholders' relevant interests are available at
https:fwwewftchratings.com/site/regulatory, Fitch may have provided another permissible
or ancillary service to the rated entity or its related third parties. Details of permissible or
ancillary service(s) for which the lead analyst is based in an ESMA- or FCA-registered Fitch
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Ratings company (or branch of such a company) can be found on the entity summary page
for this issuer on the Fitch Ratings website.

Inissuing and maintaining its ratings and in making other reports (including forecast
information), Fitch relies on factual information it receives from issuers and underwriters
and from other sources Fitch believes to be credible. Fitch conducts a reasonable
investigation of the factual information relied upon by it in accordance with its ratings
methodology, and obtains reasonable verification of that information from independent
sources, to the extent such sources are available for a given security or in a given
jurisdiction. The manner of Fitch's factual investigation and the scope of the third-party
verification it obtains will vary depending on the nature of the rated security and its issuer,
the requirements and practices in the jurisdiction in which the rated security is offered and
sold and/or the issuer is located, the availability and nature of relevant public information,
access to the management of the issuer and its advisers, the availability of pre-existing
third-party verifications such as audit reports, agreed-upon procedures letters, appraisals,
actuarial reports, engineering reports, legal opinions and other reports provided by third
parties, the availability of independent and competent third- party verification sources with
respect to the particular security or in the particular jurisdiction of the issuer, and a variety
of other factors. Users of Fitch's ratings and reports should understand that neither an
enhanced factual investigation nor any third-party verification can ensure that all of the
information Fitch relies on in connection with a rating or a report will be accurate and
complete. Uitimately, the issuer and its advisers are responsible for the accuracy of the
information they provide to Fitch and to the market in offering documents and other
reports. In issuing its ratings and its reports, Fitch must rely on the work of experts,
including independent auditors with respect to financial statements and attorneys with
respect to legal and tax matters. Further, ratings and forecasts of financial and other
information are inherently forward-looking and embody assumptions and predictions
about future events that by their nature cannot be verified as facts. As a result, despite any
verification of current facts, ratings and forecasts can be affected by future events or
conditions that were not anticipated at the time a rating or forecast was issued or affirmed,

The information in this report is provided “as is” without any representation or warranty of
any kind. and Fitch does not represent or warrant that the report or any of its contents will
meet any of the requirements of a recipient of the report. A Fitch rating is an opinion as to
the creditworthiness of a security. This opinion and reports made by Fitch are based on
established criteria and methodologies that Fitch is continuously evaluating and updating.
Therefore, ratings and reports are the collective work preduct of Fitch and no individual, or

group of individuals, is solely responsible for a rating or a report. The rating does not
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address the risk of loss due to risks other than credit risk, unless such risk is specifically
mentioned. Fitch is not engaged in the offer or sale of any security. All Fitch reports have
shared authorship. Individuals identified in a Fitch report were involved in, but are not
solely responsible for, the opinions stated therein. The individuals are named for contact
purposes only. A report providing a Fitch rating is neither a prospectus nor a substitute for
the information assembled, verified and presented to investors by the issuer and its agents
in connection with the sale of the securities. Ratings may be changed or withdrawn at any
time for any reason in the sole discretion of Fitch. Fitch does not provide investment advice
of any sort, Ratings are not a recommendation to buy, sell, or hold any security. Ratings do
not comment on the adequacy of market price, the suitability of any security for a particular
investor, or the tax-exempt nature or taxability of payments made in respect to any
security, Fitch receives fees from issuers, insurers, guarantors, other obligors, and
underwriters for rating securities. Such fees generally vary from US$1,000 to US$750,000
[or the applicable currency equivalent) per issue. In certain cases, Fitch will rate all or a
number of issues issued by a particular issuer, or insured or guaranteed by a particular
insurer or guarantor, for a single annual fee. Such fees are expected to vary from
US$10,000 to USH1,500,000 (or the applicable currency equivalent). The assignment,
publication, or dissernination of a rating by Fitch shall not constitute a consent by Fitch to
use its name as an expert in connection with any registration statement filed under the
United States securities laws, the Financial Services and Markets Act of 2000 of the United
Kingdom, or the securities laws of any particular jurisdiction. Due to the relative efficiency
of electronic publishing and distribution, Fitch research may be available to electronic
subscribers up to three days earlier than to print subscribers,

For Australia, Mew Zealand, Taiwan and South Korea only: Fitch Australia Pty Ltd holds an
Australian financial services license (AF5 license no. 337 123) which authorizes it to provide
credit ratings to wholesale clients only, Credit ratings information published by Fitch is not
intended to be used by persons who are retail clients within the meaning of the
Corporations Act 2001,

Fitch Ratings, Inc. is registered with the LS. Securities and Exchange Commission as a
Mationally Recognized Statistical Rating Orgzanization (the "NRESRO”). While certain of the
MRESREC's credit rating subsidiaries are listed on Item 3 of Form MESEO and as such are
authorized toissue credit ratings on behalf of the NRSRO (see

https:fwew. fitchratings.com/site/regulatory), other credit rating subsidiaries are not listed
on Form MRSRO (the "non-MRSROs") and therefore credit ratings issued by those
subsidiaries are not issued on behalf of the NRESRO. However, non-MRESRO personnel may
participate in determining credit ratings issued by or on behalf of the NRSRO.

hitps: s filchratings comires sarchius-publc-inancaTilch-affirms-advocate-aunara-healh-ikidr-al-aa-outiook-slatle-25-07-2022 101

LGH CAC Expansion and Modernization Page 133 Attachment 34



#23-045

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2021 - Edition

TI2622, 1:53 PM Fitch Adfirms Advocale Aurcra Health's {IL) IDR at "6 Outiock Stable
Copyright © 2022 by Fitch Ratings, Inc., Fitch Ratings Ltd. and its subsidiaries. 33 Whitehall
Street, NY, MY 10004. Telephone: 1-800-753-4824, (212) $08-0500. Fax: (212) 480-4435.
Reproduction or retransmission inwhale or in part is prohibited except by permission. All
rights reserved.

READ LESS

SOLICITATION STATUS

The ratings above were solicited and assigned or maintained by Fitch at the request of the
rated entity/issuer or a related third party. Any exceptions follow below,

ENDORSEMENT POLICY

Fitch's international credit ratings produced outside the EU or the UK, as the case may be,
are endorsed for use by regulated entities within the EW or the UK, respectively, for
regulatory purposes, pursuant to the terms of the EU CRA Regulation or the UK Credit
Rating Agencies (Amendment etc.) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019, as the case may be. Fitch's
approach to endorsement in the EU and the UK can be found on Fitch's Eegulatory Affairs
page on Fitch's website, The endorsement status of international credit ratings is provided
within the entity summary page for each rated entity and in the transaction detail pages for
structured finance transactions on the Fitch website. These disclosures are updated on a
daily basis.

US Public Finance  Healthcare and Pharma  Morth America  United States
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Credit Profile

IMlinois Finance Authority, Nlinois
Adwocate Aurora Health, Illinois
[lingks Fin Auth (Advecate Aurera Health Credit Greup) sy
Long Term Rating A/ Stable Affirmed

Credit Highlights

« S&P Global Ratings affirmed its 'AA" long-term rating on Advocate Health and Hospitals Corp. (AHHC), 11L's various
series of taxable debt and its "AA' long-term ratings on the [lincis Finance Authority's (IFA) and the Wisconsin
Health and Education Facilities Authority's various series of fixed-rate, tax-exempt revenue bonds. All bonds were
issued for AHHC and the related obligated group (known as Advocate Aurora Health credit group, or AAH), and our
analysis reflects the entire system.

= At the same time, S&P Global Ratings affirmed the "AA' long-term component of its dual ratings CAASA-1+' and
A A1, where applicable, on the [FA’s various variable-rate demand bonds (VEDBs) backed by standby bond
purchase agreements (SBPAs) and issued for AAH. The 'A-14" short-term compoenent of the rating on the issuer’s
series 2008C-3A4 bonds and the 'A-1' short-term component of the rating on the series 2008C-1 and 2008C-2B bonds
reflect our view of the SBPAs in effect from various financial institutions. They further reflect our view of the
likelihcod of payment of tenders, and our view of liquidity facilities that cover all of the bond series.

= Last, S&P Global Ratings affirmed its “A-1+" short-term rating on AAHC's commercial paper {CP) program and its
Al A1+ dual rating on the IFA's series 201 1B VRDBs in windows mode where the long-term rating is based on
AMH, The "A-14' short-term rating on AHHCs CP program (authorized to 31 billien with $50 million cutstanding)
and 20118 bonds is based on self-liquidity.

+ The outlook is stable.

Security

The rated bonds are the general, unsecured joint and several obligations of the obligated group.

Credit overview

Specifically, the "AA' rating reflects AAH's healthy enterprize profile and salid market position in the broad Chicageland
and eastern Wisconsin markets as well ag its historically healthy financial prefile, which, like that of many hospitals and
health systemns, has been tested in 2022 with much weaker operating cash flow margins along with declines in reserves

given investment market fluctuations, though the latter remains adequate for the rating. Management has continued to
match capital spending with cash flow to maintain balance sheet strength. The team has completed several key
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inpatient and outpatient projects while moving ferward on investments tied te transforming inte a more holistic health
care organization and supporting key strategic initiatives, including its definitive agreement to merge with Atrium
Hiealth, signed in May Z022.

Management is working through approvals to finalize its merger with Atrium Health and, if approved, expects that the
combined organization, with more than $25 billion in operating revenue on a pro forma basis, will allow AAH to use its
scale and expertize to transition its business model to whole-person care and wellness and identify innovative ways to
deliver care to improve quelity and lower costs. The combined organization would have significantly increased
geographic diversification across nencontiguous states, creating a large platform for various care pilots and more
widespread programs to further its goals. The combined system, named Advocate Health, would have 50-50 board
representation from the two organizations before becoming a self-perpetuating board (sirnilar 1o AAH). The system
would use a co-CEO model for the first 18 months, followed by the appointment of Bugene Woods, current CED of
Atriumn Health, as sole CEQ. For more information on Atrium Health, see our report published Dec, 21, 2021, on
RatingsDiirect.

We will evaluate the combined system upon closing, pending necessary approvals, including a full conversation with
the new management team on strategy. synergies, and performance. We believe that Atrium Health (&4-/Stable} and
AAH have excellent enterprise profiles and business positions in their respective markets, with different and likely
complementary strengths and demonstration of a very good fiscal 2021 recovery. That said, interim 2022 results at
AAH are lighter than historical trends and Atrium Health iz experiencing operating losses. The rating on the combined
organization, which we would expect io harmonize soon after merger completion and likely regardless of the number
of obligated groups remaining, could result in rating pressure for the combined organization if we come 1o expect
prolenged performance weakness, especially if we also see weakening in key balance sheet ratios. The current
operating environment is difficult for many organizations, but we believe that maintaining the "A4&° rating would likely
entail that the combined organization generate improved performance compared with interim 2022 while maintaining
pro forma balance sheet strength.

The "A4' long-term rating reflects our view of AAH's:

= Broad and diverse position acness two states, including the large Chicage metro and eastern Wisconsin markets,
coupled with enterprise strengths around investments in the full care continuum, clinical integration, employed
physician models, and sound accountable care organization (AC0) and risk-based payer strategies;

+ Leading and stable position in the market = a whole although AAH operates in competitive markets with some
weaker demaographic trends in parts of the [linois market;

= Sl good balance sheet ratios with light deibt, including leverage of 20%, unrestricted reserves to long-term debt of
mere than 3x, and a lighter but stll goed 280 days' cash on hand; and

= History of peod maximum annual debt service coverage (smoothed) returning te mare than 5x in fscal 2021 {after
dipping in hscal 2020) azs a result of improving operating margins, very good investment returns, and a low debt

burden; and

+ Solid menagement team that continues to look for performance improvement initiatives while focusing on broader
strategic goals.
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Partly offsetting the above strengths, in our view, are AAH's:

« Cyperating marging and cash flow that are soft and will likely be softer than historical results over the next year or 5o
but that should improve from interim 2022 lows;

+ Strong competition in almest all of the markets in which it operates, from other systems and large academic medical
centers; and

+ Continued exposure to llincis Medicaid (through legacy Advocate Health Care).

Environmental, social, and governance

We view AAH's governance risks as neutral to the rating. as AAH has successfully brought two large enterprises
together with minimal operating challenges on account of its good management and governance. We believe this lends
some stahbility to the credit profile as further significant merger activity is conternplated. AAH has increased human
capital social risks tied to the higher labor costs and staffing issues, as with many providers in the sector, and
management is implementing a host of initiatives e manage those expenses but notes that the challenges are likely to
persist through 2022 and likely 2023, We view health and safety risks tied to COVID-19 as easing but will moniter
surges. And we Believe AAH'Ss exposure to the llinois Medicaid payer mix presents increased social capital sk given
AAHs slightly higher Medicaid levels [relative to those of peers),. although its diversified footprint helps offset this nisk.
Finally, we view environmental risk as neutral given the dispersion of facilities in a broad service area with limited
environmental challenges. The team is focused on reducing its carbon footprint, and we believe that this could benefit
the organization if future regulations come into play.

Outlook

The stable cutlook reflects our view of AAH's healthy business position coupled with sound balance sheet flexibility,
including low debt. The stable outlook also reflects our expectation of minimal new money debt over the next couple
af years and our view of a dizciplined management team that, while generating lower-than-historical operating
marginz, continues to identify operating improvement areas and balance cash flow with strategic and capital spending
plans, We believe the combined enterprise profile of AAH and Atrium could support the rating, but we also recognize
the challenging landscape. We believe demenstration of impreving operating trends for the combined erganization will
be important to maintaining the combined rating of "AA&", should the merger be completed.

Downside scenario

We could revise the outlock to negative or lower the rating in case AAH records sustained weaker operating margins,
particularly if the balance sheet further weakens. Any significant issuance of debt could alse result in rating pressure, as
the balance sheet is a key credit strength and stabilizing factor. In addition, we could consider a lower rating if AAHs
merger with Atriurn Health is completed and we come to believe that the combined system’s financial profile and

trends are more in line with & lower rating.

Upside scenario
We are not likely to raise the rating ower the next two years given the recent margin pressure and the potential merger
with Atriurn Health, Owver time, we could raise the rating if AAH executes on system strategies and demonstrates
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meaningful multivear improvement to its financial profile with financial ratios across all metrics commensurate with a
higher rating.

Credit Opinion

Enterprise Profile: Very Strong

AAH maintains expanded market position with focus on changes for its future state

AAH maintains a strong presence in its various markets, but those markets remain highly competitive and the
organization continues 1o focus on evolving the organization beyond just episodic care, The team and board have
outlined goals they need to meet aver the next five years as part of the 2025 strategic plan to maintain that strength as
well as transition and diversify the organization away from purely inpatient and episodic care to a health business
using data and technology along with other business investments. Recent initiatives to diversify and focus on
consurnerism and wellness include meaningful investments in MobileHelp {April 2022) and Senior Helpers (April
2021). The former is a remote monitoring company and the ather helps maintain the health of seniors outside of the
clinical care setting,

We believe the organization's physician integration platform (and various models) positions it well to continue to
improve care quality, lower the cost of care, and accept measured risk. The mix of physician and payer models,
inchuding various projects such as these that incorporate Medicare Advaniage, allows AAH to experiment and learn
what works best with which markets and pepulations. For example, AAH has parinered in different ways with beth
Quartz and Anthem in Wisconsin for Medicane Advantage products. More specifically, in the llinois market AAH
benefits from a clinically integrated network (Adwvocate Physician Partner, or APP) with both its employed (&dwvocate
Medical Group) and independent physicians. In the Wisconsin market, AAH has a stronger physician employment
model. AAH has also had success in its various Medicare ACO models, so we expect it to build on that. [n eddition,
legacy AHCN haz accepted full and partial risk {capitation) on certain commercial and Medicare advantage contracts
directly and through APE Legacy Aurora Health Care has had a history of working directly with employers.

AAH's investments and merger with Atrium Health are aligned with broader strategic goals

We believe AAH has a strong and capable management team with considerable bench strength throughout the
organization and a history of financial discipline and strategle Focus that we believe will serve the organization well as
it enters a perod of increased industry pressures. AAH has had financial operating challenges during COVID, including
the most recent interim year, but we view favorably that the team has still been able to complete key capital and
strategic investments during this time.

While core strategies focus on financial health, customer service, and safety and quality, the far years of the 2025
strategic plan begin to pivot the organization toward managing under different reimbursement meodels, including a
focus on health and wellness as demonstrated by its recent investments mentioned above. We believe that AAHs and
Atriumn Health's merger and scale could help accelerate some of those broader strategic goals with further
diversification into a state with better demographic growth trends to support the combined organization's overall
financial health,
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Table 1
Advocate Health Care Network and Subsidiaries Utilization
=Six months ended June 30-- ==Flzcal year ended Dee. 31—

202 2021 2020 a0y
Inpatient admissions 108,557 233,736 235,354 250 463
Expatvadent inpatient admissiors 317,555 564,205 30,121 707,253
Emergency vists 221,549 861,307 512,533 808,276
Ingpatien pargeries® 27,683 50,043 55,382 67,7890
Crtpatient surgeries 78,113 163,206 134,882 162,245
Medicane cape mix index 1.8531 1.8564 LBEIT 1.ABSS
FTE employees £id, 800 £3,700 64,000 63,000
Active phvsicians 8,200 8400 8,500 8,800
Medicare () H L] H 3z
Medicand [Vl i iz iz [} ]
Commercials Bloes Vel 56 55 a4 74

*Excludes noomal neewbarn, psychiatric, rehahbilitation, and long-term care faclity admissions. §Based on net reverme. FTE--Full-time equivalent.

Financial Profile: Very Strong

Pressured labor market could slow margin recovery and cash flow after bounceback in 2021

AAH generated good operating cash How margin improvement in fiscal 2021 {following a weaker fiscal 2020), but
performance returned to light though positive levels in interim 2022, as for many, given labor and inflationary changes.
Further affecting cash flow has been weaker investment returns compared with those of recent years. Management is
still targeting a return to historical highs of around 3.5% to 4.0% operating margins, but that could take time. Agency
nurse usage and salary increases to retain workers have contributed to the negative impact to performance and cash
flow. To offset these increases, management is focused on different recruitment and retention strategies for staff,
reviewing payer and supply contracts while looking at mere efficient ways to deliver care, including combining certain
service lines across hospitals. The limited growth market could challenge AAH's ability to recruit, but we will monitor
AAH maintains some risk through capitated revenue and shared savings programs, among other modest initiatives.
While all of AAH's markets are fairly competitive, we believe that Illinois is more chellenging, partly as a result of the
payer environment, and believe that some of the growth, payer, and market trends in Wisconzin will continue to
benefit AAH's operating performance, Growth and revenue diversification will remain focuses, as the aforementioned
acguigitions and investments indicate, Management expects marging 1o remain weak through 2022 although improved
from interim 2022 levels. and we do believe that continued improvement would b2 key to maintaining the 'AA" rating

Unrestricted reserves decline from 2021 highs but are still good for the rating

Unrestricted reserves declined fram highs of 2021, and though reserves still remain healthy we believe AAH will
mianage capital spending at lower than historical levels to match cash flow, We will monitor how this affects AAH's
competitive position and strategic goals. (AAH excludes some self-insurance reserves from its unrestricted reserve
calculation, so we believe that overall cash on hand could be slightly stronger but not materially different.)

AAHs investment allocation mix has a reduced equities exposure of only 30% but a far amount of exposure to
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alternatives at about 50%, meaning that AAH has given up seme liquidity with the goal of salid returns with less
volatility. That said, we view overall liquidity as healthy given AAH's 3536 million of cash and cash equivalents, which
includes modest Medicare Accelerated and Advance Payment (MAAF) funds that will be paid back this year, a §1
billion syndicated line of credit, and an suthorized $1 billion of its CP program. Within its investments, AAH maintains
good liquidity with about $5.6 billion (excluding Medicare Accelerated and Advance Payment funds) available in 30
days, AAH had unfunded commitments of about $2 billion for its private equity and real estate partnership investments
as of June 30, 2022 (to be funded over the next seven years), which we view as sizable but manageable for now,

Capital spending has been managed well with completion of and allocation to few larger projects coupled with some
strategic investments outlined above. Management recently completed a new enterprise resource planning system, its
replacement Facility Shebovgan, a large Epic implementation at legacy AHCN, and other inpatient and outpatient
facilities. Finally, the remaining large projects include a new outpatient facility and repovations to an inpatient facility
at linois Masonic Medical Center, in Chicago.

Low debt with diversified structure but with some risks in remarketing and bullets

AAHs long-term debdt remains low with modest debt service relative to revenue, thus providing some ongoing
flexibility. The actual debt service schedule is uneven and includes a number of bullets, but with lower actual debt
seTvice In near years to help preserve cash flow for other spending needs.

Moreover, if managerment issues debt, it usually does so to keep debt consistent with that of recent years, altheugh the
team did isswe debt opportunistically in 2020 at the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic. Management may issuwe a small
amount of net new money debt over the next year; we believe it could absorb this, but the operating trend will be a
factor. Owerall debt structure is conservative, but with several bullets and tenders that will heve to be refinanced or
paid along with some remarketing and renewal risks, Other than the bullets and & small amount of contingent debt, we
believe AAH'S debt structure 15 in line with itz balance sheet profile and investment allocation. More specifically, about
B0% of AAH's debt is fixed. excluding swaps, and the remainder is in some type of vanable-rate mede (such as index
rate bonds, floating-rate notes, VRDBs, and CP).

We don't view the bank debt as a significant risk given AAH'S still good Gnancial profile and given that key rating and
financial covenants related to the bank-held debt are maintenance of a credit rating of 'BBE” or higher and coverage of
1.1x or higher.

AAH matntained five Moating- te Axed-rate swaps with a total notional ameant of about 3350 million ag of June 30,
2022 (including two that are not tied to any specific debt). Counterparties vary, and as of that date the habality on the
swaps was modest at §48.5 million with no collateral posting required in recent years.

We view AAH's defined benefit plans as being of minimal sk given the good funding and legacy AHCN's active plan’s
status as a church plan. Legacy AHCN also has an Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 plan that is
frozen. Legacy Aurcra Health Care maintains a defined benefit plan that is well funded (more than 90%) and frozen to
new benefits and entrants (as of 2012).
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Takble 2
Advocate Health Care Network and Subsidiaries Financial Summary
==fix months ended “AA’ rated health care
June 30-- —Fiscal year ended Dec. 31-- syatemn medians

2032 2021 R0EM g 2021
Financial performance
Net patient revenoe {$000s) 6546322 1280060 11337814 11825101 4400085
Total aperatmg revene (F0002] T.ORG 400 12907,181 12.068,012 12,743,703 5.310.009
Total operating experses ($000s) TORZ8T2 13541700  1Z969.315 11385102 5,141,836
Orpearating income {30003} 2,419 455,451 18,657 358,601 185,339
Omperating margin {%) .03 1.2 76 181 4.00
Mel noaoperaling income (3000s) a0, 0ea 375,142 [Z9.868) 205,956 310,486
Excess mcome |[$0005) 893,023 fil, Big 514,701
Excess margin {13) 1.29 53 G800
Operating ERIDA mangn [%) 4,58 5,50 B2 730
ERIDA margin (%3] 617 568 G558 14.20
Net avallabde for debt servicoe (3000s] 442,878 1,500,103 T4L.169 1.240,827 T5R.893
MADS (£500s) 227,510 227,520 227,520 227,520 87,454
MADES coserage [x] 189 5559 118 545 B0
Omerating-lease-adjusted coverage (x) 3.04 4.52 187 N 5.40
Liguidity and financial Mexibility
Unmestrictad reserves (3000s) 10ETRINE  117TRB0E 10807642 8812556 5 470,508
Unrestricted days' cash on hand 2870 3313 Ja g 2721 3508
}:l':llﬂllitled reserves Tetal long-term debt nG.E 335.1 LT 2029 3349
i
Linrgstrictod reserves/conbmgent Nabilites 1,175 1,221.%9 1.063.0 B45.5 1366
()
Awerage age of plang (years) L] 98 3] BT 11.3
Capital expendturesdepreciation and 815 1012 125.6 Li4.6 L4ES
ampetization {%)
Drebt and Hiabilities
Total king-tesmn dedit ($000s] 3403050 E514,858 2480081 2,008,501 1,435, 14800
Lomg-term debt A capitalzation (%) 8 0.0 223 0 200
Contingenit llabizias (3000s) B63.061 B63.061 87,582 1037353 1170
Contingerit liabdtiestoeal long-term debt are 174 m4 145 113
(%)
Drebat burden (%) 1.58 158 L.75 176 LED
Deftmed beredit plan Randad starus (%) HA 24,74 82329 a1, 14 an40
Miscellaneous
Medicars advance paymsenls |[S000s 244,000 515,000 TT3,000 M8 MNR
Shoet-term borrowings ($000s)* - - - - MNR
COVID-18-relsted funds (S000s) - 13,813 30,254 B23,655 N/A MNR
recogrized
fimk-bossed capital ratio (34) Mi& [P (LY [LEFY MNR
Total net special I'I'.‘u!‘llr.f_ {5000s) 100,132 211,619 232,533 194,852 MNR
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Tahle 2
Advocate Health Care Network and Subsidiaries Financial Summary (cont.)
-%ix months ended "AA’ rated health care
June 30-- —Fiscal year ended Dec. 31-- system medians
03z F{rd] 2020 e 021

*Excluded from unrestricted reserves, long-term debt, and contingent lHabdbities. MADS--Maximum anmual debt service.
MNR—-Median nat reported. NS A-Nat applicable.

Credit Snapshot

= Group rating methodology status: The rating reflects our view of AAH's group credit profile and the obligated
pgroup's core statug, Accordingly, we rate the obligated group at the level of the AAH group credit profile,

= Credit averview: AAH operates across northern [linois and eastern Wisconsin with mere than 25 acute care
hospitals, more than 3,600 employed physicians, and numerous clinics and cutpatient settings. The system also
includes two ACOs, APP (a clinically integrated network), and a joint wenture insurance company in Wisconsin
with Anthem. AAH also includes long-term teaching affiliations with the University of lllinois at Chicago Health
Sciences Center, Rosalind Franklin University, and Midwestern University. As part of these affiliations, AAH
teaing about GO0 residents in 31 residency programs,

= Self-liquidity rating: The ‘A-1+' short-term component of the rating on the $70 million series 201 1B windows
bonds and 350 million CP program reflects our view of the credit strength inherent in the "AA' long-term rating
on AAH's debt and the sufficiency of AAH"s unrestricted reserves to provide liquidity support for the bonds. Qur
Fund Ratings and Evaluations Group assesses the liquidity of AAH's unrestricted investment portfolio to
determine the edequacy and availability of these funds to guarantee the timely purchase of the bonds tendered
in the event of a failed remarketing We monitor the liquidity and sufficiency of AAH's investment portfolio
monthly. AAH identified approximately $233 million of discounted assets as of June 30, 2021, to provide
self-liquidity, The assets are invested in highly rated money market funds, LLS, Treasuries, agencies,
investrnent-grade debt, speculative-grade debt, and domestic equities, providing sufficient coverage in the event
of a failed remarketing. Management has established clear and detailed procedures to ensure the maintenamce of
sufficient asset coverage and to meet liquidity demands on a timely basis. We monitor the liquidity and
sufficiency of assets pledged by AAH on a monthly basis. In addition, and as relates to the CP program,
rmanagement has & restriction of $200 million coming due within & seven-day period [although only 350 million
is outstanding), but this may change depending on what management ends up using in that program.

Related Research

Through The ESG Lens 3.0 The [ntersection Of ESG Credit Factors And U5, Public Finance Credit Factors, March 2,
2022

Ratings Detail {As Of September 19, 2022)

Advocate Aurpra Health taxable bnds
Long Term Rarag AA/Srable Affirmed
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Ratings Dwetail (As OF September 19, ) {cont.)

Advocate Aurcra Health taxabde comm pap nts ser 2019 dd 02/ 25/2019 due 0840172019

Short Term Rating A-1+

Illinois Finanee Authority, Ilinois
Advocate Aurora Health, Minois

IMlinois Finance Awthority (Adwocate Aurora Health) rew breds rnktd 0241272020 (Advocate Hith Care Network)

Long Term Raring AA/Srable

Affirmed

Affirmed

llinois Finance Autharity (Advocale Aurora Health] rev breds renked 101502020 (Advocate Hith Care Network) ser 20084-1 ded

045232008 due 117012030

Long Term Raring AA/ Sralrle
Minois Fin Auth {Advecate Aurcra Health Credit Group) sys
Lowg Term Fating Ad/Srable

Minais Fin Auth {Advocate Aurora Health Credit Group) VREDO sys

Lowng Term Raring A A-1+ 7 Gtable

IMlinois Fin Auwth {Advecate Aurcra Health Credit Group) VRDO sys

Long Torm fating AA/A-1/5table

Minais Fin Auth {Advoecate Aurora Health Credit Group) VEDO sys

Lowg Term Raring MM A=+ Btable

Illinais Hith Fac Auth, Illingis
Advocate Aurcra Health, linols
Minais Hith Fac Auth {Advocate Aurora Health Cradit Group) sys

Lowg Term Fafing A Seable
IMlinois Hith Fac Auth {Advecate Aurora Health Credit Group) sys
Lowng Term Rering AA/Sable

‘Wisconsin Hith & Ed Fac Auth, Wisconsin
Advocate Aurora Healsh, Whinois
Wisconsin Hith & Ed Fac Auth

Affirmed

Alfirmed

Affirmed

Affirmed

Auffirmed

Affirmed

Affirmed

Affirmed

Affirmed

Alfirmed

Wisconsin Hith & Ed Fac Auth [Advocate Aurora Health) rev bads rmbctd 01/ 19/2022 (Adwocate Aurora Health] ser 2018B-1 due

Long Term Raring AA /S Sralble
Wisconsin Hith & Ed Fac Auth [Advocate Aurora Health Credit Group) rev bnds
Lowg Term Raring MM Stakle
Wisconsin Hith & Ed Fac Auth [Advocate Aurora Health Credit Group) rev bnds
Long Term Rering AA /S Stalle
Wisconsin Hith & Ed Fac Auth (Advocate Aurora Health Credit Group) rev bnda
Lowy Term Rafing AASSrable
08,15/ 2054
Lowg Term Raring AA/Srable

Wiscansin Hith & Ed Fac Auth [Advocate Aurora Health) rev bads rmbkted 4/8/2021 (Advocate Aurara Health)

Long Term Rafing A Seakle

Affirmed

Adfirmed

Wisconsin Hith & Ed Fac Auth [Advocate Aurora Health) rev bads (Advocate Hith Care) ser 2018C-3

Long Term Raring AA /S Siable

Affirmed

Wisconsin Hith & Ed Fac Auth (Advocate Aurora Health) rev bads (Advocate Hith Care) ser 2018C-4

Long Term Rafing A Stakle
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its npinions and malyses. S&Fs public rmings and aalyses are made mailzhle on its 'Weh stes, wea standamandpoors mm time of chamed, and wwwwoatngsdimet.com
|suteriptinn), and may be distributed through other means, including via S&P publications and thind-party mdistributors. Addtoml information about our ratings fres is
avaiable at wwew standardandpoors comfusratingsines.

STAMOARD & PICE'S, SEP and RATINGEDIRECT 2re mgi demarks of Standard & Poar's Firancal Sendces LLE.

W ETANDW ADANDPOORS COMRATINGEDIRECT SEFTEMBER 19, 2022 11
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MoobDy’s

INVESTORS SERVICE

Rating Action: Moody's revises outlook to stable on Advocate Aurora's
outstanding debt; Aa3 affirmed

18 Oct 2022

MNew York, October 18, 2022 — Moody's Investors Service has affirmead the Aa3, Aa3VMIG 1, and AadP-1
ratings assigned to Advocats Aurora Health's (AAH) oulstanding debt, which includes the obigations of lagacy
borrower, Aurara Health Care, Inc., WI. The outlook has baen revised to stable from positive. AAH had
approximately $3.5 billion of debt cutstanding at fiscal year end 2021.

RATINGS RATIONALE

The revision of the outlook to stable from positive reflects Moody's view that AAH's operating cash flow (OCF)
margin will not likely rebuild to pre-COVID levels, as anticipated in fiscal 2023, following moderation in fiscal
2022, due o labor challenges and genaral inflation as well a5 unaven valume recovery. Also, a return to pre-
pandemic levels of operating cash flow was expected lo provide ongoing strengthening in cash levels. That
said, days cash and cash 1o total debt will remain solid with unrestricled cash and investmeants Engely
sustainad at current levels. The affirmation of the Aa3 reflects AAH's scale and broad geographic reach,
centralized governancea and IT modal, and still sound balance shael resources, which will support AAH's
operating flexibility and efforts to rebuild margins. AAHs leading markel positions across two regions, businass
line breadth and strong financial discipline will be intagral 1o ongoing recovery as the system pursues
transactional growth. Opearating and balance sheet leverage will likely remain in line with pears, with
managamant expacting to maintain current levels of debt and well-funded frozen and highly hedged pansion
plans.

The affirmation of the short-term P-1 rating is supporied by Moody's markat access cash flow approach to
longer-term variable rate instruments and our astimation of A&H's ability to pay the purchase price of a
mandatory tender whean due at the and of the mandatory tender "window™ as wall as AAHS strong liguidity
pasition. The P-1 raling reflects expectations thal AAH will be able lo access the markatl given its strong
revenuea bond rating and the system's frequency of market participation. Affirmation of the VMIG 1 reflects the
presance of standby bond purchase agreements and the creditworthiness of AAH.

RATING QUTLOOK

The revision of the outlook 1o stable from positive reflects our view that profracted challenges will resull in
AAH's financial profile to remain solid but not in Ene with & higher rating over the outlook period. Tha outlook
also reflects the potential for near term challenges as AAH purswas transactional growth.

FACTORS THAT COULD LEAD TO AN UPGRADE OF THE RATINGS

- Return to and durable pre-pandemic operating cash flow margins

- Evidanca that operaling leverage as measured by debl o cash flow will be sustained at or below 2.0 times
- Ongoing improvement in cash to total debt and days cash

- Unenhanced ST rating: Mot applicable

- Enhanced ST rating: Mot applicable

FACTORS THAT COULD LEAD TO A DOWNGRADE OF THE RATINGS

- Sustained decling in operating cash flow margin

- Meaningful decline in days cash or cash to dabt melrics

- Additional debl resulting in material rise in leveragea

- Dilutive acquisition or mergear
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- Unenhanced ST rating: downgrade by Moody's of AAH"s long-term rating below A2 or material adverse
changes to AAHs access o the capital markeats

- Enhanced ST ratings: downgrade by Moody's of the short-term Counterparty Risk Assessment of tha banks
that provide the SBPAs or the long-lerm rating of AAH

LEGAL SECURITY

Under the Master Trust Indentura, issued in 2018, security i5 a general, unsacured obligation of the abligated
group. There are no additional indebtedness tests. The members of the obligated group under the Master
Indenture are: Advacate Aurora Health, Inc., Advocate Health Care Network, Advocate Health and Hospitals
Carporation, Advocale Sherman Hospital, Advocate North Side Health Metwork, Advocate Condall Medical
Center, Aurora Medical Center Bay Area, Inc., Aurcra Health Care, Inc., Aurcra Health Care Metro, Inc.,
Aurora Health Care Southem Lakes, Inc., Aurora Health Care Central, Inc. d/b/a Aurora Sheboygan Memorial
Medical Canter, Aurora Medical Center of Washinglon County, Inc., Aurcra Health Care Morth, Inc. dibva
Aurora Medical Center Manitowoc County, Auwrora Madical Center of Oshkosh, Inc., Aurora Medical Group,
Inc., Aurora Medical Center Grafton LLC. The MTI contains a substitution of notes prowvisicn.

PROFILE

Advocale Aurora Haalth, Inc. (AAH; 514 billion revenue in fiscal 2021), provides a continuum of care throwgh
its 24 acube care hospilals, an inlegraled children's hospital and a psychiatric hospital, which in tolal hawve
6,475 licensed beds. AAH also offers primary and spacially physician sarvices with approximataly 3,600
employed physicians, outpatient centars, pharmacy services, behavioral health care, rehabilitation, homea
health and hospice care in northern llinais, eastern Wisconsin and the upper paninsula of Michigan.

METHODOLOGY

The principal methadalogy used in the long-term ralings was Nol-For-Profil Healthcare published in Decambar
2018 and available at hilps:/iratings.moodys. comiapi/mic-documeanis/T0B8E . The principal methodology used
in the short-term undertying rating was Short-term Debt of US States, Municipalities and Nonprofits
Mathodology published in July 2020 and available at hitps-/ratings moodys.com/apirme-documents/G7338 .
The principal mathodology used in the short-term enhanced ratings was Variable Rate Instrumants Supported
by Conditional Liquidity Facilties published in March 2017 and available at htips.iratings.moodys.com/agi/mc-
documenis/GEZE3. Altarnatively, pleasa see the Raling Methodologies page on hitps:iralings. moodys.com for
a copy of these mathodologies.

REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

For further specification of Moody's key rating assumptions and sensitivily analysis, see the sections
Methodology Assumptions and Sensitivity to Assumplions in the disclosure form. Moody's Rating Symbols and
Definitions can be found on hitps:/iratings. moodys.com/rating-definitions..

For ratings issued on a program, series, category/class of debt or security this announcement provides certain
regulatory disclosures in ralation o each raling of a subsequently issued bond or note of the samea series,
category/class of dabt, security or pursuant o a program for which the ratings are derived exclusively from
existing ratings in accordance wilh Moody's raling practices. For ratings isswed on a support provider, this
announcameant providas certain regulatory disclosures in relation to the credil rating action on the support
provider and in relation to each particular credit rating action for securities that derive thair credit ratings from
the support provider's credil rating. For provisional ratings, this announcemant provides carain regulatory
disclosuras in relation o the provisional rating assigned, and in relation bo a definitive raling that may be
assigned subsequent to the final issuance of the dabt, in each case where the transaction structure and tarms
have not changed prior to the assignmant of the definitive rating in a manner that would have affected tha
rating. For further information pleasa see the issuer/deal page for the respective issuer on
hitps:firatings.moodys.com.

The ratings have been disclosed o the rated entity or its designated agent(s) and issued with no amandmant
resulting from that disclosure.

These ratings are solicited. Please rafer lo Moody's Policy for Designating and Assigning Unsalicited Credit
Ratings available on its wabsite hitps:lralings moodys.com.

Requlatory disclosuwres confained in this press releassa apply to the cradit rating and, if applicable. the related
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rating outlook or rating review.

Moody's genearal principles for assessing environmantal, social and governance (ESG) risks in our credit
analysis can ba found al hitps:(iratings.moodys com/documentsPBC_ 1288235 .

The Global Scale Credit Rating on this Credit Rating Announcement was issued by one of Moody's affiliates
outside the EU and is endorsed by Moody's Deutschland GmbH, An der Welle 5, Frankfurt am Main 80322,
Garmany, in accordance with Ar.4 paragraph 3 of the Regulation (EC) No 1060/2009 on Credit Rating
Agencias. Further information on the EU endorsament status and on the Moody's office that issued the credit
rating is available on hitps iratings.moodys.com.

The Global Scale Credit Rating on this Credit Rating Announcement was issued by one of Moody's affiliates
outside the UK and is endorsed by Moody's Investors Service Limited, One Canada Square, Canary Whard,
Landon E14 5FA under the law applicable o credit rating agencies in the UK. Further information on the UK
endorsameant siatus and on the Moody's office that issued the credil raling is available on
hitps:iratings.moodys.com.

Please see hitps:iralings. moodys.com for any updates on changes to the lead rating analyst and o the
Moody's legal entity that has issued the rating.

Please see the isswerideal page on hitps:liratings.moodys.com for additional regulatory disclosuras for each
credit rating.

Bath Weaxlar

Lead Analyst

PF Healthcara

Moody's Investors Service, Inc.
7 World Trade Cantar

250 Graanwich Streat

Mew Yark 10007
JOURNALISTS: 1 212 553 0376
Chent Servica: 1 212 553 1653

Susan Fitzgerald

Additional Contact

Higher Education
JOURNALISTS: 1 212 553 0376
Chent Servica: 1 212 553 1653

Releasing Office:

Moody's Investors Service, Inc.
250 Graanwich Stresat

MNew York, NY 10007

UsA

JOURMALISTS: 1 212 553 0376
Chent Service: 1 212 553 1653

MoobDy’s
INVESTORS SERVICE

& 2022 Moody's Corporation, Moody's Investors Service, Inc., Moody's Analytics, Inc. andlor their licensors and
affiliates (collectively, “MOODY'S™). All rights reserved.

CREDIT RATINGS ISSUED BY MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS AFFILIATES ARE THEIR CURRENT
OPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT COMMITMENTS, OR
DEET OR DEET-LIKE SECURITIES, AND MATERIALS, PRODUCTS, SERVICES AND
INFORMATION PUBLISHED BY MOODY"S (COLLECTIVELY, “PUBLICATIONS") MAY INCLUDE
SUCH CURRENT OPINIONS. MOODY'S DEFINES CREDIT RISK AS THE RISK THAT AN ENTITY
MAY NOT MEET ITS CONTRACTUAL FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AS THEY COME DUE AND ANY
ESTIMATED FINANCIAL LOSS IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT OR IMPAIRMENT. SEE APPLICABLE
MOODY'S RATING SYMBOLS AND DEFINITIONS PUBLICATION FOR INFORMATION ON THE
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TYPES OF CONTRACTUAL FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS ADDRESSED BY MOODY'S CREDIT
RATINGS. CREDIT RATINGS DO NOT ADDRESS ANY OTHER RISK, INCLUDING BUT NOT
LIMITED TO: LIGUIDITY RISK, MARKET VALUE RISK, OR PRICE VOLATILITY. CREDIT RATINGS,
MON-CREDIT ASSESSMENTS (“ASSESSMENTS"), AND OTHER OPINIONS INCLUDED IN
MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT STATEMENTS OF CURRENT OR HISTORICAL FACT.
MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS MAY ALSO INCLUDE QUANTITATIVE MODEL-BASED ESTIMATES OF
CREDIT RISK AND RELATED OPINIONS OR COMMENTARY PUBLISHED BY MOODY'S
ANALYTICS, INC. AND/OR ITS AFFILIATES. MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS,
OTHER OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS DO NOT CONSTITUTE OR PROVIDE INVESTMENT OR
FINANMCIAL ADVICE, AND MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS AND
PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT AND DO NOT PROVIDE RECOMMENDATIONS TO PURCHASE, SELL,
OR HOLD PARTICULAR SECURITIES. MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER
OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS DO NOT COMMENT ON THE SUITABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT
FOR ANY PARTICULAR INVESTOR. MOODY'S ISSUES ITS CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS
AND OTHER OPIMIONS AND PUBLISHES ITS PUBLICATIONS WITH THE EXPECTATION AND
UNDERSTANDING THAT EACH INVESTOR WILL, WITH DUE CARE, MAKE ITS OWN STUDY AND
EVALUATION OF EACH SECURITY THAT IS UNDER CONSIDERATION FOR PURCHASE,
HOLDING, OR SALE.

MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS, AND PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT
INTENDED FOR USE BY RETAIL INVESTORS AND IT WOULD BE RECKLESS AND INAPPROPRIATE FOR
RETAIL INVESTORS TO USE MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS OR
PUBLICATIONS WHEN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION. IF IN DOUBT YOU SHOULD CONTACT
YOUR FINANCIAL OR OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISER.

ALL INFORMATION CONMTAINED HEREIN IS PROTECTED BY LAW, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO,
COPYRIGHT LAW, AND NOME OF SUCH INFORMATION MAY BE COPIED OR OTHERWISE
REPRODUCED, REPACKAGED, FURTHER TRANSMITTED, TRANSFERRED, DISSEMINATED,
REDISTRIBUTED OR RESOLD, OR STORED FOR SUBSEQUENT USE FOR ANY SUCH PURPOSE, IN
WHOLE OR IM PART, IN ANY FORM OR MANNER OR BY ANY MEANS WHATSOEVER, BY ANY PERSOMN
WITHOUT MOODY'S PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT.

MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT
INTENDED FOR USE BY ANY PERSON AS A BENCHMARK AS THAT TERM IS DEFINED FOR
REGULATORY PURPOSES AND MUST NOT BE USED IN ANY WAY THAT COULD RESULT IN THEM
BEING CONSIDERED A BENCHMARK.

All information contained harein is obtained by MOODY'S from sources believed by it io be accurate and
reliable. Becausa of tha possibility of human or mechanical amor as well as other faclors, however, all
information contained harein is provided “AS 157 withoul warranty of any kind. MOODY'S adopts all necessary
maasuras so thal the information it wses in assigning a credit rating is of sufficient quality and from sources
MOODY'S considers o be reliable including, when appropriate, indepandent third-party sources. However,
MOODY'S is not an auditor and cannot in every instance independently verify or validate information received
in the raling process or in praparing ils Publications.

To the extent parmitled by law, MOODY'S and ils direclors, officers, employees, agants, represantatives,
licansors and suppliers disclaim hability to any person ar enlity for any indirect, special, consaquential, or
incidental lossas or damages whatsoever arising fram or in conneclion with tha informalion conlained harain or
the usa of or inability lo use any such information, even if MODDY'S or any of its directors, officers, employees,
aganls, represaniatives, icensors or suppliers is advisad in advance of tha possibility of such lossas or
damages, including but not imiled ta: (a) any loss of prasant or prospactive profits or (b) any loss or damage
arsing wheare the relevant financial instrument is nol the subject of a particular credil rating assigned by
MOODY'S.

To tha extent parmitled by law, MOODY'S and its directors, officers, employeas, agents, represantatives,
licansors and suppliers disclaim hability for any direct or compensatory lossas or damages causad to any
person ar anlity, including but nof limited o by any negligence (bul excluding fraud, willful misconduct or any
ather type of liability that, for the avoidance of doubt, by law cannol ba excluded) on tha par of, or any
contingancy within or bayond the control of, MOODY'S or any of its direclors, officers, amployees, agants,
represantalives, licensars or suppliers, arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or the
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use of or inability 1o usa any such information.

NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE ACCURACY, TIMELINESS, COMPLETENESS,
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF ANY CREDIT RATING,
ASSESSMENT, OTHER OPINION OR INFORMATION IS GIVEN OR MADE BY MOODY'S IN ANY FORM OR
MANNER WHATSOEVER.

Moody's Investors Sarvice, Inc., a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody's Corporation
{*MCO"), hereby discloses thal most issuers of debt securities (including corporate and municipal bonds,
debentures, noles and commercial paper) and preferred stock rated by Moody's Investors Sarvice, Inc. have,
prior o assignment of any credit rating, agreed to pay to Moody's Investors Service, Inc. for credit ratings
opinions and services rendared by it fees ranging from 51,000 o approximately §5,000,000. MCO and Moody's
Invastors Sarvice also maintain policies and procedures to address the independence of Moody's Investors
Service credit ratings and credit rating processes. Information regarding certain affiliations that may axist
between directors of MCO and raled entities, and betwean entities who hold credil ralings from Moody's
Invastors Sarvice and have also publicly reparted to the SEC an ownership inferest in MCO of more than 5%, is
posted annually at www mocdys com undar the heading “Investor Relations — Corporate Governance —
Direclor and Shareholdar Affiliation Palicy.”

Additional terms for Australia only: Any publication into Australia of this document is pursuant to the Australian
Financial Services License of MOODY'S affiliate, Moody's Investors Service Pty Limited ABN 61 003 398
GSTAFSL 336969 andlor Moody's Analytics Australia Pty Lid ABMN 84 105 136 972 AFSL 383589 (as
applicable). This docurmnent is intended 1o be provided only to “wholesale clients” within the meaning of section
761G of the Corporations Act 2001. By continuing to access this document from within Australia, you represent
to MOODY'S that you are, or are accessing the document as a representative of, a “wholesale client” and that
neither you nor the antily you reprasent will directly or indirectly disseminate this document or ils contents to
“retail chents™ within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. MOODY'S credit rating is an
opinion as to the creditworthiness of a debt obligation of the isswer, not on the equily securities of the issuer or
any form of security that is available to retail investors.

Additional terms for Japan only: Moody's Japan KLK. ("MJEK") is a wholly-owned credit rating agancy subsidiary
of Moody's Group Japan G.K., which is wholly-owned by Moody's Overseas Holdings Inc., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of MCO. Moody's SF Japan K.K. "MSFJ7) is a whaolly-owned credil raling agency subsidiary of
MJKE. MSFJ is not a Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization ("NRSRO"). Tharefore, credit
ratings assigned by MSFJ are Non-MRSRO Credit Ratings. Non-NRSRO Credit Ratings are assigned by an
enlity that is not a NRSRO and, consequenily, the rated obligation will not qualify for certain types of treatment
under LS. laws. MJKK and MSFJ are credit raling agencies registerad with the Japan Financial Services
Agancy and thair registration numbers are FSA& Commissioner {Ratings) No. 2 and 3 respectively.

MJKE or MSFJ (as applicable) hereby disclose that most issuers of dabt securities (including corporate and
municipal bonds, debentures, noles and commercial paper) and preferred stock rated by MJKK or MSFJ (as
applicable) have, prior to assignment of any cradit rating, agreed 1o pay 1o MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) for
cradit ratings opinions and sarvices rendered by il fees ranging from JPY 100,000 o approximataly
JPY550,000,000.

MJKE and MSFJ also maintain policies and procedures lo address Japanese regulatory requirements.
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SECTION VIil. 1120.130 - FINANCIAL VIABILITY

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding, or guaranteeing
the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

5. “A” Bond rating or better

6. All the project’s capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

7. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

8. The applicant provides a third-party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A rated
guarantor.

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information to be provided

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 35, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall
provide viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available and for
the first full fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project completion.
When the applicant's facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the facility is a member of
a health care system that has combined or consolidated financial statements, the system's viability ratios shall
be provided. If the health care system includes one or more hospitals, the system's viability ratios shall be
evaluated for conformance with the applicable hospital standards.

Historical Projected
3 Years

Enter Historical and/or Projected Years:

Current Ratio

Net Margin Percentage

Percent Debt to Total Capitalization

Projected Debt Service Coverage

Days Cash on Hand

Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the
calculation and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a
separate table for each co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

Variance

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another
organization, public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt obligations
should the applicant default.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 36, IN NUMERICAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION
FORM.

N/A, Advocate Aurora Health, Inc has a AA long-term bond rating from Fitch and Standard & Poors.
Advocate Aurora Health, Inc has an Aa3 long-term bond rating from Moody’s.
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SECTION IX. 1120.140 - ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by
submitting a notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to
one of the following:

1) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with
cash and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds,
received pledge receipts and funded depreciation; or

2) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or
in part by borrowing because:

A) A portion or all the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance
sheet asset accounts to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for
hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and
the existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or
used to retire debt within a 60-day period.

B. Conditions of Debt Financing

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized
statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as
applicable:

1) That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net
cost available.

2) That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost
available but is more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges,
no required mortgage, access to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing
costs and other factors.

3) That the project involves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities
and that the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly
than constructing a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs
Read the criterion and provide the following:
1) Identify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a

cost and square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using
the following format (insert after this page).
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COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE

Department
(List below)

A

B C D E F G H
Total
Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. $ Mod. $ Cost
New Mod. New Circ.* Mod. Circ.* (AxC) (BxE) (G+H)

Contingency

TOTALS

* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation

D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per
equivalent patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no
more than two years following project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of

salaries, benefits and supplies for the service.

F. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per
equivalent patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years

following project completion.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 37, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

APPLICATION FORM.

See Attachment #37, Exhibit 1, 2 and 3.

The AGC (Association of General Construction’s 2022 Construction Inflation Report is provided in

the Appendix.
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-E-Admcate Health Care:

Mo part of + ADVOCATEHEALTH

3075 Highland Parkoway
Suite 500
Downars Grova, IL 60515

July 19, 2023

Mr. john Kniery

Administrabor

Illinods Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West |efferson Street, Znd Floor

Springfield, Wlinois 62761

#23-045
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T (630) 572-9353
F (E30) 990-4752
advocatehenith.com

Re: Advecate Health and Hospitals Corporation d/b/a Lutheran General Hospital

CAC Expansion

Dear Mr. Kniery:

This letter is to attest to the fact that the selected form of debt financing for the
purpose of the Advocate Lutheran General Hospital project will be the lowest net cost
available, or if a more costly form of financing is selected, that form is more
advantageous due to such terns as prepayment privileges, no required mortgages,
access to additional debt, term financing costs and other factors.

Respectfully,

ﬁ:ﬁ.‘fﬁw '

William Santulli
President

Advyocate Health and Huspitals Corporation

Subscriped and sworn to me
This/f" day of f‘élﬁ‘ , 2023

pﬂ.-hh& e I e L

“DFFICIM. SEAL"

S
My E‘;Emli:mr?ﬂplms ﬂ'.'il'!E.l'Il.‘.lIE

L2301 MWMM
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Cost & Gross Square Feet by Department

A B C D E F G H
Dept. / Area Cost / Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. $ Mod. $ To('gals;)st
New Mod. New Circ.* | Mod. | Circ.* AxC BxE (G+H)

REVIEWABLE
?Jgﬁ'jﬁf;:;iif” so| $272 o| 15%| 7524| 15% s0|$2,005249 | $2,085,249
,Eigﬂhzlrr;it::)'on (includes $425 S0 | 7,843 15% 0 15% | $3,334,838 $0 $3,425,498
Exam Rooms $368 S0 | 4,533 15% 0 15% | $1,668,960 S0 $1,668,960
Total Clinical 12,376 7,524 $5,003,798 | $2,045,249 $7,139,707

$702,273
Clinical Contingency
Total Clinical
Reviewable +
Contingency $7,841,980
NON-REVIEWABLE

Administrative $398 $369 200 15% 911 15% $79,684 $336,050 $415,734
Office Space $386 $368 220 15% | 1,263 15% $84,896 $465,049 $549,945
Reception Waiting $863 $588 | 3,065 15% 331 15% | $2,643,716 $194,519 $2,838,235
Pharmacy $1,548 S0 932 15% 0 15% | $1,442,633 S0 $1,442,633
Mechanical/Electrical, IT | $2,213 SO0 | 1,489 15% 0 15% | $3,295,837 SO $3,295,832
Total Non-Clinical 5,906 2,505 $7,546,766 $995,618 $8,542,379
Non-Reviewable $1.162,970
Contingency T
Total Clinical Non-
Reviewable + $9,705,349
Contingency
Total $17,547,329

* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation
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Description of Premiums

Production Pharmacy for BMT/Oncology Infusion Pharmaceutical Prep &
compounding.

a. Must follow USP/ISO 797/800 rules of pharmaceuticals.

b. Higher square feet rules, higher mechanical & electrical rules.

c. Requires emergency power.

d. Clean room requirements related to donning and doffing and airlock type
compounding of hazardous pharmaceuticals and flows.

e. Healthcare grade systems and construction types. 655,965
The new addition is required to tie into the existing building. Because of the this the

building will be stories to match existing structure. This results in a total of 60% more

exterior wall 577,030
Due to the connection to the new building and to bring continuity between the two

building the exterior materials are required to match the existing building. 168,000
Connecting addition to the existing building 45,000
BMT infusion area has higher mechanical /exhaust needs due to sensitive nature and

compromised immune systems of the patients who will be utilizing the facility. Due

to these requirements the MEP systems needed to accommodate this space is

Approximately 45% higher 1,288,131
Addition requires upgrades to certain life safety and electrical systems within the

existing building. 180,000
Rework and upgrade of existing mechanical and electrical systems to code required

levels 265,000
Extensive demolition in existing Med/Oncology space as part of the renovation. To

accommodate growth within the space the current configuration will need to be

demolished and new plan will be implemented. 75,776
Existing sanitary sewer pipes need to be extended and re-routed around the building

addition 58,108
Existing stormwater detention volume is present on the surface of the parking lot in

the area of the building addition. This stormwater volume needs to be replaced on-

site. 225,000
The project requires stormwater detention volume exceeding the requirements of

the MWRDGC. The City of Park Ridge requirements exceed those of the MWRDGC by

50%. 314,813
The project is located over an existing paved parking lot with existing site lighting,

utilities, and curbs that need to be demolished and removed from the site. 82,045
The property area does not allow for balancing earthwork. Therefore, all excavated

material needs to be hauled off-site. 187,133
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E. Impact of Project on Capital Costs in Year of Completion (Year 1)

Projected Operating Costs

Cost Per EPD Year 1

Operating Costs

$2,825.66

Impact of Project on Capital Costs

Cost Per EPD Year 1

Capital Costs

$119.60
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SECTION X. SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes all the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE
PROJECTS AND PROJECTS TO DISCONTINUE HEALTH CARE FACILITIES [20 ILCS 3960/5.4]:

1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, including the
impact on racial and health care disparities in the community, to the extent that it is feasible for an
applicant to have such knowledge.

2. The project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety net
services, if reasonably known to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in each
community, if reasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include all the following:

1.For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care provided by
the applicant. The amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the reporting
requirements for charity care reporting in the Illinois Community Benefits Act. Non-hospital applicants shall
report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate methodology specified by the Board.

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to Medicaid
patients. Hospital and non-hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner consistent with
the information reported each year to the lllinois Department of Public Health regarding "Inpatients and
Outpatients Served by Payor Source" and "Inpatient and Outpatient Net Revenue by Payor Source" as
required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net services, including information
regarding teaching, research, and any other service.

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 37.

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) Year Year Year
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total
Charity (cost in dollars)
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total
MEDICAID
Medicaid (# of patients) Year Year Year
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total
Medicaid (revenue)
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 38, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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ADVOCATE LUTHERAN GENERAL HOSPITAL

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031

CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) 2020 2021 2022
Inpatient 547 653 512
Outpatient 1,822 961 1,005
Total 2,369 1,614 1,517
Charity (cost in dollars)
Inpatient $8,340,000 $9,791,000 $6,962,000
Outpatient $3,586,000 $5,160,000 $4,286,000
Total $11,926,000 $14,951,000 $11,248,000

MEDICAID

Medicaid (# of patients) 2020 2021 2022
Inpatient 5,136 5,701 5,888
Outpatient 48,642 56,478 65,930
Total 53,778 62,179 71,818
Medicaid (revenue)
Inpatient $92,681,231 $111,259,988 $135,277,833
Outpatient $22,361,330 $29,161,455 $32,224,428
Total $115,042,561 $140,421,443 $167,502,261
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Advocate Lutheran General Hospital has a long history of serving the Northwest suburbs of Chicago
and has continued to provide high quality acute care to residents. The hospital is part of Advocate
Health, a Top 10 not-for-profit health system. The hospital was founded in 1897 with just 25 beds
and was originally known as Norwegian Lutheran Deaconess Home and Hospital. Lutheran General
Hospital opened in its current location in Park Ridge in 1959. The hospital takes great pride in its
relationships with the neighborhood, communities, organizations, and the agencies it serves. The
following illustrates some of the ways that Lutheran General addresses the needs of the residents in
their service area.

Advocate Lutheran General Hospital is a teaching, research and tertiary care hospital that offers the
most advanced care as a Level | Trauma Center and through Clinical Institutes in Oncology,
Cardiovascular, Orthopedics, Advanced Surgery, and Neurosciences. The hospital is a
Comprehensive Stroke Center, reflecting the highest level of competence for the treatment of
serious stroke events. Advocate Lutheran General’s campus is also home to Advocate Children’s
Hospital, one of the largest network providers of pediatric services in lllinois and the nation.

Newsweek’s World’s Best Hospitals 2023, Healthgrade’s America’s 100 Best Hospitals and U.S. News
& World Report Best Hospitals was awarded to Lutheran General Hospital. The hospital was also
recognized in 5 Specialty Excellence Awards and Top 5 State Rankings in 5 clinical areas including
cardiac surgery, Gl, and stroke care.

The hospital has been a Magnet designated hospital for nursing excellence every year since 2005.
The American College of Surgeons National Surgical Quality Improvement Program has recognized
Advocate Lutheran General Hospital as one of 52 of the over 600 ACS NSQIP participating hospitals
that achieved meritorious outcomes for surgical patient care. The hospital has received recognition
from ACS each year for the past six years.

Diverse and Culturally Competent Care

Advocate Lutheran General Hospital has been on a journey to identify the unique needs of the
diverse populations in the hospital’s service area and to provide culturally competent care and
programs to support these communities. Programs include the South Asian Cardiovascular Center
(SACC) to raise awareness, provide prevention education, appropriately screen, and provide
treatment to this unique population. This population was identified to have higher prevalence rates
for cardiovascular disease and has a significant presence in the Chicago metropolitan communities
surrounding the hospital. The SACC provides a unique combination of community outreach,
culturally sensitive advanced clinical services, and research.

Advocate Lutheran General Hospital continues to partner with faith communities, Hanul Family
Alliance, the Polish American Association, the South Asian and Hispanic communities on its journey
to reduce health disparities and achieve health equity.

Advocate Health’s Faith leadership partnered with Mental Health Program Specialists to coordinate

the following trainings: Bridges of Hope and Mental Health First Aid training; virtual training for faith
leaders on Mental Health Awareness.
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Advocate Lutheran General Hospital’s Older Adult Services is a distinctive program offering a safe,
secure, and stimulating environment for older adults with physical or cognitive concerns assistance
throughout the day including activities, therapies, support services and meals.

Advocate Lutheran General Hospital offers interpretation services and translation services in almost
every language through one of several methods including in person for Spanish, Polish, Vietnamese,
Cantonese, and Mandarin: translation service through registry agencies and video teleconferencing
and dedicated lines.

Advocate Lutheran General’s multi-disciplinary experts have served the health and psychosocial
needs of thousands of teens and adults with Down syndrome since our nationally recognized
Lutheran General Adult Down Syndrome Center opened in 1992. The mission is to enhance their
lives by providing comprehensive, holistic, community-based care and services using a team
approach. As a comprehensive medical resource for teens and adults with Down syndrome, the
team provides patients everything from holistic care and support to education and resources in a
compassionate, welcoming environment. The center holds events, participates in community
outreach, and conducts research.

Community Needs Assessment

Advocate Lutheran General conducts a Community Health Needs Assessment (CHNA) every three
years to identify health needs for the hospital’s primary service area (PSA) including low income,
and underserved communities. The CHNA also supports the creation of effective community
programming that meets the needs of the community with measurable impact. The 2022 CHNA
Report identified behavioral health, health and nutrition, mental health, access to care, substance
and alcohol use, cancer, respiratory health, diabetes, cardiovascular disease, and COVID-19 as the
top health needs for the hospital’s service area.

In 2019, Advocate Lutheran General selected key zip codes in the hospital’s high-risk communities
to implement the Empowered to Serve program, partnering with the American Heart Association
(AHA) and other health care organizations. The six-week series included free screenings and free
heart-healthy produce boxes provided at various organizations in community, including schools,
health centers and food pantries. Other partnerships in 2020 included working with the Irving Park
Food Pantry to create non-perishable food bags for patients in need and donated boxed lunches for
families in need to the NWSHC. The Community Health Department also implemented mobile
COVID testing and distributed thousands of masks in communities that have the highest rates of
COVID and experience significant health disparities.

Advocate Children’s Hospital, located on the Advocate Lutheran General Hospital campus, provided
access to care for underserved communities through the hospital’s Ronald McDonald Care Mobile®,
a mobile clinic that provides free physicals and immunizations to low income, uninsured and
underinsured children. In 2018, 2,398 children received over 2,000 physicals and over 4,300
vaccines. During year three of the previous CHNA cycle, the team began screening patients for food
insecurity. Approximately 30% of patients received assistance.

In 2021, due to the ongoing concerns of COVID-19, the Community Health Department across
Advocate Health shifted its strategies to meet the immediate needs of the community. Advocate
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Lutheran General Hospital enhanced preventive services to combat the COVID-19 pandemic by
increasing access to free vaccinations, health education, Personal Protective Equipment (PPE),
COVID-19 testing and several other immediate services. At Advocate Lutheran General, community
programs continued to thrive through the pandemic, bringing forth resources to communities
identified in the 2017-2019 CHNA report.

Education, Training and Research

Advocate Lutheran General Hospital and Advocate Children’s Hospital-Park Ridge offer a well-
structured, comprehensive selection of postgraduate training programs. This institution is a
teaching, research and tertiary care hospital that is recognized as being one of the top teaching
hospitals in the country. Advocate Lutheran General Hospital is designated as a Resource Hospital
within its Emergency Medical Services regional area in the state, providing education and training to
emergency medical providers.

Advocate Lutheran General Hospital also has a robust medical residency program that spans
numerous specialties, including emergency medicine, family medicine, internal medicine,
obstetrics/gynecology, and sports medicine. The various programs are some of the oldest and most
highly regarded residencies in the Chicago area and aim to educate medical students on providing
safe, high-quality specialized care to help patients live well while achieving their career goals.

In 2012, the James R. and Helen D. Russell Center for Research and Innovation was established at
the hospital thanks to an endowment to support research. The purpose of the Russell Center’s
research is to enhance the quality of care and improve health outcomes for individuals and the
community. The Center provides coordination and regulatory support for clinical trials and
comprehensive resources for investigator-initiated, patient-centered outcomes research that ranges
from study design and statistical support through medical writing.

Advocate Health Care partners with education institutions to provide a high-quality clinical learning
experience for our next generation of nurses. In this shared learning environment, nursing students
and their preceptors participate in a dynamic collaboration which fosters the professional growth of
each student. Nursing students have the opportunity to work side by side with expert clinicians who
share their time, expertise, and knowledge. This relationship fosters both the growth of the student
as a nurse, as well as the clinician as a teacher.

Advocate Lutheran General hosted students from 11 nursing schools in 2020 including Loyola
University, Marquette University, North Park University, Northern lllinois University, Purdue
University Global, Rush University, and University of lllinois.

The physicians and staff of Advocate Lutheran General offer many free educational events
throughout the year to educate the community and corporate partners. Programs are developed to
include the surrounding Villages and businesses in the service area.

Oncology Designation Program

The LGH Oncology program offers comprehensive cancer care through bone marrow transplant
program, surgical oncology, dedicated Cancer Survivorship Program, outpatient infusion center and
ancillary services offered in the Center for Advanced Care.
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e The BMT (Bone Marrow Transplant) Service - Achieved an Institute of Excellence status with
Aetna.

e Advocate Cancer Institute at Advocate Lutheran General Hospital offers emerging therapies
and the most advanced options for the diagnosis and treatment of even the rarest forms of
cancer.

Patients have access to a team of cancer specialists working together on their behalf, including a
broad range of imaging and treatment services provided in a single program. The focus is on the
patient’s total health and wellness journey, combining leading-edge medical treatments with
personalized education. Patients are connected with the team of cancer service navigators to guide
and support them throughout diagnosis, treatment and beyond.

The team of experts uses the latest detection technology to diagnose cancer and monitor the
effectiveness of your treatment. More precise information leads to a more targeted treatment plan
and, ultimately, better outcomes.

The Lung Cancer Screening Program at Advocate Lutheran General offers eligible patients the
screening expertise and technology necessary to detect lung cancer at its earliest stages when it’s
most treatable. The ground-breaking low-dose CT scan available at Advocate Lutheran General can
detect lung cancer early enough to allow for more treatment options, improve survival rates and
has been proven to reduce the risk of death by up to 20%.

The Caldwell Breast Center pairs expert surgeons and clinicians with the latest technologies and
techniques to provide the most complete breast cancer care available.

Awards & Recognition — Oncology Services

o Consistently ranked as one of America's Best Breast Centers: Women Certified Inc., the voice
of female patients

e National Accreditation Program of Breast Centers (NAPBC), recognized since 2010

e Breast Imaging Center of Excellence (BICOE), recognized since 2007

e Patient satisfaction scores in the top decile for more than a decade

e Accredited by the Commission on Cancer, which measures our quality of care against
national standards

e Firstin the Midwest to offer 3D mammography

e Firstin the lllinois to offer contrast-enhanced mammography
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The struggle to overcome a cancer diagnosis doesn’t stop at the end of a hospital stay. The Cancer
Survivorship Center is the first stand-alone, hospital-affiliated survivorship center in lllinois. It
provides free, comprehensive, holistic support for patients, family members and caregivers
throughout their care.

e Providing assistance to achieve a healthier lifestyle

e Empowering and helping to navigate the healthcare system

e Supporting the relationship between the patient and the healthcare provider
e Offering care for long-term recovery of physical and mental well-being

e Giving tools needed to live life beyond cancer

The Survivorship Center offers virtual classes and programs designed to focus on the physical, social,
psychological, and spiritual needs of patients, family members and caregivers. These programs are
for adults in or out of cancer treatment, and their caregivers ages 18 and older.

The impact of the Advocate Lutheran General Hospital services is far reaching, and the hospital is a
critical organization supporting the communities within Northern lllinois. The residents have come
to rely on many of these programs designed to focus on improving access to care, addressing special
needs, and improving overall community health in the service area. Advocate Lutheran General
Hospital’s team members are aware of changes in health care and in the community and have been
developing new partnerships and services to support the health and wellbeing of all that they serve.
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SECTION X. CHARITY CARE INFORMATION

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects [1120.20(c)].

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three
audited fiscal years, the cost of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient
revenue.

2. If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual

facility located in lllinois. If charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis, the applicant
shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity care; the ratio of that charity care to the net
patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of charity care costs; and
the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

3. If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer
source, anticipated charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue
by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care” means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect
to receive payment from the patient or a third-party payer (20 ILCS 3960/3). Charity Care must be
provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 39.

CHARITY CARE

Year Year Year

Net Patient Revenue

Amount of Charity Care (charges)

Cost of Charity Care

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 39, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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ADVOCATE LUTHERAN GENERAL HOSPITAL

CHARITY CARE
2020 2021 2022
Net Patient Revenue $849,197,405 | $1,025,238,569 | $1,083,009,823
Amount of Charity Care (charges) $44,297,894 | $64,055,602 $47,206,335
Cost of Charity Care $11,926,644 $14,951,357 $11,248,098
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SECTION XI -SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AND 500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN
DETERMINATION FORM

In accordance with Executive Order 2006-5 (EO 5), the Health Facilities & Services Review Board
(HFSRB) must determine if the site of the CRITICAL FACILITY, as defined in EO 5, is in a mapped
floodplain (Special Flood Hazard Area) or a 500-year floodplain. All state agencies are required to
ensure that before a permit, grant or a development is planned or promoted, the proposed project
meets the requirements of the Executive Order, including compliance with the National Flood
Insurance Program (NFIP) and state floodplain regulation.

Applicant: _Advocate Lutheran General Hospital 1775 Dempster Street
(Name) (Address)
(City) Park Ridge (State)IL  (ZIP Code) 60068 (Telephone Number) 847-723-2210
4. Project Location CAC address - 1700 Luther Lane Park Ridge IL
(Address) (City) (State)
Cook Maine
(County) (Township) (Section)

5. You can create a small map of your site showing the FEMA floodplain mapping using the FEMA
Map Service Center website (https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home) by entering the address for the
property in the Search bar. If a map, like that shown on page 2 is shown, select the Go to NFHL

=,
Viewer tab above the map. You can print a copy of the floodplain map by selecting the
!

icon in the top corner of the page. Select the pin tool icon
Print a FIRMETTE size image.

If there is no digital floodplain map available select the View/Print FIRM icon above the aerial
photo. You will then need to use the Zoom tools provided to locate the property on the map and
use the Make a FIRMette tool to create a pdf of the floodplain map.

IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA:
Yes No X ?

IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN THE 500-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN?

Yes No X ?

If you are unable to determine if the site is in the mapped floodplain or 500-year floodplain, contact

the county or the local community building or planning department for assistance.
If the determination is being made by a local official, please complete the following:

and place a pin on your site.

FIRM Panel Number: Effective Date:
Name of Official: Title:
Business/Agency: Address:
(City) (State) (ZIP Code) (Telephone Number)
Signature: Date:

NOTE: This finding only means that the property in question is or is not in a Special Flood Hazard Area
or a 500-year floodplain as designated on the map noted above. It does not constitute a guarantee that
the property will or will not be flooded or be subject to local drainage problems.
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
Advocate Health, Inc.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Advocate Aurora Health, Inc. (the
Organization), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
and the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets, and cash flows for
the years then ended, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Organization at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to
continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements and Other Information but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information
exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Ganet + MLLP

April 11, 2023
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Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets limited as to use

Patient accounts receivable

Other current assets

Third-party payors receivables

Collateral proceeds under securities lending program
Total current assets

Assets limited as to use

Property and equipment, net

Other assets

Reinsurance receivable
Goodwill and intangible assets, net
Investments in unconsolidated entities
Operating lease right-of-use assets
Other noncurrent assets

Total other assets

Total assets

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
S 372,898 S 703,725
153,557 139,742
1,796,499 1,816,705
934,604 706,253
23,400 22,154
17,402 18,550
3,298,360 3,407,129
10,981,192 12,394,605
5,971,542 5,943,011
116,786 42,100
476,564 271,178
216,176 259,127
305,311 283,398
512,339 538,013
1,627,176 1,393,816
S 21,878,270 S 23,138,561

(Continued)



ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands)

#23-045

Current liabilities

Long-term debt and commercial paper, current portion

Long-term debt subject to short-term financing arrangements

Operating lease liabilities, current portion
Accrued salaries and employee benefits
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities
Third-party payors payables
Accrued insurance and claims costs, current portion
Collateral under securities lending program

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Long-term debt, less current portion
Operating lease liabilities, less current portion
Accrued insurance and claims cost, less current portion
Accrued losses subject to insurance recovery
Obligations under swap agreements
Other noncurrent liabilities
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets
Without donor restrictions
Controlling interest
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries
Total net assets without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
S 101,204 S 96,185
165,035 166,350
73,026 68,247
1,165,861 1,296,458
1,111,552 1,562,089
357,177 354,186
204,592 151,230
17,402 18,550
3,195,849 3,713,295
3,255,423 3,298,508
276,116 248,062
634,468 615,576
116,786 42,100
29,514 91,217
922,567 798,824
5,234,874 5,094,287
8,430,723 8,807,582
13,037,580 13,911,862
171,791 167,440
13,209,371 14,079,302
238,176 251,677
13,447,547 14,330,979
S 21,878,270 S 23,138,561
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

(in thousands)

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Revenue
Patient service revenue S 12,065,771 S 11,702,581
Capitation revenue 1,197,327 1,196,109
Other revenue 1,281,148 1,163,442
Total revenue 14,544,246 14,062,132

Expenses
Salaries, wages and benefits 8,560,787 7,665,848
Supplies, purchased services and other 4,735,148 4,530,877
Contracted medical services 518,834 564,586
Depreciation and amortization 599,706 563,409
Interest 118,319 106,101
Total expenses 14,532,794 13,430,821
Operating income before nonrecurring expenses 11,452 631,311
Nonrecurring expenses 35,339 37,759
Operating (loss) income (23,887) 593,552

Nonoperating (loss) income

Investment (loss) income, net (723,225) 1,303,546
Loss on debt refinancing (33) (14,468)
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps 61,703 27,403
Other nonoperating (loss) income, net (20,266) 12,220
Total nonoperating (loss) income, net (681,821) 1,328,701

Revenue (less than) in excess of expenses (705,708) 1,922,253
Less income attributable to noncontrolling interests (45,124) (73,130)
Revenue (less than) in excess of expenses - attributable to controlling interest $ (750,832) $ 1,849,123

(Continued)



#23-045

ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

(in thousands)

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Net assets without donor restrictions, controlling interest

Revenue (less than) in excess of expenses - attributable to controlling interest S (750,832) S 1,849,123
Pension-related changes other than net periodic pension costs (133,071) 48,236
Net assets released from restrictions for purchase of property and equipment 4,159 9,709
Other, net 5,462 (7,925)

(Decrease) increase in net assets without donor restrictions, controlling interest (874,282) 1,899,143

Net assets without donor restrictions, noncontrolling interests

Revenues in excess of expenses 45,124 73,130
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (40,773) (60,335)
Increase in net assets without donor restrictions, noncontrolling interests 4,351 12,795

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions 11,702 18,693
Investment (loss) income, net (8,261) 21,106
Net assets released from restrictions for operations (12,760) (11,102)
Net assets released from restrictions for purchase of property and equipment (3,864) (9,709)
Other, net (318) 9
(Decrease) increase in net assets with donor restrictions (13,501) 18,997
(Decrease) increase in net assets (883,432) 1,930,935
Net assets at beginning of period 14,330,979 12,400,044
Net assets at end of period S 13,447,547 S 14,330,979

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

#23-045

Cash flows from operating activities
(Decrease) Increase in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by operating

activities:

Depreciation, amortization and accretion

Amortization of operating lease right-of-use assets

Loss on debt refinancing
Loss (gain) on sale of property and equipment
Change in fair value of swap agreements

Pension-related changes other than net periodic pension cost

Net assets released from restrictions for operations

Distribution to noncontrolling interests

Distributions from unconsolidated entities
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Trading securities, net

Patient accounts receivable

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Third-party payors receivables and payables, net

Other assets and liabilities, net

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditures

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

(Purchases) sales of investments designated as non-trading, net

Investments in unconsolidated entities, net

Acquisition of Senior Helpers, net of cash acquired

Acquisition of MobileHelp, net of cash acquired
Other

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Repayments of long-term debt

Distribution to noncontrolling interests

Proceeds from restricted contributions and income on investments

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Supplemental disclosures of noncash information

Operating lease right-of-use assets in exchange for new operating lease liabilities

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
S (883,432) $ 1,930,935
590,030 555,983
64,119 79,398
33 14,468
836 (13,117)
(61,703) (27,403)
133,071 (48,236)
(12,760) (11,102)
46,809 60,335
35,746 11,442
1,423,034 (1,330,868)
20,300 (245,966)
(707,054) (56,718)
1,745 30,163
(83,489) (342,705)
567,285 606,609
(498,759) (570,166)
3,814 2,019
(303) 4
(18,569) (38,021)
— (183,672)
(286,133) —
(7,896) (2,879)
(807,846) (792,715)
— 182,157
(46,898) (231,668)
(46,809) (60,335)
3,441 39,799
(90,266) (70,047)
(330,827) (256,153)
703,725 959,878
S 372,898 S 703,725
$ 105,805 $ 46,016
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

(dollars in thousands)

ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Description of Business

Advocate Aurora Health, Inc., a Delaware nonprofit corporation (the “Parent Corporation”), owns and
operates primarily not-for-profit healthcare facilities in Illinois and Wisconsin. The Parent Corporation
is the sole corporate member of Advocate Health Care Network, an lllinois not-for-profit corporation
(“Advocate”) and Aurora Health Care, Inc., a Wisconsin nonstock not-for-profit corporation (“Aurora”).
The Parent Corporation, Advocate, Aurora and their controlled subsidiaries are collectively referred to
herein as the “System.” The System was formed in furtherance of the parties’ common and unifying
charitable health care mission to promote and improve the quality and expand the scope and
accessibility of affordable health care and health care-related services for the communities they serve.

Effective December 2022, the System and Atrium Health, Inc.,, a North Carolina not-for-profit
corporation, ("Atrium") entered into a joint operating agreement pursuant to which they created
Advocate Health, Inc. ("Advocate Health"), a Delaware nonprofit corporation, to manage and oversee
an integrated health care delivery and academic system that will focus on meeting patients’ needs by
redefining how, when and where care is delivered. The System and Atrium are the two corporate
members of Advocate Health. The System maintains its separate legal existence and no sale, transfer
or other conveyance of assets or assumption of debt and liabilities occurred in connection with the
formation of Advocate Health.

The System provides a continuum of care through its 25 acute care hospitals, an integrated children’s
hospital, a psychiatric hospital, primary and specialty physician services, outpatient centers, physician
office buildings, pharmacies, rehabilitation and home health and hospice care in northern lllinois and
eastern Wisconsin.

Principles of Consolidation

Included in the System’s consolidated financial statements are all of its wholly owned or controlled
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the behavior of businesses and people globally was altered in a
manner that had a negative impact on global and local economies including significant investment
market volatility, various temporary business closures resulting in increased unemployment and other
effects which have and could continue to result in supply disruptions, lower collections on patient
accounts receivable and/or decisions to defer medical treatments at the System’s facilities.

The continuing and total impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the System is difficult to predict and
could adversely impact the business, investment portfolio, financial condition or results of operations
and, accordingly, may have a material adverse impact on the financial condition of the System. The
System continues to monitor liquidity and cash flow and has taken, and continues to take, steps to
protect its fiscal health, including a focus on maintaining liquidity to meet its obligations. In addition,
the System applied for certain COVID-19 related resources, including supplies, financial support,
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payroll tax deferrals and relief and other assistance made available through local, state and federal
governments.

The System received $1,113 and $34,354 for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively in grant payments from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services from the
Provider Relief Fund established under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (“CARES
Act”), which has been recognized as revenue and included in other operating revenue within the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets. Payments from the
Provider Relief Fund are intended to cover unreimbursed healthcare related expenses and lost revenue
from patient care attributed to COVID-19 and are not required to be repaid provided the recipient
attests to and complies with the terms and conditions of the grant funds. Management of the System
believes the System is in compliance with the terms and conditions of the Provider Relief Fund
distributions and will continue to monitor compliance. The CARES Act also entitled eligible employers
to an employee retention tax credit designed to encourage employers to keep employees on their
payroll. The refundable tax credit is limited to 50% of up to $10 in qualified wages paid to each
employee by an eligible employer whose business had been financially impacted by COVID-19. The
System recognized $37,060 for the year ended December 31, 2020 for the employee retention tax
credit, this amount is included as a receivable that is included in other current assets in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021. The
recognition of the COVID-19 support falls under the grant accounting guidance of accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. This guidance requires all significant terms and conditions to
have been met for recognition to occur. Management of the System will continue to monitor
compliance with the terms and conditions of the CARES Act grant funds and the impact of the
pandemic on the System’s revenues and expenses.

In addition, the System received $773,000 for the year ended December 31, 2020 from the Centers for
Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”) as an advance payment for Medicare services. The funds
were provided through the expansion of the Medicare Accelerated and Advance Payment Program to
ensure providers and suppliers had the resources needed to combat the COVID-19 pandemic. The
advances are being recouped by withholding future Medicare fee-for-service payments for claims until
the full accelerated payment has been recouped, unless the System elects to repay the advances prior
to full recoupment. Subsequent to the twenty-nine month recoupment period any unpaid remaining
balance is subject to an interest charge of 4 percent per annum. For the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021, CMS payments of approximately $505,000 and $257,000 were recouped, respectively.
Medicare accelerated and advance payments of approximately $11,000 and $516,000 are included in
accounts payable and other accrued liabilities within the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at
December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively. The CARES Act also permitted employers to
defer the employer portion of social security taxes through December 31, 2020. Employers were
required to remit one-half of the amount deferred by December 31, 2021 and the remaining half by
December 31, 2022. During 2020 the System deferred approximately $215,000 of these taxes and
approximately $107,500 were remitted during 2021 and the remaining amount was remitted during
2022 to fulfill this payment obligation. At December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, SO and
approximately $107,500, respectively is included in accrued salaries and employee benefits within the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

The System was awarded approximately $17,700 in Federal American Rescue Plan Act funds by the
Illinois Department of Healthcare and Family Services. These funds were meant to cover premium pay
and payroll and benefit expenses for employees who spent time mitigating or responding to COVID-19
from March 2021 through June 2022. The System recognized $12,800 and $4,900 for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively as revenue that is included in other operating revenue
within the accompanying consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets.

10
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The System was awarded approximately $36,000 in Federal Emergency Management Agency funds to
reimburse the System for personal protective equipment used during the COVID-19 pandemic. For the
year ended December 31, 2022, the entirety of these funds were recognized as revenue and included
in other operating revenue within the accompanying consolidated statement of operations and
changes in net assets.

On April 1, 2021, the System purchased the stock of SH Corporate Company, Inc. and SHF Acquisition
Company, Inc. (collectively “Senior Helpers”) for $183,672, net of cash acquired, to further the
System's strategy.

On April 1, 2022, the System purchased MobileHelp Group Holdings, LLC (“MobileHelp”) for $286,133,
net of cash acquired, to further the System's strategy.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP") requires management to make estimates,
assumptions and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and amounts
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements at the date of the consolidated financial
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Although estimates are considered to be fairly stated at the time made, actual results could
differ materially from those estimates.

Cash Equivalents

The System considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased, other than those included in the investment portfolio, to be cash equivalents.

Investments

The System has designated substantially all of its investments as trading. Investments in debt and
equity securities with readily determinable fair values are measured at fair value using quoted market
prices or otherwise observable inputs. Investments in private equity limited partnerships and derivative
products (hedge funds) are reported at fair value using net asset value as a practical expedient.
Commingled funds are carried at fair value based on other observable inputs. Investment income or
loss (including realized gains and losses, interest, dividends and unrealized gains and losses) is included
in the nonoperating section of the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in
net assets, unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or law or is related to assets designated for
self-insurance programs. Investment income on self-insurance trust funds is reported in other revenue
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. Investment
income or loss that is restricted by donor or law is reported as a change in net assets with donor
restrictions.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use consist of investments set aside by the System for future capital improvements
and certain medical education and other health care programs. The System retains control of these
investments and may, at its discretion, subsequently use them for other purposes. Additionally, assets
limited as to use include investments held by trustees or in trust under debt agreements, self-insurance
trusts, assets held in reinsurance trust accounts and donor-restricted funds.

11
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Patient Service Revenue and Accounts Receivable

Patient service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the System
expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due from patients,
third-party payors (including managed care payors and government programs and excludes revenues
for services provided to patients under capitated arrangements) and others and include variable
consideration for retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement of audits, reviews and
investigations. Generally, patients and third-party payors are billed within days after the services are
performed or after discharge. Revenue is recognized as performance obligations are satisfied.
Provisions for third-party payor settlements and adjustments are estimated in the period the related
services are provided and adjusted in future periods as additional information becomes available and
final settlements are determined.

As the System's performance obligations relate to contracts with a duration of less than one year, the
System has applied the optional exemption provided in the guidance and, therefore, is not required to
disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are
unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of the reporting period. The unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied performance obligations are primarily related to inpatient acute care services at the end of
the reporting period. The performance obligations for these contracts are generally completed when
the patients are discharged, which typically occurs within days or weeks of the end of the reporting
period.

The System does not adjust the promised amount of consideration from patients and third-party payors
for the effects of a significant financing component, due to the expectation that the period between
the time the service is provided to a patient and the time that the patient or a third-party payor pays
for that service will be one year or less.

The System has entered into payment arrangements with patients that allow for payments over a term
in excess of one year. The System has evaluated historical collections in excess of one year and current
market interest rates to determine whether a significant financing component exists that would require
an adjustment to the promised amount of consideration from patients and third-party payors. The
System has determined that the impact of implicit financing arrangements for payment agreements in
excess of one year is insignificant to the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and
changes in net assets.

The System does not incur significant incremental costs in obtaining contracts with patients. Any costs
incurred are expensed in the period of occurrence, as the amortization period of any asset that the
System would have recognized is one year or less in duration.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. As a result, there is a possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material
amount.

Inventories

Inventories, consisting primarily of medical supplies, pharmaceuticals and durable medical equipment,
are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value.

Reinsurance Receivables

Reinsurance receivables are recognized in a manner consistent with the liabilities relating to the
underlying reinsured contracts.

12
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets, Net

Goodwill of $267,385 and $151,655 and intangible assets of $209,179 and $119,523 are included in
goodwill and intangible assets, net in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December
31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The System has elected to amortize goodwill prospectively using the
straight-line method over a 10-year period. Intangible assets with expected useful lives are amortized
over that period. Amortization is included in depreciation and amortization in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. Amortization expense was $50,837
and $25,129 for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Asset Impairment

The System considers whether indicators of impairment are present and, if indicators are present,
performs the necessary tests to determine if the carrying value of an asset is recoverable. Impairment
write-downs are recognized in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in
net assets as a component of operating expense at the time the impairment is identified. There were
no material impairment charges recorded for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment are reported at cost or, if donated, at fair value at the date of the gift. Costs of
computer software developed or obtained for internal use, including external and internal direct costs
of materials and labor directly associated with internal-use software development projects, are
capitalized during the application development stage and included in property and equipment. Internal
labor and interest expense incurred during the period of construction of significant capital projects are
capitalized as a component of the costs of the asset.

Property and equipment capitalized under direct financing leases are recorded at the present value of
future lease payments, adding initial direct costs and prepaid lease payments, reduced by any lease
incentives. Property and equipment capitalized under direct financing leases are amortized using the
straight-line method over the related lease term. Amortization of property and equipment under
financing leases is included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in
net assets in depreciation and amortization expense.

Property and equipment assets are depreciated on the straight-line method over a period ranging from
3 years to 80 years.

Operating Lease Right-of-use Assets

The System records an operating lease right-of-use asset (an asset that represents the System's right to
use the leased asset for the lease term) for leases that do not meet the criteria as a sales-type lease or
a direct financing lease.

The System records operating lease right-of-use assets at the present value of future lease payments,
adding initial direct costs and prepaid lease payments, reduced by any lease incentives. Operating lease
right-of-use assets are amortized using the straight-line method over the related lease term.
Amortization of operating lease right-of-use assets is included in supplies, purchased services and other
expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.

13



#23-045

Investments in Unconsolidated Entities

Investments in unconsolidated entities are accounted for using the equity method or as an equity
security without a readily determinable fair value. The System applies the equity method of accounting
for investments in unconsolidated entities when its ownership or membership interest is 50% or less
and the System has the ability to exercise significant influence over the operating and financial policies
of the investee. The income (loss) on these unconsolidated entities is included in other revenue in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. All other
unconsolidated entities are accounted for as an equity security without a readily determinable fair
value. These unconsolidated entities are initially recorded at cost, tested for impairment at least
annually and adjusted as market transactions occur that would indicate a fair value adjustment is
needed. The income (loss) on these unconsolidated entities is included in nonoperating (loss) income in
the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The System enters into transactions to manage its interest rate, credit and market risks. Derivative
financial instruments, including exchange-traded and over-the-counter derivative contracts and
interest rate swaps, are recorded as either assets or liabilities at fair value. Subsequent changes in a
derivative's fair value are recognized in nonoperating (loss) income, net.

Bond Issuance Costs, Discounts and Premiums

Bond issuance costs, discounts and premiums are amortized over the term of the bonds using the
effective interest method and are included in long-term debt, less current portion in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

General and Professional Liability Risks

The provision for self-insured general and professional liability claims includes estimates of the ultimate
costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported. The System measures the cost of
its unfunded obligations under such programs based upon actuarial calculations and records a liability
on a discounted basis.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are those assets whose use by the System has been limited by donors
to a specific time period or purpose or consist of gifts with corpus values that have been restricted by
donors to be maintained in perpetuity. Net assets with donor restrictions are used in accordance with
the donor's wishes primarily to purchase property and equipment, to fund medical education or to
fund health programs.

Assets released from restrictions to fund purchases of property and equipment are reported as
increases to net assets without donor restrictions in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations and changes in net assets. Those assets released from restriction for operating purposes are
reported in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets as
other revenue. When restricted, earnings are recorded as net assets with donor restrictions until
amounts are expended in accordance with the donor's specifications.

14
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Nonrecurring Expenses

The System has incurred salaries, purchased services and other expenses in connection with the
implementation of an enterprise resource planning system in 2022 and 2021, which was placed into
service on April 1, 2022. Also included in nonrecurring expenses are costs related to the joint operating
agreement with Atrium as described in Note 1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION. Due to
the nature of these expenses, the costs were reported as nonrecurring in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.

Other Nonoperating (Loss) Income, Net

Revenues and expenses related to the delivery of health care services are reported in operations.
Income and losses that arise from transactions that are peripheral or incidental to the System's main
purpose are included in other nonoperating (loss) income, net. Other nonoperating (loss) income, net
primarily consists of fund-raising expenses, contributions to charitable organizations, income taxes and
the net non-service components of the periodic benefit expense of the System's pension plans.

Revenue (Less Than) in Excess of Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

The accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets includes the
revenue (less than) in excess of expenses as the performance indicator. Changes in net assets without
donor restrictions, which are excluded from revenue (less than) in excess of expenses, primarily include
contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using contributions, which by donor
restriction were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such assets), pension-related changes other
than net periodic pension costs and distributions to noncontrolling interests.

Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In March 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update
("ASU") 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate
Reform on Financial Reporting. This guidance provides optional expedients and exceptions for applying
current GAAP to contracts, hedging relationships and other transactions affected by the transition from
the use of London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) to an alternative reference rate. In response to
concerns about structural risks of interbank offered rates, and, particularly, the risk of cessation of
LIBOR, regulators in several jurisdictions around the world have undertaken reference rate reform
initiatives to identify alternative reference rates that are more observable or transaction based and less
susceptible to manipulation. This guidance provides companies the option to ease the potential
accounting burden associated with transitioning away from reference rates that are expected to be
discontinued. In January 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-01, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Scope,
which adds implementation guidance to ASU 2020-04 to clarify certain optional expedients in Topic
848. In December 2022, the FASB issued ASU 2022-06, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Deferral of
the Sunset Date of Topic 848, which defers the sunset date of Topic 848 to December 31, 2024.
Management has evaluated the impact of this guidance and does not expect it to have a material
impact on the System's consolidated financial statements.

COMMUNITY BENEFIT

The System provides health care services without charge to patients who meet the criteria of its charity
care policies. Charity care services are not reported as patient service revenue, because payment is not
anticipated while the related costs to provide the health care are included in operating expenses.
Qualifying patients can receive up to 100% discounts from charges and extended payment plans. The
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System’s cost of providing charity care was $102,000 and $126,600 for the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively, as determined using total cost to charge ratios.

In addition to the provision of charity care, the System provides significant financial support to its
communities to sustain and improve health care services.

These activities include:

. The unreimbursed cost of providing care to patients covered by the Medicare and Medicaid
programs.
. The cost of providing services that are not self-sustaining, for which patient service revenues

are less than the costs required to provide the services. Such services benefit uninsured and low-
income patients, as well as the broader community, but are not expected to be financially self-
supporting.

. Other community benefits include the unreimbursed costs of community benefits programs
and services for the general community, not solely for those demonstrating financial need, including
the unreimbursed cost of medical education, health education, immunizations for children, support
groups, health screenings and fairs.

REVENUE AND RECEIVABLES
Patient service revenue

Patient service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the System
expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due from patients,
third-party payors (including managed care payors and government programs and excludes revenues
for services provided to patients under capitated arrangements) and others and include variable
consideration for retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement of audits, reviews and
investigations. Generally, patients and third-party payors are billed shortly after discharge. Revenue is
recognized as performance obligations are satisfied.

Performance obligations are identified based on the nature of the services provided. Revenue
associated with performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on actual charges
incurred in relation to total expected (or actual) charges. Performance obligations satisfied over time
relate to patients receiving inpatient acute care services. The System measures the performance
obligation from admission into the hospital to the point when there are no further services required for
the patient, which is generally the time of discharge. For outpatient services, the performance
obligation is satisfied as the patient simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided as the
services are performed. In the case of these outpatient services, recognition of the obligation over time
yields the same result as recognizing the obligation at a point in time. Management believes this
method provides a faithful depiction of the transfer of services over the term of performance
obligations based on the inputs needed to satisfy the obligations.

The System uses a portfolio approach to account for categories of patient contracts as a collective
group rather than recognizing revenue on an individual contract basis. The portfolios consist of major
payor classes for inpatient revenue and major payor classes and types of services provided for
outpatient revenue. Based on the historical collection trends and other analyses, the System believes
revenue recognized by utilizing the portfolio approach approximates the revenue that would have been
recognized if an individual contract approach were used.

The System determines the transaction price, which involves significant estimates and judgment, based
on standard charges for goods and services provided, reduced by explicit and implicit price concessions,
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including contractual adjustments provided to third-party payors, discounts provided to uninsured and
underinsured patients in accordance with policy and/or implicit price concessions based on the
historical collection experience of patient accounts. The System determines the transaction price
associated with services provided to patients who have third-party payor coverage based on
reimbursement terms per contractual agreements, discount policies and historical experience. For
uninsured patients who do not qualify for charity care, the System determines the transaction price
associated with services based on charges reduced by implicit price concessions. Implicit price
concessions included in the estimate of the transaction price are based on historical collection
experience for applicable patient portfolios. Patients who meet the System's criteria for charity care are
provided care without charge; such amounts are not reported as revenue. Subsequent changes to the
estimate of the transaction price are generally recorded as adjustments to patient service revenue in
the period of the change. Settlements with third-party payors for retroactive adjustments due to
audits, reviews or investigations are considered variable consideration and are included in the
determination of the estimated transaction price for providing patient care using the most likely
outcome method. These settlements are estimated based on the terms of the payment agreements
with the payor, correspondence from the payor and historical settlement activity, including an
assessment to ensure it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognized will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the retroactive adjustment is
subsequently resolved. Estimated settlements are adjusted in future periods as new information
becomes available or as years are settled or are no longer subject to such audits, reviews and
investigations.

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, changes in the System’s estimates of implicit price
concessions, discounts and contractual adjustments or other reductions to expected payments for
performance obligations related to prior years were not significant.

In the normal course of business, the System does receive payments in advance for certain services
provided and would consider these amounts to represent contract liabilities. The amounts received in
the normal course of business at December 31, 2022 and 2021 were not material. In 2020 the CMS
accelerated and advance payments received in relation to the COVID-19 pandemic for Medicare
services are deemed contract liabilities at December 31, 2022 and 2021. See Note 2. SIGNIFICANT
EVENTS.

Currently, the State of lllinois utilizes supplemental reimbursement programs to increase
reimbursement to providers to offset a portion of the cost of providing care to Medicaid and indigent
patients. These programs are designed with input from the CMS and are funded with a combination of
state and federal resources, including assessments levied on the providers. Under these supplemental
programs, the System recognizes revenue and related expenses in the period in which amounts are
estimable and collection is reasonably assured. Reimbursement and the assessment under these
programs are reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets are as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
Classification December 31,2022 December 31, 2021
Reimbursement Patient service revenue S 331,438 §$ 321,123
Assessment Supplies, purchased services and other 173,141 181,784
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The State of Wisconsin assesses a fee or tax on gross patient service revenue. The revenues from this
assessment are used to increase payments made to hospitals for services provided to Medicaid and
other medically indigent patients. The System’s patient service revenue reflects this increase in
payment for services to Medicaid and other medically indigent patients and hospital tax assessment
expense reflects the fees assessed by the State. Reimbursement and the assessment under these
programs are reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets are as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
Classification December 31,2022 December 31, 2021
Reimbursement Patient service revenue S 123,358 $ 136,679
Assessment Supplies, purchased services and other 99,010 99,140

Management has determined that the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows are affected by the payor's geographical location, the line of business that renders services to
patients and the timing of when revenue is recognized and billed.

The composition of patient service revenue by payor is as follows:

Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2022 2021
Managed care S 6,506,440 53% S 6,534,404 55 %
Medicare 3,813,381 32% 3,371,753 29%
Medicaid - Illinois 909,095 8% 825,834 7%
Medicaid - Wisconsin 534,105 4% 539,922 5%
Self-pay and other 302,750 3% 430,668 4%
S 12,065,771 100% S 11,702,581 100 %

Deductibles, copayments and coinsurance under third-party payment programs which are the patient's
responsibility are included within the primary payor category in the table above.

Capitation Revenue

The System has agreements with various managed care organizations under which the System provides
or arranges for medical care to members of the organizations in return for a monthly payment per
member. Revenue is earned each month as a result of the System agreeing to provide or arrange for
their medical care.

Other Revenue

Other revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the System expects
to be entitled in exchange for providing goods and services. The amounts recognized reflect
consideration due from customers, third-party payors and others. Primary categories of other revenue
include grant revenue related to the COVID-19 pandemic as described in Note 2. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS,
retail pharmacy revenue, clinical integration revenue, managed care risk/quality shared savings
revenue and other miscellaneous revenue.
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Revenue disaggregation by state and business line are as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Illinois S 6,614,232 S 6,388,560
Wisconsin 6,648,866 6,510,130
Total patient service revenue and capitation 13,263,098 12,898,690
Other revenue 1,281,148 1,163,442
Total revenue S 14,544,246 S 14,062,132
Hospital S 8,910,925 S 8,640,613
Clinic 2,773,500 2,711,468
Home Care 267,091 259,692
Other 114,255 90,808
Total patient service revenue 12,065,771 11,702,581
Capitated revenue 1,197,327 1,196,109
Other revenue 1,281,148 1,163,442
Total revenue S 14,544,246 S 14,062,132

Patient accounts receivable

The System's patient accounts receivable is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to
which it expects to be entitled, in exchange for providing patient care. Patient accounts receivable are
reported at net realizable value based on certain assumptions. For third-party payors, including
Medicare, Medicaid and Managed Care, the net realizable value is based on the estimated contractual
reimbursement percentage, which is based on current contract prices or historical paid claims data by
payor. For self-pay, the net realizable value is determined using estimates of historical collection
experience including an analysis by aging category. These estimates are adjusted for expected
recoveries and any anticipated changes in trends, including significant changes in payor mix and
economic conditions or trends in federal and state governmental health care coverage.

The composition of patient accounts receivable is summarized as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Managed care S 913,665 51% S 935,709 52 %
Medicare 390,456 22 % 356,959 20 %
Medicaid - Illinois 105,857 6 % 177,188 10 %
Medicaid - Wisconsin 48,172 3% 50,111 3%
Self-pay and other 338,349 18 % 296,738 15 %
S 1,796,499 100% $ 1,816,705 100 %

The self-pay patient accounts receivable above includes amounts due from patients for co-insurance,
deductibles, installment payment plans and amounts due from patients without insurance.

INVESTMENTS

The System invests in a diversified portfolio of investments, including alternative investments, such as
real asset funds, hedge funds and private equity limited partnerships, whose fair value was $5,990,443
and $5,856,960 at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Collectively, these funds have liquidity
terms ranging from daily to annual with notice periods typically ranging from 1 to 90 days. Certain of
these investments have redemption restrictions that may restrict redemption for up to 11 years.
However, the potential for the System to sell its interest in these funds in a secondary market prior to
the end of the fund term does exist for prices at or other than the carrying value.
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At December 31, 2022, the System had additional commitments to fund alternative investments,
including recallable distributions of $2,040,918 over the next seven years.

In the normal course of operations and within established investment policy guidelines, the System
may enter into various exchange-traded and over-the-counter derivative contracts for trading
purposes, including futures, options and forward contracts. These instruments are used primarily to
maintain the System’s strategic asset allocation and hedge security price movements. These
instruments require the System to deposit cash or securities collateral with the broker or custodian.
Collateral provided was $7,529 and $16,589 at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The gross
notional value of the derivatives outstanding was $331,094 and $282,289 at December 31, 2022 and
2021, respectively.

By using derivative financial instruments, the System exposes itself to credit and market risk. Credit risk
is the failure of the counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative contracts. When the fair
value of a derivative contract is positive, the counterparty owes the System, which creates credit risk
for the System. When the fair value of a derivative contract is negative, the System owes the
counterparty and, therefore, it does not possess credit risk. The System minimizes the credit risk in
derivative instruments by entering into transactions that may require the counterparty to post
collateral for the benefit of the System based on the credit rating of the counterparty and the fair value
of the derivative contract. Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of a financial instrument that
results from a change in the underlying reference security. The market risk associated with market
changes is managed by establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of
market risk that may be undertaken.

Receivables and payables for investment trades not settled are presented within other current assets
and accounts payable and other accrued liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
Unsettled sales resulted in receivables due from brokers of $13,769 and $25,384 at December 31, 2022
and 2021, respectively. Unsettled purchases resulted in payables due to brokers of $69,023 and
$135,997 at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Investment returns for assets limited as to use and cash and cash equivalents are composed of the
following:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Interest income and dividends S 61,893 S 99,332
Income from alternative investments 327,168 926,066
Net realized gains 63,760 273,325
Net unrealized (losses) gains (1,134,151) 79,580
Total S (681,330) $ 1,378,303

Investment returns are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and
changes in net assets as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Other revenue S 50,156 S 53,651
Investment (loss) income, net (723,225) 1,303,546
Net assets with donor restrictions (8,261) 21,106
Total S (681,330) $ 1,378,303
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The cash and cash equivalents and assets limited as to use presented within the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets are comprised of the following:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Internally designated for capital and other S 10,301,972 S 11,572,323
Held for self-insurance 564,195 649,513
Donor restricted 98,293 155,009
Investments under securities lending program 16,732 17,760
Total noncurrent assets limited as to use 10,981,192 12,394,605
Cash and cash equivalents 372,898 703,725
Current assets limited as to use 153,557 139,742
Total cash and cash equivalents and assets limited as to use 5 11,507,647 S 13,238,072

As part of the management of the investment portfolio, the System has entered into an arrangement
whereby securities owned by the System are loaned primarily to brokers and investment banks. The
loans are arranged through a bank. Borrowers are required to post collateral for securities borrowed
equal to no less than 102% of the value of the security on a daily basis, at a minimum. The bank is
responsible for reviewing the creditworthiness of the borrowers. The System has also entered into an
arrangement whereby the bank is responsible for the risk of borrower bankruptcy and default. At
December 31, 2022 and 2021, the System loaned $16,732 and $17,760, respectively, in securities and
accepted collateral for these loans in the amount $17,402 and $18,550, respectively, which represents
cash and governmental securities, and are included in current liabilities and current assets, respectively,
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

FAIR VALUE

The System accounts for certain assets and liabilities at fair value and categorizes assets and liabilities
measured at fair value in the accompanying consolidated financial statements based upon whether the
inputs used to determine their fair values are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs
that are based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity.
Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about pricing the
asset or liability, based on the best information available under the circumstances.

The fair value of all assets and liabilities recognized or disclosed at fair value are classified based on the
lowest level of significant inputs. Assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value are disclosed and
classified in one of the three categories. Category inputs are defined as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities on the reporting
date.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted market prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly. If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, a
Level 2 input must be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 — Inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability for which there is little or no market
data.

The following section describes the valuation methodologies used by the System to measure financial

assets and liabilities at fair value. In general, where applicable, the System uses quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets and liabilities to determine fair value. This pricing methodology applies to
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Level 1 investments, such as domestic and international equities, exchange-traded funds and agency
securities.

If quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities are not available to determine the
fair value, then quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities or inputs other than quoted prices that
are observable either directly or indirectly are used. These investments are included in Level 2 and
consist primarily of corporate notes and bonds, foreign government bonds, mortgage-backed
securities, fixed-income securities, including fixed-income government obligations, commercial paper
and certain agency, United States and international equities, which are not traded on an active
exchange. The fair value for the obligations under swap agreements included in Level 2 is estimated
using industry-standard valuation models. These models project future cash flows and discount the
future amounts to a present value using market-based observable inputs, including interest rate curves.
The fair values of the obligation under swap agreements include adjustments related to the System’s
credit risk.

Investments owned by the System are exposed to various kinds and levels of risk. Equity securities and
equity funds expose the System to market risk, performance risk and liquidity risk for both domestic
and international investments. Market risk is the risk associated with major movements of the equity
markets. Performance risk is the risk associated with a company’s operating performance. Fixed-
income securities and fixed-income mutual funds expose the System to interest rate risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. As interest rates change, the value of many fixed-income securities is affected, including
those with fixed interest rates. Credit risk is the risk that the obligor of the security will not fulfill its
obligations. Liquidity risk is affected by the willingness of market participants to buy and sell particular
securities. Liquidity risk tends to be higher for equities related to small capitalization companies and
certain alternative investments. Due to the volatility in the capital markets, there is a reasonable
possibility of subsequent changes in fair value, resulting in additional gains and losses in the near term.

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and payable, other current assets

and accrued liabilities are reasonable estimates of their fair values, due to the short-term nature of
these financial instruments.
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The fair values of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are as

follows:

Assets

Investments

Cash and short-term investments
Corporate bonds and other debt securities
United States government bonds

Bond and other debt security funds
Non-government fixed-income obligations
Equity securities

Equity funds

Investments at net asset value
Alternative investments

Total investments

Collateral proceeds received under securities lending

program

Liabilities

Obligations under swap agreements

Obligations to return capital under securities lending

program

23

Quoted Prices Other
in Active Significant Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
December 31, 2022 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
$ 789,689 $ 540,092 $ 249,597 $ —
720,424 — 720,424 —
586,517 — 586,517 —
465,762 96,219 369,543 —
32,307 — 32,307 —
761,237 746,574 14,663 —
2,143,486 121,424 2,022,062 —
5,499,422 $ 1,504,309 $ 3,995,113 $ —
6,008,225
$ 11,507,647
17,402 $ 17,402
S (29,514) S (29,514)
(17,402) S (17,402)
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Quoted Prices Other
in Active Significant Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
December 31, 2021 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets
Investments
Cash and short-term investments S 1,251,915 $ 895,856 $ 356,059 $ —
Corporate bonds and other debt securities 816,147 — 816,147 —
United States government bonds 667,877 - 667,877 -
Bond and other debt security funds 559,769 99,237 460,532 —
Non-government fixed-income obligations 34,374 — 34,374 —
Equity securities 1,202,388 1,174,214 28,174 —
Equity funds 2,819,140 147,118 2,672,022 —

7,351,610 $ 2,316,425 $ 5,035,185 —
Investments at net asset value
Alternative investments 5,886,462
Total investments S 13,238,072
Collateral proceeds received under securities lending
program S 18,550 S 18,550
Liabilities
Obligations under swap agreements S (91,217) S (91,217)
Obligations to return capital under securities lending
program S (18,550) S (18,550)

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

The components of property and equipment, net are summarized as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Land and improvements S 479,733 S 470,257
Buildings and fixed equipment 8,570,318 7,819,014
Movable equipment and computer software 2,726,704 2,554,215
Construction-in-progress 279,791 629,941

12,056,546 11,473,427
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (6,085,004) (5,530,416)
Property and equipment, net S 5,971,542 S 5,943,011

Property and equipment, net include assets recorded as finance leases and under other financing
arrangements. See additional disclosure in Note 9. LEASES.

Depreciation expense was $549,086 and $536,567 for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

LEASES
The System leases office and clinical space, land and equipment. Leases with an initial term of 12

months or less are not recorded on the consolidated balance sheets. The System combines lease and
non-lease components, except for medical equipment leases.
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The depreciable lives of assets are limited by the expected lease terms. Most leases include options to
renew. The majority of leases do not provide an implicit rate; therefore, the System has elected to use
its incremental borrowing rate, which is the interest rate the System would borrow on a collateralized
basis over a similar term, as the discount rate. The System used its incremental borrowing rate on
January 1, 2019 for operating leases that commenced prior to that date.

Operating and finance leases are classified as follows within the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets:

Leases Classification December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Assets
Operating Operating lease right-of-use assets S 305,311 S 283,398
Finance Property and equipment, net 226,039 226,766
Total lease assets S 531,350 $ 510,164
Liabilities
Current
Operating Operating lease liabilities, current portion S 73,026 S 68,247
Finance Long-term debt and commercial paper, current portion 17,942 16,669
Noncurrent
Operating Operating lease liabilities, less current portion 276,116 248,062
Finance Long-term debt, less current portion 247,979 248,069
Total lease liabilities S 615,063 S 581,047

Finance lease assets are recorded net of accumulated amortization of $90,244 and $69,861 as of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

Lease costs are classified as follows within the accompanying consolidated statements of operations
and changes in net assets:

Lease cost Classification December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Operating lease cost Supplies, purchased services and other S 76,869 S 82,822
Short term lease cost Supplies, purchased services and other 17,187 13,956
Variable lease cost Supplies, purchased services and other 37,133 36,358

Finance lease cost

Amortization of lease assets Depreciation and amortization 18,795 11,998
Interest on lease liabilities Interest 18,898 11,482
Sublease income Other revenue (2,140) (2,503)
Net lease cost S 166,742 S 154,113
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Lease terms, discount rates and other supplemental information are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Weighted average remaining lease term (in years)

Operating 6.0 5.2
Finance 9.6 10.4
Weighted average discount rate

Operating 239 % 2.05 %
Finance 817 % 8.52 %

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities

Operating cash flows from operating leases S 81,534 S 86,743
Operating cash flows from finance leases 18,898 11,482
Financing cash flows from finance leases 17,370 9,246

Future maturities of lease liabilities at December 31, 2022 are as follows:

Operating Leases Finance Leases Total
2023 $ 80,121 $ 34,990 $ 115,111
2024 68,669 38,435 107,104
2025 61,602 37,817 99,419
2026 54,196 37,858 92,054
2027 36,978 37,133 74,111
Thereafter 75,628 204,879 280,507
Future minimum lease payments 377,194 391,112 768,306
Less remaining imputed interest 28,052 125,191 153,243
Total S 349,142 S 265,921 $ 615,063

INTEREST IN MASONIC FAMILY HEALTH FOUNDATION

The System has an interest in the net assets of the Masonic Family Health Foundation ("MFHF"), an
independent organization, under the terms of an asset purchase agreement (the "Agreement").
Substantially all of MFHF’s net assets are designated to support the operations and/or capital needs of
one of the System’s medical facilities. Additionally, 90% of MFHF’s investment yield, net of expenses,
on substantially all of MFHF’s investments is designated for the support of one of the System’s medical
facilities. MFHF must pay the System, annually, 90% of the investment yield or an agreed-upon
percentage of the beginning of the year net assets.

The interest in the net assets of MFHF amounted to $94,302 and $122,793 at December 31, 2022 and
2021, respectively, and is presented within investments in unconsolidated entities in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets. The System’s interest in the investment (loss) income is reflected in the
investment (loss) income, net line in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and
changes in net assets and amounted to $(23,905) and $17,853 for the years ended December 31, 2022
and 2021, respectively. Cash distributions of $4,077 and $3,584 were received by the System from
MFHF under terms of the Agreement during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. In addition, MFHF made $0 and $694 in contributions to the System for program support
during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

26



11.

#23-045

The summarized financial position and results of operations for MFHF accounted for under the equity

method as of and for the periods ended is outlined below:

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2022
Total assets S 99,802
Total liabilities 4,786
Net assets 95,016
Total revenue S (22,495)
Revenue (less than) in excess of expenses (28,382)

LONG-TERM DEBT

S 127,838
4,440

123,398

$ 19,867
14,014

Long-term debt, net of unamortized original issue discount or premium and unamortized deferred

bond issuance costs, consisted of the following:
December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Revenue bonds and revenue refunding bonds

Series 2003A (weighted average rate of 1.38% during 2022 and 2021), principal payable in
varying annual installments through November 2022; interest based on prevailing market
conditions at time of remarketing S —

Series 2003C (weighted average rate of 1.60% during 2022 and 2021), principal payable in
varying annual installments through November 2022; interest based on prevailing market
conditions at time of remarketing —

Series 2008A (weighted average rate of 4.35% during 2022 and 2021), principal payable in
varying annual installments through November 2030; interest based on prevailing market
conditions at time of remarketing 111,901

Series 2008C (weighted average rate of 1.22% and 0.05% during 2022 and 2021,
respectively), principal payable in varying annual installments through November 2038;
interest based on prevailing market conditions at time of remarketing 271,703

Series 2011A, 4.00%, principal payable in annual installments through April 2022 -

Series 2011B (weighted average rate of 1.49% and 0.34% during 2022 and 2021,

respectively), principal payable in varying annual installments through April 2051, subject

to a put provision that provides for a cumulative seven-month notice and remarketing

period; interest tied to a market index plus a spread 69,029

Series 2011C (weighted average rate of 2.05% and 0.67% during 2022 and 2021,
respectively), principal payable in varying annual installments through April 2049, subject
to a put provision on September 3,2024; interest tied to a market index plus a spread 49,601

Series 2011D (weighted average rate of 2.05% and 0.67% during 2022 and 2021,
respectively), principal payable in varying annual installments through April 2049, subject
to a put provision on September 3, 2024; interest tied to a market index plus a spread 49,601

Series 2013A, 5.00%, principal payable in varying annual installments through June 2024 13,213

Series 2014, 4.00% to 5.00%, principal payable in varying annual installments through
August 2038 88,293

Series 2015, 4.13%, principal payable in varying annual installments through May 2045 31,306

Series 2015B, 4.00% to 5.00%, principal payable in varying annual installments through
May 2044 13,997

Series 2018A, 4.00% to 5.00%, principal payable in varying annual installments through
August 2044 104,023

Series 2018B (weighted average rate of 5.00% during 2022 and 2021), principal payable in
varying annual installments through August 2054; interest based on prevailing market
conditions at time of remarketing 192,279

Series 2018C (weighted average rate of 2.37% and 1.31% during 2022 and 2021,

respectively), principal payable in varying annual installments through August 2054,

interest tied to a market index plus a spread or prevailing market conditions at

remarketing 195,087

$ 2,637

2,640

114,310

271,672
221

69,006

49,570

49,570
15,014

97,886
31,342

15,980

104,603

197,045

196,879

1,190,033
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December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Taxable bonds
Taxable Bond Series 2018, 3.83% to 4.27%, principal payable in varying annual
installments through August 2048 802,466 803,497
Taxable Bond Series 2019, 3.39%, principal payable in October 2049 442,107 442,067
Taxable Bond Series 2020A, 2.21% to 3.01%, principal payable in varying annual
installments through June 2050 696,196 696,009
1,940,769 1,941,573
Finance lease obligations and financing arrangements 270,423 270,876
Commercial paper, weighted average interest rate of 1.74% and 0.14% during 2022 and
2021, respectively 50,000 50,000
Taxable Term Loan, (weighted average rate of 2.68% during 2022 and 2021), principal
payable in varying annual installments through September 2024 70,437 80,219
3,521,662 3,561,043
Less amounts classified as current
Long-term debt, current portion (51,204) (46,185)
Commercial paper (50,000) (50,000)
Long-term debt and commercial paper, current portion (101,204) (96,185)
Long-term debt subject to short-term financing arrangements (165,035) (166,350)
(266,239) (262,535)
S 3,255,423 S 3,298,508

Maturities of long-term debt, capital leases, and sinking fund requirements, assuming remarketing of
the variable rate demand revenue refunding bonds, for the five years ending December 31, 2027, are as
follows: 2023 - $51,204; 2024 - $123,605; 2025 - $47,416; 2026 - $42,072; and 2027 - $43,502.

The System's outstanding bonds are secured by obligations issued under the Second Amended and
Restated Master Trust Indenture dated as of August 1, 2018, as the same may be amended from time
to time, between Advocate Aurora Health, Inc., the other affiliates identified therein as the Members of
the Obligated Group and U.S. Bank National Association, as master trustee ("the System Master
Indenture"). Under the terms of the bond indentures and other arrangements, various amounts are to
be on deposit with trustees, and certain specified payments are required for bond redemption and
interest payments. The System Master Indenture and other debt agreements, including bank
agreements, also place restrictions on the System and require the System to maintain certain financial
ratios.

The System's unsecured variable rate revenue bonds, Series 2011B of $69,660, Series 2018B-2 of
$46,310 and Series 2018C-3 of $49,065, while subject to a long-term amortization period, may be put
to the System at the option of the bondholders in connection with certain remarketing dates. To the
extent that bondholders may, under the terms of the debt, put their bonds within 12 months after
December 31, 2022, the principal amount of such bonds has been classified as a current obligation as
long-term debt subject to short-term financing arrangements in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. Management believes the likelihood of a material amount of bonds being put to the
System is remote. However, to address this possibility, the System has taken steps to provide various
sources of liquidity, including assessing alternate sources of financing, including lines of credit and/or
net assets without donor restrictions as a source of self-liquidity.

The System has standby bond purchase agreements with banks to provide liquidity support for the
Series 2008C Bonds. In the event of a failed remarketing of a Series 2008C Bond upon its tender by an
existing holder and subject to compliance with the terms of the standby bond purchase agreement, the
standby bank would provide the funds for the purchase of such tendered bonds, and the System would
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be obligated to repay the bank for the funds it provided for such bond purchase (if such bond is not
subsequently remarketed), with the first installment of such repayment commencing on the date one
year and one day after the bank purchases the bond. As of December 31, 2022, there were no bank-
purchased bonds outstanding. To the extent that the standby bond purchase agreement expiration
date is within 12 months after December 31, 2022, the principal amount of such bonds would be
classified as a current obligation in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The standby bond
purchase agreements expire as follows: $87,694 in September 2024, $58,225 in September 2025 and
$129,456 in January 2026.

In April 2021, the System issued additional Series 2018 Taxable Bonds in the principal amount of
$85,000 and additional Series 2019 Taxable Bonds in the principal amount of $85,210 ("Additional
Taxable Bonds"). The proceeds of the Additional Taxable Bonds were used to refinance a portion of the
Series 2012, Series 2013A, Series 2014, Series 2015 Bonds and to pay certain financing costs. In
connection with this transaction, the System recognized a loss on refinancing in the amount of $14,421.

As of December 31, 2022, the System authorized the issuance of up to $1,000,000 in commercial paper
aggregate principal outstanding. As of December 31, 2022, $50,000 of commercial paper notes was
outstanding, with maturities ranging from 9 to 41 days. As of December 31, 2021, $50,000 of
commercial paper was outstanding, with maturities ranging from 7 to 48 days.

At December 31, 2022, the System had lines of credit with banks aggregating to $1,150,000 in available
commitments. These lines of credit provide for various interest rates and payment terms and as of
December 31, 2022 expire as follows: $350,000 in December 2023, $150,000 in August 2024, $325,000
in December 2024 and $325,000 in December 2025. These lines of credit may be used to redeem
bonded indebtedness, to pay costs related to such redemptions, for capital expenditures for general
working capital purposes or to provide for certain letters of credit. At December 31, 2022, letters of
credit totaling $65,550 have been issued under one of these lines. At December 31, 2022, no amounts
were outstanding on these lines or letters of credit.

The System maintains an interest rate swap program on certain of its variable rate debt, as described in
Note 12. INTEREST RATE SWAP PROGRAM.

The System’s interest paid amount includes all debt agreements including revenue bonds and revenue
refunding bonds, taxable bonds, finance lease obligations, financing arrangements and interest rate
swaps. The System's interest paid, net of capitalized interest, amounted to $126,333 and $113,633 for
the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The System capitalized interest of $5,698
and $13,027 for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

INTEREST RATE SWAP PROGRAM

The System has interest rate-related derivative instruments to manage the exposure of its variable rate
debt instruments. By using derivative financial instruments to manage the risk of changes in interest
rates, the System exposes itself to credit risk and market risk. Credit risk is the failure of the
counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative contracts. When the fair value of a
derivative contract is positive, the counterparty owes the System, which creates credit risk for the
System. When the fair value of a derivative contract is negative, the System owes the counterparty and,
therefore, it does not possess credit risk. The System minimizes the credit risk in derivative instruments
by entering into transactions that may require the counterparty to post collateral for the benefit of the
System based on the credit rating of the counterparty and the fair value of the derivative contract.
Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of a derivative financial instrument that results from a
change in interest rates. The market risk associated with interest rate changes is managed by
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establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of market risk that may be
undertaken. The System also mitigates risk through periodic reviews of its derivative positions in the
context of its total blended cost of capital.

At December 31, 2022, the System maintains an interest rate swap program on its Series 2008C
variable rate demand revenue bonds. These bonds expose the System to variability in interest
payments due to changes in interest rates. The System believes that it is prudent to limit the variability
of its interest payments. To meet this objective and to take advantage of low interest rates, the System
entered into various interest rate swap agreements to manage fluctuations in cash flows resulting from
interest rate risk. These swaps convert the variable rate cash flow exposure on the variable rate
demand revenue bonds to synthetically fixed cash flows. The notional amount under each interest rate
swap agreement is reduced over the term of the respective agreement to correspond with reductions
in the principal outstanding under various bond series.

The System has two swaps that are being held as a swap portfolio as the related debt is no longer
outstanding.

The following is a summary of the outstanding positions under these interest rate swap agreements at
December 31, 2022:

Bond Series Notional Amount Maturity Date Rate Received Rate Paid

2008C-1 S 129,900 November 1, 2038 61.7% of LIBOR + 26bps 3.605 %
2008C-2B 58,425 November 1, 2038 61.7% of LIBOR + 26bps 3.605 %
2008C-3A 88,000 November 1, 2038 61.7% of LIBOR + 26bps 3.605 %
Swap portfolio 50,000 November 1, 2038 61.7% of LIBOR + 26bps 3.605 %
Swap portfolio 24,265 February 1, 2038 70.0% of LIBOR 3314 %

The swaps are not designated as hedging instruments and, therefore, hedge accounting has not been
applied. As such, unrealized changes in fair value of the swaps are classified as changes in fair value of
swaps in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. The net
cash settlement payments, representing the realized changes in fair value of the swaps, are included as
interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.

The fair value of the interest rate swap agreements was a liability of $29,514 and $91,217 as of

December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. No collateral was posted under these swap agreements as
of December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Amounts recorded in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets are as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Net cash payments on interest rate swap agreements (interest expense) S 8,432 § 11,487
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps S 61,703 $ 27,403

The interest rate swap instruments contain provisions that require the System to maintain an
investment grade credit rating on its bonds from certain major credit rating agencies. If the System's
bonds were to fall below investment grade, it would be in violation of these provisions and the
counterparties to the swap instruments could request immediate payment or demand immediate and
ongoing full overnight collateralization on interest rate swap instruments in net liability positions.
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13. RETIREMENT PLANS

The System maintains various employee retirement benefit plans available to qualifying employees and
retirees.

The Advocate Health Care Network Pension Plan (“Advocate Plan”) was frozen effective December 31,
2019 to new participants and participants ceased accruing additional pension benefits. The
accompanying consolidated balance sheets contain an other noncurrent liability related to the
Advocate Plan totaling $174,023 and $75,012 at December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021,
respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, SO and $30,000, respectively, in
cash contributions were made to the Advocate Plan.

The Advocate Aurora Health Pension Plan (“AAH Plan”) was created through a merger of the Condell
Health Network Retirement Plan (frozen effective January 1, 2008) and the Aurora Health Care, Inc.
Pension Plan (frozen effective December 31, 2012). The accompanying consolidated balance sheets
contain an other noncurrent liability related to the AAH Plan of $105,335 and $57,617 at December 31,
2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, no
contributions were made to the AAH Plan.

A summary of changes in the plan assets, projected benefit obligation and the resulting funded status
for the year ended December 31, 2022 is as follows:

Advocate AAH Total
Change in plan assets:

Plan assets at fair value at beginning of period S 982,077 S 1,405,674 $ 2,387,751
Actual return on plan assets (55,218) (378,408) (433,626)
Benefits paid (63,650) (44,774) (108,424)

Plan assets at fair value at end of period S 863,209 § 982,492 $ 1,845,701

Change in projected benefit obligation:

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of period S 1,057,089 $ 1,463,291 $ 2,520,380
Interest cost 39,130 43,849 82,979
Actuarial loss (gain) 4,663 (374,539) (369,876)
Benefits paid (63,650) (44,774) (108,424)

Projected benefit obligation at end of period S 1,037,232 $ 1,087,827 $ 2,125,059

Plan assets less than projected benefit obligation S (174,023) S (105,335) $ (279,358)

Accumulated benefit obligation at end of period S 1,037,232 $ 1,087,827 $ 2,125,059
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A summary of changes in the plan assets, projected benefit obligation and the resulting funded status
for the year ended December 31, 2021 is as follows:

Advocate AAH Total

Change in plan assets:

Plan assets at fair value at beginning of period S 952,588 S 1,449,588 §$ 2,402,176
Actual return on plan assets 53,662 (2,694) 50,968
Employer contributions 30,000 — 30,000
Benefits paid (54,173) (41,220) (95,393)

Plan assets at fair value at end of period S 982,077 S 1,405,674 $ 2,387,751

Change in projected benefit obligation:

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of period S 1,086,913 $ 1,516,082 $ 2,602,995
Interest cost 28,119 41,650 69,769
Actuarial gain (3,770) (53,221) (56,991)
Benefits paid (54,173) (41,220) (95,393)

Projected benefit obligation at end of period S 1,057,089 $ 1,463,291 $ 2,520,380

Plan assets less than projected benefit obligation S (75,012) S (57,617) S (132,629)
Accumulated benefit obligation at end of period S 1,057,089 $ 1,463,291 $ 2,520,380

The AAH Plan actuarial gain of $374,539 for the year ending December 31, 2022 was primarily driven by
an increase in discount rates and an increase in the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets.
The AAH Plan actuarial gain of $53,221 for the year ending December 31, 2021 was primarily driven by
an increase in discount rates which was slightly offset by an actuarial loss due to updated mortality
improvement assumptions.

The Advocate Plan paid lump sums totaling $60,526 and $51,104 in 2022 and 2021, respectively. The
amount in 2022 and 2021 was greater than the sum of the Advocate Plan’s service cost and interest
cost, resulting in a settlement charge in the amount of $17,789 and $12,102, respectively.

Pension plan expense included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and
changes in net assets is as follows for the year ended December 31, 2022:

Advocate AAH Total

Interest cost S 39,130 $ 43,849 S 82,979
Expected return on plan assets (44,909) (52,179) (97,088)
Amortization of:

Actuarial loss 3,491 6,034 9,525

Prior service cost — 3 3
Settlement 17,789 - 17,789
Net pension expense (income) S 15,501 S (2,293) S 13,208
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Pension plan expense included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and
changes in net assets is as follows for the year ended December 31, 2021:

Advocate AAH Total

Interest cost 28,119 41,650 69,769
Expected return on plan assets (42,421) (43,487) (85,908)
Amortization of:

Actuarial loss 4,477 10,410 14,887

Prior service cost — 3 3
Settlement 12,102 - 12,102
Net pension expense S 2,277 S 8,576 S 10,853

The components of net periodic benefit costs, other than the service cost component, are included in
other nonoperating (loss) income, net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and
changes in net assets.

The net change recognized in net assets without donor restrictions as a component of pension-related
changes other than net periodic pension cost was as follows for the year ended December 31, 2022:

Advocate AAH Total

Net change recognized S 83,510 S 50,011 S 133,521

The net change recognized in net assets without donor restrictions as a component of pension-related
changes other than net periodic pension cost was as follows for the year ended December 31, 2021:

Advocate AAH Total

Net change recognized S 31,590 S 17,454  $ 49,044

Included in net assets without donor restrictions at December 31, 2022 are the following amounts that
have not yet been recognized in net pension expense:

Advocate AAH Total
Unrecognized prior credit S ) 93 § 93
Unrecognized actuarial loss 327,637 390,465 718,102
S 327,637 §$ 390,558 S 718,195

Expected employee benefit payments to be paid from the pension plans are as follows:

Advocate AAH Total
2023 S 67,536 $ 54,663 S 122,199
2024 68,730 58,219 126,949
2025 69,244 61,099 130,343
2026 67,474 64,485 131,959
2027 67,999 66,946 134,945
2028-2032 352,072 363,684 715,756
Total S 693,055 S 669,096 S 1,362,151
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Expected contributions to the pension plans are as follows:

Advocate AAH Total

2023 $ 10,000 S — S 10,000

Employer contributions were paid from employer assets. No plan assets are expected to be returned to
the employer. All benefits paid under the Advocate Plan and AAH Plan (collectively referred to as the
"Plans") were paid from the Plans' assets.

The System's asset allocation and investment strategies are designed to earn returns on plan assets
consistent with a reasonable and prudent level of risk. Investments are diversified across classes,
economic sectors and manager style to minimize the risk of loss. The System utilizes investment
managers specializing in each asset category and, where appropriate, provides the investment manager
with specific guidelines that include allowable and/or prohibited investment types. The System
regularly monitors manager performance and compliance with investment guidelines.

The System's target and actual pension asset allocations for the Plans are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Asset Category - Advocate Plan Target Actual Target Actual
De-risking portfolio 70 % 70 % 70 % 70 %
Domestic and international equity securities 21 20 21 21
Alternative investments 6 7 6 6
Cash and fixed-income securities 3 3 3 3
100 % 100 % 100 % 100 %
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Asset Category - AAH Plan Target Actual Target Actual
De-risking portfolio 85 % 82 % 85 % 83 %
Domestic and international equity securities 12 15 12 14
Real estate 1 1 1 1
Cash and fixed-income securities 2 2 2 2

100 % 100 % 100 % 100 %

The de-risking portfolio is comprised of cash and fixed-income instruments designed to hedge Plan
liabilities.

At December 31, 2022, the Advocate Plan had commitments to fund alternative investments, including
recallable distributions of $15,026 over the next four years.

In the normal course of operations and within established investment policy guidelines, the Plans may
enter into various exchange-traded and over-the-counter derivative contracts for trading purposes,
including futures, options and forward contracts. These instruments are used primarily to maintain the
Plans' strategic asset allocation and hedge security price movements. These instruments require the
Plans to deposit cash collateral with the broker or custodian.

Derivative contract information at December 31, 2022 are as follows:

Advocate AAH Total
Cash and security collateral provided S 15,659 S 6,819 S 22,478
Gross notional value S (398,544) S 232,011 S (166,533)
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Derivative contract information at December 31, 2021 are as follows:

Advocate AAH Total
Cash and security collateral provided S 15,978 S 6,065 $ 22,043
Gross notional value S (539,122) S 262,962 S (276,160)

By using derivative financial instruments, the System exposes itself to credit risk and market risk. Credit
risk is the failure of the counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative contracts. When the
fair value of a derivative contract is positive, the counterparty owes the System, which creates credit risk
for the System. When the fair value of a derivative contract is negative, the System owes the
counterparty and, therefore, it does not possess credit risk. The System minimizes the credit risk in
derivative instruments by entering into transactions that may require the counterparty to post collateral
for the benefit of the System based on the credit rating of the counterparty and the fair value of the
derivative contract. Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of a financial instrument that results
from a change in the underlying reference security. The market risk associated with market changes is
managed by establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of market risk that
may be undertaken.

Receivables and payables for investment trades not settled are presented within Advocate Plan assets.
Unsettled sales resulted in receivables due from brokers of $118 and $8,515 at December 31, 2022 and
2021, respectively. Unsettled purchases resulted in payables of $647 and $17,265 at December 31, 2022
and 2021, respectively.

Receivables and payables for investment trades not settled are presented within AAH Plan assets.
Unsettled sales resulted in receivables due from brokers of S9 and $7,808 at December 31, 2022 and
2021, respectively. Unsettled purchases resulted in payables of $995 and $16,500 at December 31, 2022
and 2021, respectively.

Fair value methodologies for Level 1 and Level 2 are consistent with the inputs described in Note 7. FAIR
VALUE. Real estate commingled funds for which an active market exists are included in Level 2. The
System opted to use the net asset value per share, or its equivalent, as a practical expedient for the fair
value of the Plans’ interest in hedge funds, private equity limited partnerships and real estate
commingled funds. There is inherent uncertainty in such valuations and the estimated fair values may
differ from the values that would have been used had a ready market for these investments existed.
Private equity limited partnerships and real estate commingled funds typically have finite lives ranging
from five to ten years, at the end of which all invested capital is returned. For hedge funds, the typical
lockup period is one year, after which invested capital can be redeemed on a quarterly basis with at
least 30 days’ but no more than 90 days’ notice. The Plans’ investment assets are exposed to the same
kinds and levels of risk as described in Note 7. FAIR VALUE.
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The following are the Plans’ financial instruments at December 31, 2022, measured at fair value on a
recurring basis by the valuation hierarchy defined in Note 7. FAIR VALUE:

Description

Cash and short-term investments
Corporate bonds and other debt securities
United States government obligations
Bond and other debt security funds

Equity securities

Equity funds

Real estate funds

Investments at net asset value
Alternative investments

Total investments

Quoted Prices Other
in Active Significant Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
December 31, Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
2022 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

87,955 $ 627 $ 87,328 $ —

748,185 — 748,185 -

540,677 — 540,677 —

44,071 — 44,071 -

13,393 13,393 — —

335,434 9,418 326,016 -

16,407 — 16,407 —

1,786,122 S 23,438 S 1,762,684 S —
59,579
1,845,701

The following are the Plans’ financial instruments at December 31, 2021, measured at fair value on a
recurring basis by the valuation hierarchy defined in Note 7. FAIR VALUE:

Description

Cash and short-term investments
Corporate bonds and other debt securities
United States government obligations
Bond and other debt security funds

Equity securities

Equity funds

Real estate funds

Investments at net asset value
Alternative investments

Total investments

Quoted Prices Other
in Active Significant Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
December 31, Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
2021 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
78,247 S 43,778 $ 34,469 S —
984,539 — 984,539 —
740,439 - 740,439 -
53,923 — 53,923 —
19,900 19,900 - -
432,928 12,474 420,454 —
16,180 - 16,180 -
2,326,156 $ 76,152 S 2,250,004 $ —
61,595
2,387,751

Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations are as follows:

Discount rate - Advocate Plan
Discount rate - AAH Plan

Assumed rate of return on assets - Advocate Plan
Assumed rate of return on assets - AAH Plan

Interest crediting rate - Advocate Plan
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Assumptions used to determine net pension expense are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Discount rate - Advocate Plan 2.85% 249 %
Discount rate - AAH Plan 3.05 % 279 %
Assumed rate of return on assets - Advocate Plan 4.50 % 4.40 %
Assumed rate of return on assets - AAH Plan 3.80 % 3.40 %
Interest crediting rate - Advocate Plan 1.80 % 1.35%

The assumed rate of return on each of the Plan's assets is based on historical and projected rates of
return for asset classes in which the portfolio is invested.

The 2022 and 2021 mortality assumption for the Plans was the amounts-weighted aggregate rates from
the Pri-2012 mortality study, with white-collar adjustments projected generationally from 2012 with
Scale MP-2021.

In addition to these Plans, the System sponsors a defined contribution plan for its employees. Expense
related to the plan, is included in salaries, wages and benefits expense in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets, were $312,816 and $296,894 for the
years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

14. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes:
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Purchases of property and equipment S 19,422 S 17,579
Medical education and other health care programs 218,754 234,098
S 238,176 S 251,677
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FUNCTIONAL OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating expenses directly attributable to a specific functional area of the System are reported as
expenses of those functional areas. Expenses other than interest expense are directly allocated to
functional departments at the time they are incurred. Interest expense that relates to debt financing is
allocated based on the use of the related funds. General and administrative expenses primarily include
legal, finance, marketing, purchasing and human resources. Health care services require the benefit of
and the expense of general and administrative services; therefore, these costs are further allocated to
health care services. A majority of fundraising costs are reported as other nonoperating (loss) income,
net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.

Functional operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2022 are as follows:

General and
Health care services administrative Consolidated
Salaries, wages and benefits S 7,810,612 750,010 S 8,560,622
Supplies, purchased services and other 4,139,707 630,728 4,770,435
Contracted medical services 518,834 — 518,834
Depreciation and amortization 563,195 36,728 599,923
Interest 118,319 - 118,319
Total operating expenses 13,150,667 1,417,466 14,568,133
Allocation of general and administrative 1,417,466 (1,417,466) —
Total operating expenses after allocation S 14,568,133 - S 14,568,133
Functional operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2021 are as follows:
General and
Health care services administrative Consolidated

Salaries, wages and benefits S 6,936,615 727,322 S 7,663,937
Supplies, purchased services and other 3,937,999 632,548 4,570,547
Contracted medical services 564,586 — 564,586
Depreciation and amortization 495,608 67,801 563,409
Interest 106,101 — 106,101
Total operating expenses 12,040,909 1,427,671 13,468,580
Allocation of general and administrative 1,427,671 (1,427,671) —
Total operating expenses after allocation S 13,468,580 - S 13,468,580
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LIQUIDITY

The System’s financial assets available within one year of the consolidated balance sheets date for
general expenditures are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents S 372,898 § 703,725
Assets limited as to use 153,557 139,742
Patient accounts receivable 1,796,499 1,816,705
Third-party payors receivables 23,400 22,154
Collateral proceeds under securities lending program 17,402 18,550
Total current assets 2,363,756 2,700,876

Assets limited as to use

Internally designated for capital and other 10,301,972 11,572,323

Held for self-insurance 564,195 649,513

Donor restricted 98,293 155,009

Investments under securities lending program 16,732 17,760
Total assets limited as to use 10,981,192 12,394,605
Total financial assets S 13,344,948 S 15,095,481
Less

Amounts unavailable for general expenditures
Alternative investments (3,000,238) (2,727,059)
Total amounts unavailable for general expenditure (3,000,238) (2,727,059)

Amounts unavailable to management without approval

Held for self-insurance (717,752) (789,255)
Donor restricted (98,293) (155,009)
Investments under securities lending program (16,732) (17,760)
Total amounts unavailable to management without approval (832,777) (962,024)
Total financial assets available to management for general expenditure within one year S 9,511,933 $ 11,406,398

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Aurora West Allis Medical Center has the right to operate the hospital under the terms of a lease
agreement with the City of West Allis (“the City"). In accordance with the lease agreement, the City has
title to all assets and any subsequent additions (with the exception of certain equipment used by
Aurora for laboratory services). Aurora West Allis Medical Center has an exclusive right to the use of
the assets and the obligation to maintain and replace them. The historical cost to the System of the
leased facilities is included within the System’s property and equipment, net. The agreement provides
for annual payments of less than $100 in lieu of annual lease payments and includes payment
escalations each subsequent year. The lease expires in 2063.

The System is committed to constructing additions and renovations to its medical facilities that are
expected to be completed in future years. The estimated cost of these commitments is $879,407, of
which $553,775 has been incurred as of December 31, 2022.

The System entered into agreements for information technology services provided by third parties. The
maximum amount of future payments that the System could be required to make under these
agreements is approximately $102,000 over the next eight years and approximately $3,000 and
$22,000 is included in accounts payable and other accrued liabilities and other noncurrent liabilities,
respectively in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2022. The System has
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also entered into various other agreements. The future commitments under these agreements are
$27,500 over the next three years.

GENERAL AND PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY RISKS

The System is self-insured for substantially all general and professional liability risks. The self-insurance
programs combine various levels of self-insured retention with excess commercial insurance coverage.
In addition, various umbrella insurance policies have been purchased to provide coverage in excess of
the self-insured limits. Revocable trust funds, administered by a trustee and captive insurance
companies, have been established for the self-insurance programs. Actuarial consultants have been
retained to determine the estimated cost of claims, as well as to determine the amount to fund into the
irrevocable trust and captive insurance companies.

The System's hospitals, clinics, surgery centers, physicians and certified registered nurse anesthetist
providers that provide health care in Wisconsin are qualified health care providers that are fully
covered for losses in excess of statutory limits through mandatory participation in the State of
Wisconsin Injured Patients and Families Compensation Fund.

The estimated cost of claims is actuarially determined based on past experience, as well as other
considerations, including the nature of each claim or incident and relevant trend factors. Accrued
insurance liabilities and contributions to the trust were determined using a discount rate of 3.00% as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021. Total accrued insurance liabilities would have been $81,651 and $78,450
greater at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, had these liabilities not been discounted.

The System entities are defendants in certain litigation related to professional and general liability risks,
and other matters. Although the outcome of the litigations cannot be determined with certainty,
management believes, after consultation with legal counsel, that the ultimate resolution of the
litigations will not have a material adverse effect on the System’s operations or financial condition.

LEGAL, REGULATORY AND OTHER CONTINGENCIES

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are extremely complex and
subject to interpretation. During the last few years, due to nationwide investigations by governmental
agencies, various health care organizations have received requests for information and notices
regarding alleged noncompliance with those laws and regulations, which, in some instances, have
resulted in organizations entering into significant settlement agreements. Compliance with such laws
and regulations may also be subject to future government review and interpretation, as well as
significant regulatory action, including fines, penalties, exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid
programs and revocation of federal or state tax-exempt status. Moreover, the System expects that the
level of review and audit to which it and other health care providers are subject will increase.

Various federal and state agencies have initiated investigations, which are in various stages of
discovery, relating to reimbursement, billing practices and other matters of the System. There can be
no assurance that regulatory authorities will not challenge the System’s compliance with these laws
and regulations, and it is not possible to determine the impact, if any, such claims or penalties would
have on the System. To foster compliance with applicable laws and regulations, the System maintains a
compliance program designed to detect and correct potential violations of laws and regulations related
to its programs.
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INCOME TAXES AND TAX STATUS

The subsidiaries of the System are primarily tax-exempt organizations under Internal Revenue Code
Section 501(c)(3) and their related income is exempt from federal income tax. Accordingly, no income
taxes are recorded for the majority of the income in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements for these entities. Unrelated business income is generated by certain of these entities
through the provision of services or other activities not directly related to the provision of patient care.

At December 31, 2022, the System had $153,352 of federal and $113,825 of state net operating loss
carryforwards with unutilized amounts of state net operating loss carryforwards expiring between 2022
and 2039. At December 31, 2021, the System had $98,410 of federal and $113,825 of state net
operating loss carryforwards with unutilized amounts of state net operating loss carryforwards expiring
between 2021 and 2037. As a result of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017, net operating losses generated
after 2017 do not expire for federal purposes. Of the $153,352 of federal net operating loss
carryforwards at December 31, 2022, $138,431 was generated after 2017.

The System calculated income taxes for its taxable subsidiaries. Taxable income differs from pretax
book income primarily due to certain income and deductions for tax purposes being recorded in the
consolidated financial statements in different periods. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
recorded for the tax effect of these differences using enacted tax rates for the years in which the
differences are expected to reverse.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than
not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of
deferred tax assets is dependent on the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which
those temporary differences become deductible.

The System had deferred tax assets of $71,943 and $51,248, including $41,562 and $30,326 related to
net operating loss carryforwards, as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. These deferred tax
assets were partially offset by valuation allowances of $40,580 and $14,534, respectively, which were
recorded due to the uncertainty regarding the use of the deferred tax assets.

The System had deferred tax liabilities of $30,748 and $23,655 as of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively, resulting in a net deferred tax asset of $615 and $13,059 as of December 31, 2022 and
2021, respectively.

Provisions (credits) for federal, state and deferred income taxes are included in other nonoperating
(loss) income, net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets
as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Federal S (15,041) S (1,019)
State — (303)
Deferred 12,443 (8,668)
S (2,598) $ (9,990)
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21 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The System evaluated events and transactions subsequent to December 31, 2022 through April 11,
2023, the date of consolidated financial statement issuance.

In January 2023, $46,310 of the Series 2018B-2 Bonds were remarketed for a new long-term rate
period and will next be subject to mandatory purchase on June 24, 2026. In connection with the
remarketing, $3,260 of the Series 2018B-2 Bonds were redeemed and a loss on refinancing was
recorded in the amount of $19.

In January 2023, $49,065 of the Series 2018C-3 Bonds were remarketed for a new long-term rate
period and will next be subject to mandatory purchase on June 24, 2026. In connection with the
remarketing, $3,455 of the Series 2018C-3 Bonds were redeemed and a loss on refinancing was
recorded in the amount of $21.

sk ok
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Ernst & Young LLP Tel: +1 312 879 2000
155 North Wacker Drive Fax: +1 312 879 4000

Chicago, IL 60606-1787 ey.com
Building a better
working world

Report of Independent Auditors on Supplementary Information

The Board of Directors
Advocate Health, Inc.

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying details of consolidated balance sheets and details of consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audits of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

Gt + MLLP

April 11, 2023

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2022

(in thousands)

#23-045

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Assets limited as to use
Patient accounts receivable
Other current assets
Third-party payors receivables
Receivable from subsidiaries
Collateral proceeds under securities lending program
Total current assets

Assets limited as to use

Note receivable from subsidiaries

Property and equipment, net

Other assets

Reinsurance receivable
Goodwill and intangible assets, net
Investment in subsidiaries
Investments in unconsolidated entities
Operating lease right-of-use assets
Other noncurrent assets

Total other assets

Total assets

Noncredit

Credit Group Group Eliminations  Consolidated
S 686,524 S (313,626) S -5 372,898
142,005 11,552 - 153,557
1,591,249 224,273 (19,023) 1,796,499
768,824 165,780 - 934,604
21,037 2,363 - 23,400
418,484 300,078 (718,562) -
17,402 — — 17,402
3,645,525 390,420 (737,585) 3,298,360
10,925,235 365,931 (309,974) 10,981,192
172,635 - (172,635) -
5,494,587 476,955 - 5,971,542
116,786 - - 116,786
47,689 428,875 - 476,564
1,012,938 — (1,012,938) -
172,226 43,950 - 216,176
259,408 45,903 - 305,311
491,921 20,418 - 512,339
2,100,968 539,146 (1,012,938) 1,627,176

$ 22,338,950 $ 1,772,452 $ (2,233,132) $ 21,878,270
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2022

(in thousands)

Noncredit
Credit Group Group Eliminations  Consolidated
Current liabilities
Long-term debt and commercial paper, current portion S 98,345 S 25,014 S (22,155) S 101,204
Long-term debt subject to short-term financing arrangements 165,035 — — 165,035
Operating lease liabilities, current portion 61,210 11,816 — 73,026
Accrued salaries and employee benefits 1,072,374 93,487 — 1,165,861
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 848,605 281,970 (19,023) 1,111,552
Third-party payors payables 356,693 484 — 357,177
Accrued insurance and claims costs, current portion 191,738 12,854 — 204,592
Accounts payable to subsidiaries 288,749 407,658 (696,407) —
Collateral under securities lending program 17,402 — — 17,402
Total current liabilities 3,100,151 833,283 (737,585) 3,195,849
Noncurrent liabilities
Long-term debt, less current portion 3,252,131 175,927 (172,635) 3,255,423
Operating lease liabilities, less current portion 235,957 40,159 — 276,116
Accrued insurance and claims cost, less current portion 592,926 41,542 — 634,468
Accrued losses subject to insurance recovery 116,786 — — 116,786
Obligations under swap agreements 29,514 — — 29,514
Due to subsidiaries 309,974 — (309,974) —
Other noncurrent liabilities 870,746 51,821 — 922,567
Total noncurrent liabilities 5,408,034 309,449 (482,609) 5,234,874
Total liabilities 8,508,185 1,142,732 (1,220,194) 8,430,723
Net assets
Without donor restrictions
Controlling interest 13,666,706 110,259 (739,385) 13,037,580
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries — 445,344 (273,553) 171,791
Total net assets without donor restrictions 13,666,706 555,603 (1,012,938) 13,209,371
With donor restrictions 164,059 74,117 — 238,176
Total net assets 13,830,765 629,720 (1,012,938) 13,447,547
Total liabilities and net assets $ 22,338,950 $ 1,772,452 $ (2,233,132) $ 21,878,270
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended December 31, 2022

(in thousands)

Noncredit
Credit Group Group Eliminations  Consolidated
Revenue
Patient service revenue $ 10,812,322 $ 1,597,719 $ (344,270) S 12,065,771
Capitation revenue 557,744 643,841 (4,258) 1,197,327
Other revenue 700,071 936,489 (355,412) 1,281,148
Total revenue 12,070,137 3,178,049 (703,940) 14,544,246
Expenses
Salaries, wages and benefits 7,497,794 1,088,848 (25,855) 8,560,787
Supplies, purchased services and other 3,692,346 1,296,096 (253,294) 4,735,148
Contracted medical services 179,908 689,605 (350,679) 518,834
Depreciation and amortization 499,940 99,766 — 599,706
Interest 112,642 15,903 (10,226) 118,319
Total expenses 11,982,630 3,190,218 (640,054) 14,532,794
Operating income (loss) before nonrecurring expenses 87,507 (12,169) (63,886) 11,452
Nonrecurring expenses 35,339 — — 35,339
Operating income (loss) 52,168 (12,169) (63,886) (23,887)
Nonoperating (loss) income
Investment loss, net (698,863) (24,362) — (723,225)
Loss on debt refinancing (33) — — (33)
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps 61,703 — — 61,703
Other nonoperating (loss) income, net (12,518) (7,752) 4 (20,266)
Total nonoperating (loss) income, net (649,711) (32,114) 4 (681,821)
Revenue less than expenses (597,543) (44,283) (63,882) (705,708)
Less income attributable to noncontrolling interests — (109,006) 63,882 (45,124)
Revenue less than expenses- attributable to controlling interests $ (597,543) $ (153,289) $ ) (750,832)
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Notes to Supplementary Information
1. Credit Group

The supplementary financial information for the Credit Group is in accordance with the Second Amended
and Restated Master Trust Indenture dated as of August 1, 2018 between Advocate Aurora Health, Inc, the
other affiliates identified therein as the Members of the Obligated Group, the Restricted Affiliates, and U.S.
Bank National Association, as master trustee ("the System Master Indenture").

2. Credit Group Members

The Credit Group is comprised of the Obligated Group in combination with the Restricted Affiliates. The
Obligated Group includes Advocate Aurora Health, Inc.; Advocate Health Care Network; Advocate Health
and Hospitals Corporation; Advocate North Side Health Network; Advocate Condell Medical Center;
Advocate Sherman Hospital; Aurora Health Care, Inc.; Aurora Health Care Metro, Inc.; Aurora Health Care
Southern Lakes, Inc.; Aurora Health Care Central, Inc. d/b/a Aurora Sheboygan Memorial Medical Center;
Aurora Medical Center of Washington County, Inc.; Aurora Health Care North, Inc. d/b/a Aurora Medical
Center Manitowoc County; Aurora Medical Center of Oshkosh, Inc.; Aurora Medical Group, Inc.; Aurora
Medical Center Grafton LLC; and Aurora Medical Center Bay Area, Inc. The Restricted Affiliates include
Advocate Charitable Foundation; Advocate Home Care Products, Inc.; EHS Home Health Care Services, Inc.;
Evangelical Services Corporation, d/b/a Advocate Network Services, Inc.; High Technology, Inc.; Meridian
Hospice; and West Allis Memorial Hospital Inc. d/b/a Aurora West Allis Medical Center. The Credit Group is
with U.S. Bank National Association, as master trustee ("the System Master Indenture").
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CONSTRUCTION
INFLATION ALERT

For more than two years the U.S. construction industry has been buffeted by unprecedented increases in materials

costs, supply-chain bottlenecks, and a tight labor market. To help project owners, government officials, and the public
understand how these conditions are affecting contractors and their workers, the Associated General Contractors of
America (AGC) has posted frequent updates of the Construction Inflation Alert.

Several recent developments have raised the specter of a sharp slowdown or even a recession in the U.S. economy.
Inflation is at a 40-year high, sapping consumers’ purchasing power despite elevated wage increases. Major stock
indexes have declined sharply—a frequent but not foolproof harbinger of recession. A growing number of companies
have announced layoffs, although the job market remains vibrant, as indicated by large monthly employment increases,
near-record job openings, and a persistently low unemployment rate

However, a recession is far from certain. Demand for infrastructure, manufacturing, and power construction appears to
be strong and likely to strengthen further, perhaps for several years to come. In any case, the cost of construction
materials and labor does not generally move in sync with the overall economy. In short, owners should not assume that
delaying projects will enable them to avoid volatility and disruptions in construction costs, delivery times, and labor
supply, even if the economy slows significantly.

Meanwhile, Russia’s ongoing attack on Ukraine and Western sanctions against Russia have disrupted production and
transport of dozens of commodities. China’s prolonged lockdown of Shanghai and other areas in an attempt to control
the spread of covid has also affected production and shipping. New variants of covid, as well as a growing number of
people with lingering or recurrent symptoms (“long-haul covid”), add to uncertainty about labor supply.

This version of the Alert is the seventh update since the first edition was posted in March 2021—an indication that the
situation remains far from “normal.” This document will continue to be revised to keep it timely as conditions affecting
demand for construction, labor supply, and materials costs and availability change. Each new version is posted here:
https://www.agc.org/learn/construction-data/agc-construction-inflation-alert

Please send comments and feedback, along with “Dear Valued Customer” letters or other information about materials
costs and supply-chain issues, to AGC of America’s chief economist, Ken Simonson, ken.simonson@agc.org.

www.agc.org
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Recent changes in input costs

Previous editions of this guide have highlighted the extreme runup in materials costs that began in early 2020. More recently,
prices have moved in divergent directions for different materials. But, on balance, they continue to climb at a much higher rate

than the consumer price index.

The extent of these increases is documented by the Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS). BLS posts producer price indexes (PPIs)
around the middle of each month for thousands of products and services (at www.bls.gov/ppi). Most PPIs
are based on the prices that sellers say they charged for a specific item on the 11th day of the preceding
month. Producers include manufacturers and fabricators, intermediaries such as steel service centers and
distributors, and providers of services ranging from design to trucking.

Figure 1 shows the magnitude of the increases for seven widely used categories of construction inputs.
From April 2020, the low point for prices of many goods during the early stage of the pandemic, to June
2022, the PPI for steel mill products more than doubled (up 124% in 26 months). There were increases of
more than 60% in the indexes for copper and brass mill shapes (up 68%) and lumber and plywood (up The PPI for steel mill
61%). PPIs rose by more than half for plastic construction products (up 55%) and aluminum mill shapes PrOdUCtS rose 124%
(up 53%). The index for gypsum products increased 44% and the PPI for truck transportation climbed In 26 months

40%. Numerous other indexes rose by more than the 23% increase in the “bid price” index.

Figure 1

PPIs for construction bid prices and selected inputs
cumulative change in PPIs, April 2020-June 2022 (not seasonally adjusted)
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Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics, preducer price indexes, www.bls gov/ppi
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Supply-chainissues

From the first days of the pandemic, availability and delivery times for materials have been never-ending headaches for
construction firms. Problems began as early as February 2020, when factories in China and northern Italy were shut down,
causing shortages of items as diverse as elevator parts, floor tiles, and kitchen appliances. Two years later, another round of
covid-related restrictions in China disrupted production and shipping from that country.

Russia’s attack on Ukraine, Western countermeasures against Russia, and diversions or blockages of cargo ships are impeding or
cutting off supplies of items as diverse as pig iron used in steelmaking, neon for lasers used in semiconductor manufacturing and
other applications, and Ukrainian clay used in producing ceramic tile exported to the U.S. from Italy and Spain. Some of these
impacts are far down the supply chain from the actual construction item. For instance, a producer of electrical switchgear
reported in May that the time for delivering products from its plant had doubled from 20 weeks to 40, in part because of
difficulty acquiring a fire-retardant chemical produced in Europe that goes into a plastic resin used to make the housing for its
switchgear.

Adding to these pandemic- and conflict-induced problems, a series of unusual mishaps interfered with
output or delivery of numerous goods. The biggest impact for construction came from the severe freeze
in Texas in February 2021 that damaged all of the petrochemical plants producing resins for a host of
construction plastics. Damage to the electrical grid in Louisiana from Hurricane Ida last September
further interfered with the production of some plastics inputs. Some cement plants have incurred

unusually long outages, in part because of delays in sourcing replacement parts. .
The number of job

Contractors have also been affected by the much-publicized shortage of computer chips. Not only is the openings at the end

of May, a record for
the month

construction industry a major buyer of pickup trucks that are in short supply, but deliveries of
construction equipment also have been held up by a lack of semiconductors.

Contractors have reported being quoted exceptionally long lead times and/or allocations (less-than-full
shipments, generally tied to previously ordered quantities) for inputs as varied as electrical
transformers, traffic signal equipment, highway striping paint, wallboard, insulation, windows, and

roofing fasteners. Strong demand, plant outages, and truck driver shortages have meant long delays in
completing ready-mix concrete pours in several states in the Southeast and West.

So far, there is little sign that the supply chain will consistently improve before 2023—or even 2024, in
the case of some computer chips. While the lead time for some items has shortened, deliveries for many
materials remain delayed or unpredictable. In fact, the expiration of labor contracts for West Coast
longshore workers and rail workers nationwide could result in new disruptions of shipments later this
year.

Labor supply and cost

Construction employment has bounced back well from the early months of the pandemic. However, construction firms are far
short of the number of workers they have been seeking. They have partially closed the gap by getting more overtime from the
workers they have, but this cannot continue indefinitely.

The construction industry lost 1.1 million employees from February to April 2020—a 15% decline in just two months. While both
residential and nonresidential construction employment rebounded somewhat in May 2020, employment stalled for more than
a year after that among nonresidential firms—nonresidential building and specialty trade contractors plus civil and heavy
engineering construction firms. During that period, thousands of experienced workers moved into residential construction

(homebuilding and remodeling), found jobs in other sectors, or left the workforce completely.
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By June 2022, seasonally adjusted construction employment totaled 7,670,000—modestly higher than the 7,624,000 employed
in February 2020. But there was a large shift between residential and nonresidential subsectors. Compared to February 2020
levels, residential construction firms had added nearly 180,000 workers, while employment in nonresidential construction was
still down 134,000 employees or 2.9%, as shown in Figure 2.

Figure 2

Total Nonfarm & Construction Employment, Feb. 2020-Jun. 2022

. . Change since Feb. 2020:
cumulative change (seasonally adjusted)

8% Number Percent
6% Residential 179,500 6.0%
4% Construction
2%
Total -524,000 -0.3%
% —
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-6%
-8%
-10%
-12%
-14%
-16%

Feb Apr Jun Aug Oct Dec Feb Apr Jun  Aug Oct Dec Feb Apr Jun
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2022 2022 2022

Source: BLS current employment statistics, https://waww bls.gov/ces/

There is strong evidence that the construction industry would have added many more workers if they had been available. Job
openings in construction at the end of May totaled 466,000 (not seasonally adjusted), a jump of 130,000 or 39% from a year
earlier and by far the largest May total in the 22-year history of the data, as shown in Figure 3. In fact, job openings exceeded the
437,000 workers hired in May, implying that construction firms would have hired twice as many workers that month as they
were able to, if there had been enough qualified applicants.

Figure 3

Construction job openings exceed hires, set record high for May
Job openings and hires, May 2001-May 2022, not seasonally adjusted

1,000,000
Job openings May 2022: 466,000
800,000 change from May 2021: 39%
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Source: Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics, www.bls gov/jit, JIOLTS
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In order to attract, retain, and bring back workers, construction firms are raising pay. Average hourly earnings in construction for
“production and nonsupervisory employees”—mainly hourly craft workers—rose 6.0% from June 2021 to June 2022. That
compared with increases of 4.0% in the previous 12 months and 2.8% in the 12 months ending in June 2000.

Despite the acceleration in wages, construction pay has not risen as fast as in other industries. Historically, as shown in Figure 4,
contractors paid a “premium” to attract workers willing to work in the conditions, locations, and hours required for construction.
Specifically, average hourly earnings for production workers in construction typically averaged 20% to 23% more than for all private
sector employees, up until the onset of the pandemic. This premium shrank to less that 18% since the start of the pandemic as
restaurants, warehouses, delivery services, and other industries drastically increased pay. Other sectors were also able to offer
greater flexibility regarding hours and worksites, including work from home, that are not possible for construction.

Figure 4
Wage premium for construction has shrunk
*  “Premium” for construction wages relative to total private sector has shrunk from 20-23% pre-pandemic to
17.5% for production & nonsupervisory employees as other sectors boost pay, benefits and offer flexible hours
and locations

* Implications: Contractors will have raise pay still more, pay more overtime, invest more in labor-saving software
and equipment

Average hourly earnings in excess of total private sector, March 2006-June 2022
24% Jun 2022 17.5%
20% MWM’\,\
FA VNV —

16% v —F
12%

8%

4%

0%
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Sources: wages from BLS, www .bls.gov/ces

These differences imply that construction wages will have to rise even more steeply to restore (and perhaps expand) the pay
“premium.” In addition, it is likely that contractors will pay more overtime to make up for the workers they don’t have. They may
also turn more to offsite production and onsite drones, robotics, 3-D printers, and other ways of reducing the number or skill
level of the workers they employ.

Changes in bid prices

The extreme runup in so many input costs caused financial hardship for many contractors and subcontractors, especially for
those whose purchases are concentrated in materials with extra-steep increases.

BLS posts several PPIs for new nonresidential construction. Since every construction project is unique, it is not possible to collect
prices for identical construction “products” in the same way as for most goods and services. Instead, the agency creates “bid
price” PPIs (BLS refers to them as output price indexes) through a two-step process. Each quarter it receives data from
construction cost-estimating firms regarding the cost of a package of installed components or “assemblies” of a particular
nonresidential building. Every month BLS asks a fixed group of contractors the amount of overhead and profit they would
charge to erect that building—the same building that contractor was asked about previously. BLS combines the answers from a
set of contractors to create PPIs for new warehouse, school, office, industrial, and healthcare building construction, along with a
weighted average of these building types for an overall index for new nonresidential building construction.
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BLS also creates PPIs for inputs to construction--weighted averages of the cost of materials and services purchasegor every type of

project.

As shown in Figure 5, the PPI for bid prices rose at the same rate as the PPI for inputs from September 2019 to September 2020,
1.8% year-over-year. The bid-price PPl continued rising at a modest rate through mid-2021, while the year-over-year change in input

prices accelerated to more than 24% by June 2021.

Since mid-2001, the bid-price PPl also has accelerated considerably, as contractors attempt to pass on their rising materials and labor
costs. By June 2022, the bid-price index was climbing at a 19.8% year-over-year rate, compared to 16.8% for the PPI for inputs to new

nonresidential construction.

Figure 5

Costs vs. bid prices for new nonresidential construction

Year-over-year change in PPls, Sep 2020-Jun 2022, not seasonally adjusted
25%

12 months to:
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Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics, producer price indexes, www.bls gov/ppi

The bid-price index only indicates the price contractors propose for new starts. On projects for which they had already submitted a
bid or begun work, contractors were stuck with paying elevated materials prices that they could not pass on.

What's next for bid prices?

There is no fixed relationship between input costs and bid prices. For every firm and time period, the relationship depends on specific
market conditions and expectations.

However, it is possible to look at past relationships. Figure 6 shows the difference
between the year-over-year change in the PPI for materials costs for goods inputs to
construction and the bid-price index for new school construction. The areas in red
indicate periods in which the year-over-year change in the PPI for exceeded the bid-
price PPI for schools. (Similar patterns exist for the bid-price indexes for new
warehouse, office, industrial and healthcare buildings.)

The year-over-year change in
materials costs may exceed the
change in bid prices for 2 years or
more

Materials costs outran bid prices for as long as 26 months from late 2009 to early
2012 and for 25 months from late 2016 to late 2018. The current gap hasn’t lasted as
long but the peak was more than twice as high as in previous episodes, indicating the

pain for contractors has been that much more intense.
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Figure 6

Cost squeeze on contractors can last two years or more
Difference between year-over-year change in materials costs vs. bid prices, Jan 2007-June 2022
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Source: Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics, www.bls.gov/ppi, producer price indexes for goods inputs to nonresidential construction
(material costs) and new schoal building construction (bid prices)

What can contractors and
owhers do?

Contractors can provide project owners with timely and credible third-party information about changes in relevant material costs
and supply-chain snarls that may impact the cost and completion time for a project that is underway or for which a bid has already
been submitted.

Owners can authorize appropriate adjustments to design, completion date, and payments to accommodate or work around these
impediments. Nobody welcomes a higher bill, but the alternative of having a contractor go out of business because of impossible
costs or timing is likely to be worse for many owners.

For projects that have not been awarded or started, owners should start with realistic expectations about current costs and the
likelihood of increases. They should provide potential bidders with accurate and complete design information to enable bidders to
prepare bids that minimize the likelihood of unpleasant surprises for either party.

Owners and bidders may want to consider price-adjustment clauses that would protect both parties from unanticipated swings in
materials prices. Such contract terms can enable the contractor to include a smaller contingency in its bid, while providing the
owner an opportunity to share in any savings from downward price movements (as has occurred recently with lumber, diesel fuel,
and some metals prices). The ConsensusDocs set of contract documents (www.consensusdocs.org) is one source of industry-
standard model language for such terms. The ConsensusDocs website includes a price escalation resource center (https://
www.consensusdocs.org/price-escalation-clause/).

The parties may also want to discuss the best timing for ordering materials and components. Buying items earlier than usual can
provide protection against cost increases. But purchase before use entails paying sooner for the items; potentially paying for
storage, security against theft and damage, and insurance; and the possibility of design changes that make early purchase unwise.
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Conclusion

The construction industry is in the midst of a period of exceptionally steep and fast-rising costs for a variety of materials,
compounded by major supply-chain disruptions and difficulty finding enough workers—a combination that threatens the financial
health of many contractors. No single solution will resolve the situation, but there are steps that government officials, owners, and
contractors can take to lessen the pain.

Federal trade policy officials can act immediately to end tariffs and quotas on imported products and materials. With many U.S. mills
and factories already at capacity, bringing in more imports at competitive prices will cool the overheated price spiral and enable
many users of products that are in short supply to avoid layoffs and shutdowns.

The federal government can improve the labor supply by allowing employers to sponsor more foreign-born workers to fill positions
for which there are not enough qualified applicants. In addition, the federal government should fund and approve more
apprenticeship and training programs to enable students and career-switchers to acquire the skills needed for construction trades.

Officials at all levels of government should review all regulations, policies, and enforcement actions that may be unnecessarily driving
up costs and slowing importation, domestic production, transport, and delivery of raw materials, components, and finished goods.

Owners need to recognize that fast-changing materials costs and availability require a quick decision regarding bids and requests for
changes. For new and planned projects, owners should expect quite different pricing from previous estimates. They may want to
consider building in more flexibility regarding design, timing, or cost-sharing.

Contractors need, more than ever, to closely monitor costs and delivery schedules for materials and to communicate information
with owners, both before submitting bids and throughout the construction process.

Materials prices do eventually reverse course. Owners and contractors alike will benefit when that happens. Until then, cooperation
and communication can help reduce the damage.

AGC resources

This document will be updated if market conditions warrant. Check for the latest edition at:
https://www.agc.org/learn/construction-data/agc-construction-inflation-alert for the latest edition

The AGC website, www.agc.org, has a variety of resources available to contractors, owners, and others wanting to know more about
the construction industry.

AGC posts tables showing changes in PPls and national, state, and metro construction employment each month at:
https://www.agc.org/learn/construction-data

AGC’s Data DIGest is a weekly one-page summary of economic news relevant to construction. Subscribe at:
https://store.agc.org/Store/Store/StoreLayouts/Item_Detail.aspx?iProductCode=4401
or email chief economist Ken Simonson at ken.simonson@agc.org.

Construction documents are available for viewing and purchase from ConsensusDocs at www.consensusdocs.org, including the price
escalation resource center, www.consensusdocs.org/price-escalation-clause/
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